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His Excellency, Governor Chrlstopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Councnl

State House

Concord, New Hampshnre 03301

below.

June 15."2021

- REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into Retroactive amendments to existing contracts with the vendors
listed below in bold for the continued provision of the Emergency Solutions Grant Services by
extending the completion dates from June 30, 2021 to December 31, 2021 effective retroactive
to July 1, 2021, upon Governor and Counci! approval with no change to the total price limitation
of $3,781,462. 100% Federal Funds. .

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table

Increase

Revised

G&C Approval

Vendor Name Vendor Area Served Current
: ! Code Amount (Decroase) Amount
Community - ] .
Action Program 177203 Belknapand _ _ _ - | O:6/29/16, 16
Belknap and Boos | Merrimack $478,747 $0 | $478,747 | A1:6/20/18, #41
Merrimack Counties
Counties Inc. A2: 5120120, #10
Concord, NH
Community Rockingham O: ¢
" Action ‘ . : 6/29/18, #16
Partnership of 17;&340 and Strafford $373,895 $o $373,895
Strafford County Counties . A1: 612018, #1
" Dover, NH
Easter Seals New :
Hampshire | 177204- | ‘ O: 6/29/16, #16
Manchester, NH B005 Statewide $461,113 $0 $461,113 A1: 312118, #9A
Southern New .
:Iampshlre " 177198- Rockingham s0 O: 6/28/18, #16
Services B006 County‘ $373,895 | $373,895 | A1: 6/20/18, #41
Manchester, NH - .
Counties of: -
Southwestern : Cheshire, .
Community 177511 Sullivan, $0 O: 6/29/16, #16
Services PCO1 Grafton, ,$897,348 $897,348 A1: 6/20118, #41
Keene, NH Carroll and
. Coos

in providing opportunities for cilizens to achieve health and independence.

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families

g
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The :ront Door | 156244- Greater ' " O: 6/29116, #16
gency 8004 Nashua Area $598,232 : 598,232 | a1
Nashua, NH : : $ 2| A1: 6120118, #41
The W:iv Home, | 166673 Hillsborough ' s 0O: 6/20/16 #16
‘ nc. 8009 . Coun $373,895 - $373,895 .
Manchestar, NH i : : , Al: 6/20/18 #41
g" c°f~'":¥y Countlés of _
ommun 177195. Grafton, ’ .
Action Program, | B00S | Camolland |. $224,337 $O [ g224,337 | O: 6/20/18 41
Inc. Coos
Berlin, NH - ' \
, Total: | $3,781,462 $0 | $3,761462

i

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2022
upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXP.LANATION

This request-is Retroactive because the Department did not have the fully executed
contract documents in time to prevent the cuent contracts from expiring prior to Governor and
Council approval. Federal regulations allow 2 years to expend the Emergency Solutions Grant
funding. The Department is currently pursuing a new procurement for these services in 2022, The
extension will allow the vendors to leverage the Emergericy Solutions Grant funds with other
rental assistance funds that came into NH through the American Rescue Plan. Emergency
Solutions Grant funding can fund supportive services to households experiencing homelessness
or who are at risk of homelessness, who may be receiving rental assistance through the American
Rescue Plan.

_ The Departrnent is not extending the contract for The Way Home, Inc. because Easter
Seals New Hampshire shall be acquiring The Way Home, Inc. and any future delivery of services
and/or funding on their behalf effective July 1, 2021.

The purpose of this request is for the continuation of Emergency Solutions Grant Program
services to individuals who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Services include
interventions that have a direct and positive impact on individuals and families. The services
provided through these contract agreements prevent individuals and families from becoming
homeless and assist individuals who are curently homeless to regain housing.

The population served are individuals or families who are homeless or are at risk of
becoming homeless. Approxlmately 150 individuals will be served from July 1, 2021 to December
31, 2021. .

These vendors -assist mdlvuduals or families to achieve housing stability through housing
stability case management services which address homeless prevention, rapid re~housung and
housing relocation, and stabilization services. Services may include the provision of rental
assistance, payment of rental application fees, last month's rent, utility deposits and payments
as well as moving costs. Housing stability case management services include- assessing,
arranging, coordinating, and monitoring the delivery of md:vnduahzed services to facilitate housing
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stability for a participant and or household currently residiﬁg. in permanent housing, or to assist a
participant and or household in overcoming immediate barriers to obtaining housing.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures: ,

« Reduce the length of time program participants spend homeless. For a program to
" meet this performance’ benchmark, households served by the program should
move into permanent housing in an average of 30 days or less.

. Permanent housing success. rates. For a program to meet this performance
benchmark, at least 80 percent of households that exit a rapid re-housing program
should exit to permanent housing.

¢ Retums to Homelessness. For a program to meet this performance benchmark at
least 85 percent of households that exit a rapid re-housing program to permanent
housing should not become homeless again within a year.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals and/or
households may not receive interventions that have a direct and positive impact on housing -
stability which_may increase the risk of homelessness or unsafe living arrangements. Without
such services individuals may not receive rental assistance, utility payments and case
management assistance in order to overcome immediate barriers to obtaining housing.
Additionally, without the Housing Relocation and Stabilization services individuals may not have
the opportunity to remain stably housed though effective case management. Individuals may not
have referrals to life skill training such as budgeting and resume writing classes, job search
~assistance and interview skills training. '

Area served: Statewide
Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds CFDA #14.321, FAIN # E-20-DC-33-0001

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

~hnl O fir—
Lori A._ Shibinette
Commissioner



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

100% Federal Funds

Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties Inc.

177203-B003

State Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount chrease Revised Amount
Year . {Decrease)
2017 102-500731 Coniracts for Program Services 42308311 $74,779.00 . $0.00 $74,779.00
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309315 $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309319 $104,779.00 £0.00 $104,779.00
- 2020 - 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $114,774.00 $0.00 $104,779.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $108,636.00] - $0.00 $109,636.00
i Sub Total $478,747.00 $0.00 $478,747.00
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County 177200-B004
State Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase Revised Amount
Year : . {Decrease)
2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309311 $74,779.00 $0.00] . $74,778.00
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309315 $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309319 $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00| -
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services ~ Multiple $74 779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $74,779.00 $0.00 $74.779.00
: Sub Total $373,895.00 $0.00 $373,895.00
Easter Seals New Hampshire 177204-B005
State Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase Revised Amount
Year . {Decrease)
2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $74,779.00 $0.00 '$74,779.00
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $161,997.00 $0.00 $161,997.00
2019 102-50071 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $74,779.00 $0.00 $74.779.00
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $74,779.00 $0.00 $74.779.00
Sub Total $461,113.00 $0.00 $461,113.00
Southern New Hampshire Services 177198-B006
State Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase Revised Amount
Year . {Decrease) .
2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309311 $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309315 $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2019 102-500731 . Contracts for Program Services 42309319 $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2020 102-500731 . .Contracts for Program Services Mulliple $74,779.00 - $0.00 $74,779.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $74,779.00 $0.00 $74 779.00] .
Sub Tolal $373,895.00 $0.00 $373,895.00
Southwestern Community Services 177511-P001
State Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase Revised Amount
Year . i {Decrease)
2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309311 $224,337.00 - $0.00 $224,337.00
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309315 $224,337.00 $0.00 $104,779.00
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309319 $149,558.00 $0.00 $149,558.00
2020 102-500731 Coniracts for Program Services Multiple $149,558.00 $0.00 $149,558.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Mutltiple - $149,558.00 $0.00 $149,558.00
) ’ Sub Total $897,348.00 $0.00 $897,348.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment
Financial Detail

Pagelof2




DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

The Front Door Agency 156244-B001
Stat\e{: Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Jobh Number Current Amount Increase Revised Amount
ear {Decrease)

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309311 $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42303315 $74,779.00 $0.00 $104,779.00
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309319 $149,558.00 $0.00 $149,558.00
2020 102-500731 ~ Contracts for Program Services Multiple $149,558.00 $0.00 $149,558.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $149,558.00 $0.00 $149,558.00
: Sub Total ) " $598,232.00 $0.00 $598,232.00

The Way Home, Inc. 166673-B009

State Fiscal "Class / Account Class Title ‘Job Number Current Amount Increase Revised Amount
Year . (Decrease)
2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309311 $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2018 102-5007 31 Contracts for Program Services 42309315 $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309319 $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00

Sub Total $373,895.00 $0.00 $373,895.00
Tri County Community Action Program, Inc. 177195-8009
S_tals Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number. | Current Amount Increase Revised Amount
ear . . {Decrease) e
2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309311 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2018 102-500731 Caontracts for Program Services 42309315 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2019 - 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42309319 $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Multiple $74,779.00 $0.00 $74,779.00
Sub Total $224,337.00 $0.00 $224,337.00
Overall Total|  $3.781,462.00 $0.00|

Governor and Council Letter Attachment
- Financial Detail

Page 2 of 2

$3,781,462.00
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State” or "Department”) and Community Action
Program Belknap_and Merrimack Counties, Inc. ("the Contractor").

" WHEREAS, pursuant to an-agreement {the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29, 2016 (ltem #16), as amended on June 20, 2018 (Item #41), and as amended on May 20, 2020
(tem #10), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended) and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be. amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement to support continued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideraticn of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: '

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completicn Date, to read: B
December 31, 2021

2. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4, Deliverables of Services, by adding Subsection
4.4 through Section 4.6 to read:

~ 4.4. The Department may annually conduct on-site reviews of the Contractor operations to ensure
compliance with the contractual objectives.

4.5. The Department may annually perform file reviews of the Contractor operations to ensure
_compliance with applicable federal and state laws. :

46. The Department may provide training for Contractor staff as needed.

~

N
. ) DS
17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01-01-A03  Community Action Program Belknap and . 1 jﬂ
" Merrimack Counties, Inc. . Contractor Initials

A-5-1.0 . Page1of3 ' Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to July 1, 2021, upon Governor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Docu$igned by:
6/16/2021 , | Clrirtine Sardanidla
Date Name. Christine Santaniello

Title: pirector

Community Action Program of Belknap/Merrimack

County -
' : _ DocuSigned by:
6/16/2021 : l Jammr ﬁﬂ“
Date _ Name: “AgT

Title: chief Executive officer

17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01-01-A03 Community Action Program Belknap and -
‘ Merrimack Counties, Inc.

A-5-1.0 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

' DocuSigned by:
6/16/2021 - | 4@32—
~PiT0S

Date Name: ™"
Title; Attorhey

| héreby certify that the forégoing Amendment was approved by the Governér and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: . {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ' Name:
Title:

17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01-01-A03 Community Action Prograrm Belknap and
Merrimack Counties, Inc.

A-5-1.0 | Page 3 of 3
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~ State of New Hampshire
Departmeht of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY AC'ILION
PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered
to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State’s ofTice have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.
]

Bus‘incss 1D: 63021
Certificate Number: 0005338239

IN TESTIMONY W !-IISRIZOlF,
I hereto set my hand and cause to be allixed
the Scal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.ID. 2021.

G

William M. Gardner

Scerctary of State
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@)
Phone (603) 225-3295 © 2 Industrial Park Drive
(800) 856-5525 P.O. Box 1016
Fax (603) 228-1898 , Concord, NH
Web www.bm-cap.org B M R R MACK CONTIES IS 03302-1016

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

[, Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1.1 am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

2. The following is a true cdpy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on January 14, 2021, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operations Off:cer/Deputy Director, Rossana Goding, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors are duly authorized
on behalf of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. to enter into contracts
or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and
further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3 | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.
Such authority to be in force and effect until December 31, 2021. | further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the
person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full

. authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.
oy, qu

Dated: ___6/16/2021 Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Dennis Martino

Title: President, Board of Directors
}

1

Rev. 1112/2020
kIn:COA ~ dennis martino
ALTON CONCORD EPSOM NEWBURY SUNCOOK
Sonkie Conier....... 8757102 A.:::dtgen!’u ;gs :8:3 Meadow Brook Houdng ... 735-8250 ig;-i:;? Ntwbuymmcomm 163.0360 ;:.on:rcc.nm
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BELMONT Conoond Ao d Staut ... 934-2181 524.768% PEMBROKE TILTON

Meals on Whaeh ...
Concoid Area Tramill,
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gg: L::: Sanior Conter , L 934-4151
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.934-2181 524:5453 visage af Pembroke Forms EETUS ol L — - |
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&
ACORD
v

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MMODIYYYY)
0410212021

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be andorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED subjoct to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policles may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s}.

PRODUCER COT‘E"CT Andrea Nicklin .
FIAICross Insurance FHONE . (803) 869-3218 f:;fc‘, nop: (603) 645-4331
1100 Elm Street EMalL .5, @nicklin@crossagency.com
. INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAKC #
Manchester - NH 03101 INSURER 4 - TOKiO Maring Holdings, Inc.
INSURED . INSURER B : Granite State Health Care and Human Services Setf-
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc. WSURER ¢ - Federal Ins Co 20281
P.0.Box 1016 ) INSURER D :
INSURERE :
Concord NH 03302 INSURERF ;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: _ 20-21 All, 21-22 DEO/WC REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TC CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED DR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,
ROUTSUBK POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
'f-?g TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WYD POLICY NUMBER (MEUD%NYWJ (M%%NEYW) LIMITS
| COMMERCLAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1.000,000
|"DAMAGE TO RENTED
| cuamsmuaoe OCCUR PREMISES (Ea oceungnes) | 8 100000
|| . MED EXP {Any ons person} $ 5.000
Al PHPK2187440 10/0172020 | 10/02021 | popennaL & ADVINJURY. s 1.000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: . GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3:000.000
>< poLicy s Lec PRODUCTS - Compropacs | s 3:000.000
| otHer: s
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
_A_g}'pmoml.e LIABILITY (En begident) s 1,000,000
| ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Par person} | §
[ | OWNED SCHEDULED
N b Il ‘PHPK2187429 10/01/2020 | 10/01/2021 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
HIRED NON-OWNED " PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|| AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | {Per accident}
s
| D] UMBRELLALAB | 3] occuR EACH OCCURRENCE s 9.000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE PHUB740340 10/01/2020 | 10012021 | ,oreaate s 5.000,000
peo | <] rerenTion s 10,000 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Yin . X[ Sthre | [ 00,000
B | R ECUTIVE NIA HCHS20210000395 (3a.) NH 02/01/2021 | 020172022 |-EL- EACH ACCIOENT $ -~
{Mandatory In NH) ' . - | EL. DISEASE . EAEMPLOVEE |5 1-000.000 .
If yes, describe under
OESCRIPTION OF GPERATIONS below EL. DISEASE .POLCYLIMT | 5 1:000.000
Directers & Officers Llabilit Limit $1.000.000
rectors cers Llal :
c Y 82471784 ¢ 04/01/2021 | 04/01/2022 |Deductible $5.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Scheduls, may be sitachad if more space |s required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION ,

State of New Hampshire; Department of
Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord

NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiLL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

@ 1988-2015 ACORD QORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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1\’ ACTION
Phone (603) 225-3295 2 2 Industrial Park Drive
(800) 856-5525 P.O. Box 1016
Fax [603) 228-1898 | Concord, NH
Web www.bm-cap.org EE';‘E':’,‘Q';.t‘ﬁ‘%’i‘t‘:“fﬁﬁ?&"s‘ﬂ?i- 'fi& 033021014

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The purpose the corporation includes providing assistance for the reduction of
.poverty, the revitalization of low-income communities, and the empowerment of
low-income families and individuals to become fully self-sufficient through
planning and coordinating the use of a broad range of federal, state, local, and other
" assistance (including private resources) related to the elimination of poverty; the ~
organization of a range of services related to the needs of low-income families and
individuals, so that these services may have a measurable and potentially major
impact on the causes of poverty and may help the families and individuals to
achieve self-sufficiency; the maximum participation of residents of the low-income
communities and members of the groups served to empower such residents and
members to respond to the unique problems and needs within their communities;
and to secure a more active role in the provision of services for private, religious,
charitable, ‘and neighborhood-based organizations, individual citizens, and
business, labor, and professional groups, who are able to influence the quant:ty and

quality of opportunities and services for the poor.

{Approved by Agency Board of Directors on 02/24/05
as part of the Agency Bylaws.)

CAPBMCI Sintement of Pumpose
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. ‘ WOLFEBORO « NORTH CONWAY
To the Board of Directors - : DOVER » CONCORD

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimaék Counties, Inc. STRATHAM
Concord, New Hampshire :

' INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements . o . .

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Action Program

Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of

financia! position as of February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, and the related statements
. of activities, functional expenses and cash flows, and notes to'the financial statements for the-

years then ended.

Management's Rggponéibﬁityfbr:the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and-fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Atrditors’ Responsibility ,

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to. financial audits contained in
Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
‘statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
_ basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of
February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Other Information '
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
~awhole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the fi nancial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures apphed in the audit of the financial statements and
_certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our reporl dated
January 5, 2021, on our consideration of Community” Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 5, 2021
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commy CTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COU

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION'
FEBRUARY 28, 2020 AND FEBRUARY 28, 2019

ASSETS .
. 020 2019
CURRENT ASSETS . .
Cash _ $ 549,026 § 1,411,762
Accounts receivable 2,556,855 2,321,041
(nventory : ' 22,916 22,800
Prepaid expenses 44,159 52,632
Investments : 110,078 102,522
Total current assets ' - 3,283,034 3,910,757
PROPERTY ' -
Land, buildings and improvements 5,544,770 4,749,673
Equipment, furniture and vehicles : . -5,6562,5639 5,979,320
Total property 11,197,309 10,728,893
Less accumulated depreciation | _ __ 6,695,428 6.330,580
Property, net | 4,501,881 4,308 413 .
' OTHER ASSETS :
Due from related party ) 7 139,441 139,449
Total other assets 7 139,441 139,441
TOTAL ASSETS -§ 7,924,356 $ 844861 17
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES , ‘
Current portion of notes payable $ 201245 $ 183,269
Line of credit ' - 550,000 o
Accounts payable : 1,160,635 1,069,165 - -
Accrued expenses . - 757,999 1,066,748
Refundable advances ) A 1,084,516 __'998‘,332:-
Total current liabilities : 3,754,395 3,317,514
LONG TERM LIABILITIES" .
Notes payable, less current portion shown above 814,253 781 ,385
Total liabilities . 4,568 648 4;098;899_
NEYT ASSETS .
Without donor restrictions . 2,892,894 3,842,297
With donor restrictions ‘ ‘ o 362,814 507,415
Total net assets ' ' .. 3355708  _ 4349712
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 3 7,924,356 $ - 8,448611

See Notes to Financial Statements
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'C . {OGHA KNAP - MERRIMAGK GOLINTIES. ING:
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29, 2020

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards '
Other funds
In-kind
United Way

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel
Occupancy
Program services
Other costs
Depreciation
In-kind

Total expenses
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor With Donor 2020

Restrictions . Restrictions Total
$ 18,276,247 % - § 18,276,247
2,437,366 2,986,021 5423387
920,759 S 920,759"
11,938 s . '11938
21,646,310 2,986,021 24,632,331
3,130,622 (3,130,622) -
24,776,932, (144,601) 24,632,331
9,213,867 - 9,213,867
2,508,455 - 2,508,455
322,894 - 322,894
1,393,046 - 1,393,046
9,231,697 - 9,231,697
1,634,451 : 1,634,451
401,166 - 401,166
920,759 - 920,759
25,626,335 - . 25626335
(849,403) (144,601). 994,004y
3,842,297 507415 . 4,349,712
$ 2992894 5 362,814 § 3355708

. See Notes to Financlal Statements
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

CK COUNTIES. IN

FOR.THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28,2019

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards .
Other funds
In-kind

. United Way

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES
Salarles anll wages
Payroll taxes and benefits.
Travel
Occupancy
Program services
Other costs
Depreciation
In-kind

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR -

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor With Donor 2019

Restrictions.. Restrictions Total
$ 19205554  $ - 1§ '19;205,554-
- 4,706,408 169,246 4,875,654,
829,464 - 829,464
18,227 - 1 8_2%7?
24,759,653 169,246 24,928,899
364,684 (364:664) =
25,124,337 (195,438) 124,928,899
8,905,842 . 8,905,642
2,428,774 - 2,428,774
324,497 - 324,491
1,310,477 . 1,310,477
8,941,429 8,941,429
1,707,999 . 1,707,899
330,491 . 330,491
829,924 - 829.924
24,779,227 . 24,779,227
345110 |  (195438) 149,672
3497487 702,853 4,200,040
$ | 3842297 $ 507,415 4,349,712

See Notes to Financial Statements
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29, 2020 AND FEBRUARY 28, 2019

2020 2019
CASH FL.LOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets $ {994,004y § 149,672
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 401,166 330,491
Decrease (increase) in current assets: : . o
Accounts receivable o : - (235,814) ‘672,364
Inventory : ©(118) 3,767
Prepaid expenses 8,473 35,655
Decrease (increase) in current liabilities: X ) . -
Accounts payable - ' 91,470 © (374,532).
Accrued expenses ‘ _ (308,749) 10,072
~ Refundable advances ) _ 86,184 . {189,001).
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES . _ (951,390 . 638,488
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES oo : ‘
Additions to property . ) _ {268,634) (803,770)
Investment in partnership ' - {7,556) (3,769)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ' —_— {276,190) {807,539)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES , ) :
Net borrowings on line of credit N 550,000 \ =
Repayment of long term debt (185,156) (170,872)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY {USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 364,844 (170,872)
NET DECREASE IN CASH . L ‘ (862,736) (;339;923;)
CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR : _. 1,411,762 1,751,685
CASH BALANCE, END OF. YEAR 3 549026  $ 1,411,762
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for interest $ . 73255 5. 63,133
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND
. FINANCING ACTIVITIES: ' :
Property purchased with new debt 3236000 % -

See Notes to Financial Statefnents

6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7TF4E4741-3241-4B79-AFEF-779E9FDB096Y |

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP = MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC,
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE'YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29, 2020

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel
Occupancy
Program Services -
Other costs: i
Accounting fees
Legal fees
Supplies .
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
Printing and publications’

Conferences, convenlions and meetings:

Interest
Insurance
Membership fees
, Utility and maintenance

Computer services

" Other

Depreciation

In-kind

Total functional expenses

Program.

Management Total

8,797,236 $ 416,631 '§ 9,213,867
2,468,991 39.464 2,508,455
322,870 24 322,894
1,225,265 167,781 1,393,046
9,231,697 - 9,231,697
475 60,771 61,246

Cs 9,261, 9,261
214,778 31,442 246,220
18,055 34,399 53,454
3,627 275 3,902
27,109 6,562 33,671
27,248 4,662 31,910
57,543 15,712 73,255
133,619 5,949 139,568
12,862 7,586 20,448
170,336 48,114 218,450
51,908 : 51,908
663,656 27,502 691,158
401,166 . 401,168
920,759 E 920,759
24,750,200 $ 876,135 § 25626,335

See Notes to Financial Statements
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STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY.28, 2019

Program Management Total
Salaries and wages : - $ 8682073 ¥ 223,569 .3 8,905,642
_ Payroll taxes and benefits 2,320,432 108,342 2:428,774
Travel : 323,333 . 1,158 324,491
- Occupancy ' ' ' 1,293,439 47,038 1,310.477
Program Services 8,941,429 - - - 8,941,429
Other costs: - -
Accounting fees _ - - 57,892 57,892
Legal fees 19,554 3,520 23,074
Supplies ‘ . . 284,548 - - 284,548
Postage and shipping : 53,134 - 53,134
Equipment rental and maintenance , 2,208 = 2,208
Printing and publications 45,786 3,732 49,518
Conferences, conventions and meetings 22,840 27,848 50,688
Interest ‘ 46,478 16,655 63,133
tnsurance ' 143,136 6,760 149,896
Membership fees 9.891 9,093 18,984
Utility and maintenance 214,214 = 214,214
Computer services . 37,562 1,304 38,866
Other 701,232 612 701,844
Depreciation ’ - , 330,491 = 330,491
In-kind 829,924 - 825,924
Total functional expenses , % 24301,704 % 477,523 § 24,779,227

See Notes to Financial Statements
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.+~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29, 2020 AND FEBRUARY 28, 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization '

Community Action Program Belknap — Merrimack Counties, Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support .
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Basis of ‘Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the
United State of America

" New Accounting Pronouncement .
During the year, the Organization adopted the provisions of FASB ASU 2018-08,
Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and
Contributions Made (Topic 958). This accounting standard is meant to help not-for-profit
entities evaluate whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions or as

~ exchange transactions and, if the transaction is identified as a contribution, whether.it is
conditional or unconditional. ASU. 2018-08 clarifies how an.organization determines
whether a resource provider is receiving-commensurate value in return for a grant. If the |
resource provider does receive commensurate value from the grant recipient, the
transaction is an exchange transaction and would follow the guidance under ASU 2014-
09 (FASB ASC Topic 606). If no commensurate value is received by the grant maker,
the transfer is a contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the
general public as a result of the grant is not considered to be commensurate value .
received by the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the years ending February
29, 2020 and February 28, 2019 are presented under FASB ASU 2018-08. The
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the
accounting standards in effect in those reporting periods. There was no material impact
to the financial statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly, no adjustment to
opening net assets was recorded.

Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the Organization to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications: '
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Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not
. subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any
. purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net assets may be used at. the discretion of the Organization's -
management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor_restrictions include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual
in nature, whereby the donor has stlpu!ated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity. '

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $362,814 and $507,415 at
February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, respectively. See Note 13.

Income Taxes

The Organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal

income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue
" Service has determined them to be other than a private foundation.

The Orgénization files information returns in the United States and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is no longer subject to examinations by tax authorities for
. years before 2017.

Accounting Standard Codification No, 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,

established the minimum threshold for Tecognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. The Organization has analyzed
its tax position taken on its information returns for the years (2017 through 2020), and
-has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

Property

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 -are capitalized unless -a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements ) " 40 years.
Equipment, furniture and vehicles _ 3 -7 years

10
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Use of Estimates - : . ,
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - . o
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid

investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at
times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk ‘with
respect to these accounts. :
Contributed Services '

_Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received.and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency. ’ -

Volunteers. provided various. services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in. the financial statements sincé the recagnition criteria under FASB ASC
No. 958 were not met.

In-Kihd Donations /'Noncash Transactions . | ‘ o

Donated facilities, services and supplies.are reflected :as revenue ‘and expense ‘in the
accompanying financial statements, if the-cfiteria for recognition is met. This represents.
the estimated fair; value for the:service, supplies arid space that the Organization might
‘incur under normal ‘operating activities. The Organization received $920,759 and
$829,924 in donated facilities, services-and:supplies for the years ended February 28,
2020 and February 28, 2019, respectively, as follows: -

The ©Organization, récéives contributed professional services that are required to be
recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of these
services was determined to be $52,181 and $35,519 for the years ended February 28,
2020 and February 28, 2019, respectively.

The Organization also-Teceivés contributed food comimodities and other:goods that are
required to be fecorded in -accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The :estimated fair
value of these food commaodities and goods was determined to be $868,578 and
$793,945 for the years ended February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, respectively.

Advertising '
The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising

costs for the years ended February 28, 2020 and February 28, 2020 totaled $46,899
and $54,461, respectively.

Inventory : .
Inventory consists of weatherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the

jower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in, first-out method.

11
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Functlonal Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other actrvutres have been presented in
the Statements of Functiona! Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the program services and supporting activities benefited. Expenses are charged
to each program based on the direct expenses lncurred or estimated usage based on
time spent on each program by staff. d

'Expense Method_of allocation

Wages and benefits Time and effort

Depreciation : Actual assets used by program
All other expenses Direct assignment

' gUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY.
The following represents the Organlzatron s financial assets as of February 29, 2020
and February 28, 2019:

2020 - 2019
Financial assets at year end: . .
Cash and cash equivalents, undesrgnated $ 549,026 $ 1411762
~ Accounts receivable 2,656,855 2,321,041
" Investments . ' 110078 102,522:
Total financial assets o 3.215.959 3835325
Less amounts not available to bé used within :
one year: .
Net assets with donor restnctlons 362,814 507,415
Less net assets with time restrictions to be '
‘metin less than a year . __ < - -
Amounts not available within one year . _ 362,814 ___ 507,415

Financial assets available to meet general

expenditures over the next twelve months $:2.853.145 Lgégzdg;g

it is the Organization's goa! to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approximates $3,895,000 and $3,880,000 respectlvely, at February 29,
2020 and 2018. The .Organization has an available line of credit in-the amount of
$50,000 and $200,000, respectively, at February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE :

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
was estimated to be zero at February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2018. The
Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue accounts.

12
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REFUNDABLE ADVANCES .

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the petiod in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,084,516 and $998,332 as of February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, respectively.

" RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a gualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 29, 2020 and
February 28, 2019 totaled $181,057 and $184,961, respectively.

LEASED FACILITIES .

Facilittes occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
" years. For the year ended February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, the annual lease
expense for the leased facilities was $546,861 and $480,258, respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

" Year Ended

February 28 | Amount
2021 $ 458,568,
2022 138,021
2023 125,947
2024. 105,882
2025 98,362

Thereafter : 876,241
Total | | $_ 180102 '_

ACCRUED EARNED TIME .

‘The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $341,532 and $377,163 at
February 29, 2020 and 2019, respectively. :

BANK LINE OF CREDIT -

The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments based
on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (6.00% and 5.50% at February 29, 2020 and
February 28, 2019, respectively) plus 1%, but not less than 6% per annum. The line is
secured by all the Organization's assets. There was a balance of $200,000 outstanding
at February 29, 2020. There was no outstanding balance on the line at February 28,
. 2019,

13
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During the year ended February 29, 2020 the Organization entered into an additional
“revolving line of credit agreement (the line) in the amount of $400,000, with a bank that
is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments based on the
LIBOR rate (4.02% at February 29, 2020). The line is secured by all the Organization's
assets. There was a balance of $350 000 outstanding at February 29, 2020.

9. LONG TERM DEBT
Long term debt con3|sted of the following as of February 29, 2020 and February 28,
2019

. 2020 2019
5.50% note payable to a financial institution in
monthly installments of $1,634 through-July 2039.
The note is secured by property of the Organization. $ 232259 % -

5.75% note payable to a financial institution in
monthly instaliments for principal and interest of
$13,912 through July 2023. The note is secured by
property of the Organization for Lakes Region Family »
Center. 520,492 649,372

3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for

_leasehold improvements in monthly installments for

pruncupal and interest of $747 through May 2027. The

note is secured by property of the Organization for the ,

agency administrative building renovations. 57,848 64,943

7.00% note payable to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and leases on property
located in Concord, New Hampshire for Early Head o ,
Start. , 204 899 _ 250,339

Total 1,015,498 964,654
' Less amounts due within one year | 201,245 ___ 183,269
_Long term portion $ 814253 §__ 781385
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10.

11.

12,

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 29, 2020 were as follows:

Year Ending. _ , .

February 28 ' Amount
2021 A $ 201,245
2022 213,444
2023 ' . 226,567
2024 143,136
2025 16,749,

Thereafter 2 1'4,‘357

1,015 8

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT ' .
Property and equipment con5|sted of the followmg as of February 29, 2020 and
February 28, 2019:

2020 2019

Land . $ 168676 § 168676
Building and tmprovements 5,376,094 4,580,996
Equipment and vehicles 5,652, 539 ’ 5, 979 321
, _ 11,197,309 10,728,993

Less accumulated depreciation 6695428 __ 6.330,580
Property and equipment, net _ $ 4501881 § 4308413

Depreciation expense for the years ended February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019

was $401,166 and $330,491, respectlvely

CONTINGENCIES

‘The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these

agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have beén made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions -have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not'been determined or assessed
as of February 29, 2020.

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the years ended February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, approximately
$12,100,000 (51%) and $12,000,000 (48%), respectively, of the Organization’s total
revenue was received from the Department of Health and Human Services. The future
scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upon continued support from this
department. '

16 .
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13.

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program

services as of February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019:

NH Food Pantry Coalition
Senior Center
Elder Services
Mary Gale
NH Rotary Food Challenge
Summer Feeding
Common Pantry
Caring Fund
Agency — FAP.
Agency Head Start
Community Crisis |
' Other Programs

Total net assets with donor restrictions

14, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2020 2019

$ 663 § 663
141,114 137,743
2,867 200,912
24,082 -
5,068 5,068
18,840 -
4,764 5,534
9,064 11,811
4,751 6,342
145,747 137,967
2,550 350
3304 . . 1025

§__§=§J£L.M

The Organization is related to "the foilowing corporation as a result of cemmon

management:
Related. Party

CAPBMC Development Corporation

.Function -~

Real Estate Development

. There was $139,441 due from CAPBMC Developmeﬁt Corporation at both February 29,

2020 and February 28, 2019.

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

Related Party -

Belmont Elderly Housing, Inc. -
Epsom Elderly Housing, Inc.

Alton Housing for the Elderly, Inc.
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc.
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc.
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc.
Riverside Housing Corporation

Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership

Twin' Rivers Community Corporatlon
Ozanam Place, inc.

TRCC Housing Limited Partnership |

16
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HUD Property

HUD Property

HUD Property

Low Income Housing Tax
Credit Property

Property Development

Transitional Supportive
Services

Low Income Housing Tax
Credit Property
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16.

e

The services performed by the Organization included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties), HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The total amount due from the related parties (cbllectively) at February 29, 2020 and
February 28, 2019 was $198,763 and $185,937, respectively, and is included in:
accounts receivables.

RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts. from the p}ior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Community Action Program Betknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money

relating to its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds _ -

totaled $109,078 and $101,522 at February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019,
respectively. _ .

ASC Topic No. 825-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is
a market-based measurement, not” an entity-specific measurement, and requires

. expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820,

the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a -basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizés the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority fo Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies. '

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

17
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17.

18.

At February 28, 2020 and February 28,' 2019, the Organization's investments were
classified as Level 1 and were based on fair value. .

Fair Value Measurements tising Significant Qbservable Inputs ‘(Levél 1)

2020 _ 2019
Beginning balance — mutual funds | $ 101522 .$ 97,753
Total gains (losses) — mutual funds 7,556 3,769
Ending balance — mutual funds | $ 109078 § 101522

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

The Organization also has $1,000 invested in a Partnérship, The Lakes Region
Partnership for Public Health, at February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019.

FISCAL AGENT

‘Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. acts as the fiscal agent

for the following. community organizations: Franklin Community Services Building
(Franklin), the Common Pantry (Laconia), the Caring Fund (Meredith), the NH Food
Pantry Coalition, the NH Rotary Food Challenge and FGP/SCP Association Region 1.
The Agency provides the management and oversight of the revenues received

. (donations) and the expenses (utilities, food and emergency services).

. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before the financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the
estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non-recognized .
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has

‘evaluated subsequent events through January 5, 2021, the date the financial

statements were available to be issued.

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its spread
are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the impact of these
disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's financial
and operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such disruptions
continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration of the COVID-19
pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might be imposed in
response to the pandemic.

18
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in April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $1,935,300
under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP"). The PPP, is established as part of the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act").

If the Organization does not meet the loan criteria, the unforgiven portion of the PPP
loan is payable over five years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for

. the first six months. The Organization intends to use the proceeds for purposés
consistent with the PPP. Through the date of this report, the final determination of
forgiveness has not occurred.

19
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS -

.FOR'THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29, 2020

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE _

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTHAND HUMAN SERVICES
Head Start -
Head Start

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program-WX
Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program-HRRP

Community Services Block Grant

Social Services Block Grant-Home Delivered & Congregate Meals )
Socia! Services Block Grant-Service Link .

TANF CLUSTER

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families-Family Planning
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families-Workplace Success

AGING CLUSTER
Title I, Part B-Senior Transportation
Title 1, Part C-Congregate Meals

_ Title 11, Part C-Home Delivéred Meals
NSIP

CHILD CARE AND DEVELOQPMENT FUND CLUSTER

Child Care & Development Block Grant
Child Care Mandatory & Matching Funds of the CCDF

MEDICAID CLUSTER
Medica! Assistance Program

Medical Assistance Program - Veterans

Family Planning - Services
Public Health Emergency Résgom: Cooperatha Agreement for Emergency Responss: Public Health

MATERNAL, INFANT, AND EARLY CHILDHOOD HOME VISITING CLUSTER
ACA - Maternal, Infant, & Early Childhood Home Visiting Program

ACA - Aging & Disability Resource Center

National Family Caregiver Support, Title Ill, Parl E-Service Link
Special Programs for Aging, Title [V-Service Link

CMS Research Demonstrations & Evaluations

CFDA

NUMBER

93.600
93.600

93.568
93.568
93.568

93.569

93667
93.667

93.558
93.558

“93:044.
-93.045,
.93.045.
'93.053

93.575

93.596

93:778
03.778

93.217
93.354

93.505

'93.517

93052
'93.048

93778,

PASS THROUGH NAME

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

Southern New Hampshire Services

-State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

Gateways Community Services

State of New Hampshire

. State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

X2

o
RZS

A9
~ "
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FEDERAL GRANTOR/
PROGRAM TITLE

FOOD DISTRIBUTION CLUSTER
Commodity Supplemental Food Program

Emergency Food Assistance Program-Administration
Emergency Food Assistance Program

Trade Mitigation

Rural Housing Preservation Grant

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL & COMMUNITY SERVICES

FOSTER GRANDPARENTS/SENIOR COMPANION CLUSTER
Senior Companion Program

US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ’

Formula Grants for Rural Areas-Concord Transit

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Ind. W/Disabifitles-CAT

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Ind. W/Disabilities-Rural Transporiation
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Ind. W/Disabilities-Volunteer Drivers

’

US DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING.AND.URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Supportive Housing Program )
Supportive Housing Pregram-Outreadh

Emergency Solutions Grant
Continuum of Care Program

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY.

Weatherization Assistance for Low Income Persons

AJS.DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Senior Community Service Employment Program

WIAWIOA CLUSTER

CFDA

NUMBER

10:565
10568
40569

10.178

10.433

94.016

20.509

20513
20513
20,513

14.235
14.235

14.231
14,267

81.042

17.235

PASS THROUGH NAME

State of New Hampshire
~ State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire-Department of Transportation

State of New Hampshire-Department of Transportation

State of New Hampshire-Department of Transportation
Merrimack County ) :

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

State of Néw?Hampshire

State of New Hampshire .
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

NOTE 4

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED.FEBRUARY 29, 2020

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)

includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. under programs of the federa! government for the year
ended February 29, 2020. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance’ with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected not to
use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

FOOD COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commoedities received and disbursed.
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_Leone,
McDonnell
& Roberts
CERTIFIED—_PUALIEZ II\CC.IQJUNTANT S

WOLFEBORO » NORTH CONWAY
DOVER » CONCORD
STRATHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors . ‘
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in° Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 29, 2020, and
the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated January 5, 2021. ‘ '

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting ‘ .

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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-

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify
a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2020-001 that we consider to be a material weakness. :

.Compliancé and Other Matters

As part of abtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s financial statements are free from material misstatement,

- we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report :
The purpose of this report is solely to describe thie scope of our testing of mternal control and
compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the -
Organization’s internal control and comphance Accordlngly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 5, 2021

24



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7F4E4741-3241-4B79-AFEF-779E9F D60969

Leone,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PROFESSIONAL ASSHCIATION
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

WOLFEBORO » NORTH CONWAY
DOVER + CONCORD

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors _
- Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.-
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

" 'We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance

with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that

could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 29, 2020.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
. identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings

and questioned costs.

Management S Responsibihty
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an oplnlon on compliance for each of Community Action
-Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative- Requirements, Cost Principles,
" and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a fest basis, evidence about Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performmg such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on éompliar{ce for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
' Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance.
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, Opmron on Each Major Federal Program - ,
In our opinion, Community Action Program Belknap- Merrimack Countles Inc. complled in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
29, 2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance.
Management of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s "
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are

~ appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.’s internal control over compliance. '

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibilty that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet |mportant enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance

Our consrderatron of mternal control over compllance was forthe limited purpose desc:r:bed in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internat control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose.

Concord, Ne\nr Hampshire
January 5, 2021
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS .

FOR THE YEAR ENDED'‘FEBRUARY 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1.

The auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion. on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in.
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. :

One material weakness relating to the audit of the financial statements is reported in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Pen’ormad in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the fi nancial statements of Communlty Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

|

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Commuriity ’
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified oplnlon on all
major programs,

There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

The programs tested as major programs include:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Low Income Home Energy Assistance
Program 93.568, Head Start 93.600, Community Services Block Grant 93.569; U.S.
Department of Agriculture, Food Distribution Ciuster, 10.565, 10.568, 10.569, Trade
Mitigation 10.178, NON-FEDERAL Public Utilities Companles Electrical Assistance
‘Program.

The thresheld for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to not be a
low-risk auditee.
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FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
MATERIAL WEAKNESS -
2020-001

Condition: The financial statements presented to the auditor at the beginning of fieldwork
understated revenue and expenses by a material amount. This was primarily the resutt of
improper cut off due to revenue and expenses related to the fiscal year under audit being
recorded to the subsequent period. :

Criteria: The Organization's internal contro} procedufes should be structured so that accounts
are reconciled and reviewed on a timely basis and a review is. completed prior to closing the
financial records for the year.

Causé: The Organization's Director of Finance did not regard the proper cut off of the direct
fuel assistance payments and reimbursement revenue to be important. Both the accounting
staff and the staff within the fuel assistance department appears to maintain good controls and
good records, however, the Director of Flnance did not understand the importance of using the
information available to post an entry to ensufe correct cut off of revenue and expenses.

Effect: A significant adjusting journal entry was proposed by the audltor to ensure accurate
revenue and expense cut off for the period under audit.

Recommendations: The auditors recommend that the financial closing process include a
review of all significant balance sheet and profit and loss accounts.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Phone (603} 225-3295 © 2 Industrial Park Drive

(80O) 856-5525 fie P.O. Box 1016

Fax (603) 228-1898 o . Concord, NH.

Web www.bm-cap.org H E':'&’:',’:‘;Iﬁ"a‘“‘e‘i‘ﬂ":‘ﬁ.’%ﬁi’é’ NTIES l-!:lscs' 03302-1016
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

Finding:; 2020-001

Plan: Accounts wiil be reconciled and reviewed on a timely basis and completed prior to the annual close of the
financial records. :

The Staff Accountant or other accolinting staff member feconciles all monthly bank statements which are then
approved by the Fiscal Officer. The Staff Accountant prepares an-adjusting entry for interest, service charges and
other adjustments-which.are also:approved by the Fiscal Officer. :

The Staff Accountant or other accounting staff member reconciles all project balance sheet accounts monthly

‘which are then approved by Fiscal Officer. The Staff Accountant or other accounting staff member print necessary
_.schedulés to reconglle the accounts & check balance' totals. Any reconclling Items are brought to the attention of

the Fiscal Officer who corrects them at the Bank or approves the adjusting journal entry. '

The Organization will ensure the palicies are followed as written. L
Contact:.

Rossana Goding, Fiscal Officer

2 Industrial Park Drive Concord NH 03303 (603}
225-3295 x 1131 - : )
Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer

2 Industrial Park Drive Concord, NH 03303 (603)
225-3295 %1113 ' :

Anticipated completion date: February 28, 2021
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29, 2020

MATERIAL WEAKNESS
- 2019-001

Condition: The'ﬁnancial statéments presented to the auditor at the beginning of fieldwork
understated net income by a material amount. This was primarily the result of improper cut
-off due to revenue related to the fiscal year under audit being recorded to the subsequent
period. o

Recommendations: The auditors recommend that the Organization implement procedures
so that balance sheet accounts are reconciled and reviewed by management-on a monthly
basis. Further, the auditors recommend that the financial closing process be simplified and
include a review of aII-si‘gniﬂcant balance sheet and profit and loss accounts. '

Current Status: The balance sheet accounts did show evidence of monthly reconciliations.

However, the financial ctosing process was not complete and the required entry to adjust
fuel assistance revenue and expense was not made. See 2020-001.
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‘,_o"“ “a, ‘ .
g D % . Effective April 2021
%T ¢ - COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM '
g entets  BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS -

Dennis Martino, President Kathy Goode

Sara A. Lewko

Robert (Bob) Krieger, Vice President

Safiya Wazir, Treasurer Chris Pyles, Esq.

A. Bruce Carri, Secretary/Clerk David Siff, Esq.

Ben Wilson, AAMS® Financial Advisor
Heather Brown

David Croft, Sheriff
Theresa M. Cromwell

Current fiscal year (3/1/21 — 2/28/22) board meetings — 3/1 1/21, 5/13/21,, 9/9/21, 11/18/21, 1/13/22
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Elizabeth Heyward

Highlights

+ Fundraising and event planning
« ‘Relationship building experf
s Deadline-driven
+ Donor database management
+ Exceptional multi-tasker
+ Decisive problem solver
. Organized and efficierit
» Motivated team player
e Cross-functional team management

Experience

Community Services Director- Angust 2017-Present

* Responsible for the planning, scheduling, lmp]ementdhon and monitoring of the
Fuel and Electric Assistance Programs. '

o Responsible for the development of intemal operating procedures for the Fuel and
Electric Assistance Programs compliance with agency and funding requirements

»  Responsible for the development of the operating budget for Fuel and Electric
Assistance Programs and arca center structure with compliance with agency and
funding source requirements.

¢ Responsible for the management, training, supervision and evaluation of Fuel and
Electric Assistance and area center staff, ‘

¢ Responsible for compiling and maintaining accurate records of programs
statistics, financial reports, reimbursement requests for agency and various
funding sources.

¢ Responsible for developing and implementing outreach plans and centralize client
intake for Fuel and Elcctrlc Assistance Programs and other agencies services
p10v1ded through the area ‘center structure. This will be done in conjunction with
agency program and area center directors.

s Responsible for securing adequate funding for Fuel and Electric Assistance
Programs and local funding of area center system by local cities and towns.

e Responsible for providing public relations and information related to Fuel and
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Electric Assistance Programs and area center services.

Responsble for coordinating with other program and area center directors on grant
dei«alopmenl by other agency programs and services to meet local community
needs. _

Responsible for preparing, writing, and organizing proposals and applications for
Fuel and Electric Assistance Programs and area center programs.

Responsible for the development and implementation of the information and
referral system used by the area center staff. '

Resbonsiblc for the develo;ﬁmcnt and implementation of a community needs
assessment for the Agency and communities served.

Assist in planning, development and implementation of a data collecrlons
software package with the state and other local CAP agencies.

Director of Mission Advanéement— June 2016- July 2017

Work with the Executive Director and other members of senior leadership to
develop the annual operating budget and identify the financial needs of the
organization that must be'met by fundraising;

Create and manage the annual development plan that encompasses individual and

“institutional giving (foundations, corporation and partners);

Track key metrics, where success is measured by glowth in contributor numbers,
donor retention and dollars raised;

Manage the development budget and assist the Executive Director in developing
individual Board member fundraising plans;

Manage the portfolio of donor prospecits, ihclﬁding identifying, researching,
qualifying, cultivating and soliciting gifts from individuals, corporations, and
foundations.

Support the Executive Director in major gift cultivation and solicitation efforts
through research, planning, strategy, moves management process.

Collaborate with the Executive Director to create individualized stewardship
plans for top contributors, including customized donor reports and donor

recognition.

Manage the annual giving program, including communicatior{s, appeals, and
stewardship.

Personally acknowledge contributors and the impact of their gifts.

Manage budget [expenses and revenues] and staff on charitable gaming activities
and placement and sales of vending machines.

Effectively position/prcpafe the Exccutive Director and Board members for
interactions with major contributors and prospects.
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« Provide ongoing inspiration, support, resources and training in fundraising to the
.Board and staff.

» -Manage the Development and Communications staff for message management
and effective use of the contributor database, moves management and other tools,
including cause-related marketing, cultivation events, etc.

« Collaborate with other GBS staff in the timely development of written
communications such as annual appeals, direct mail and advertising.

e Travel to meet with top contributors in addition to fundraising events and board
meetings. .

Director of Community Relations-March 2015-Junc 2016

» Treasure of the Private Provider Network in Concord NH.

e Assistinall fundraising events for Great Bay. Including plan, and execution.

» Provide active representation at local and state level events and meetings.

e Stay current and report back on recent state and federal disability news.

e Increase community awareness of the organization, cliént services, and business
opportunities,  ; .

¢ Assist with the newsletter, media presentations, marketing materials, and

* fundraising events.

* Make presentations at High Schools PTA’s, and parent groups.

e Seek out other venues where groups of parents attend meetings.

e Meet with area Special Education Directors, '

s Develop an active Business Advisory Council.

Associate Director of Programs and Services September 2013- March 2015-Great
Bay Services

» Qversees Clinical Services. Supervises Case Managers and Nurses. Oversees
Individual o : : _
Service Plans, progress notes and other program documentation. Assures
coordination
between case managers and appropriate program staff.
» Conducts interdisciplinary staff meetings with case managers, nurses, residential
managers and community center staff to assure coordination of services, client
concerns, ‘ _
incidents and trends. Facilitates problem solving and is solution focused.
e Oversees Employment, Day and Residential Services. Reviews consumer
progress, : : '
written reports and assures coordination between all assigned managers.
. Supervises all '
direct care program managers.
¢ Is responsible for the hiring and dismissal of all direct care staff.
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¢ Responsible for orientation and training of program staff.
s Oversees Residential Managers | _
* Acts as liaison with funding and regulatory agencies including Developmental
Disabilities of Maine and New Hampshire. .
¢ Assists in preparation of annual budget for services Responsible for contract
management
and compliance for all services reporting to the position.
¢ Oversees consumer admission, intake, program management, transfer and
discharge
decisions and-procedures.
e Works in collaboration with and supports the Executive Director on various
projects and

initiatives.
* Assists the Executive Director in matters relating to organizational operations.
Acts as : R

back up for the Executive Director in his/her absence.
* Coordinates orients and oversees placements of volunteers and interns.

Program Manager for Employment Services October 2011- August 2013-Great Bay
Services

Community Employment Coordinator: Great Bay Services, November 2008- October
2011 ' ,

Secretary: Leddy Center for the Performing Arts, July 2008- March 2009 .

Marketing and Communications Intern: Amphenol TCS, October 2007- August 2008

Education

» MBA in Leadership: SNHU, Manchester NH

* Graduate Certificate in Leadership in a Not for Profit: SNHU, Manchester, NH

» Bachelor of Science in Business Administration , Hesser College, Manchester,
. NH '

* Associates Degree in Public Relations, Hesser College, Manchester, NH

Skills and Training

» Constant Contact- Monthly newsletter

¢ . Donor Perfect- Use this for our donor database.

» Attended the CASE Summer Institute in Educational Fundraising
¢ Microsoft Office- Word, Excel, Publisher, and PowerPoint

» Board of Directors for Epping Community Church
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FREEMAN TOTH

Results-oriented leader with strong background in hiring, training, management and employee development.
Exceptional communication and coaching skills. Effectively motivates employces through consistent feedback,
positive reinforcement and leading by example.

'HIGHLIGHTS

- Employee onboarding, development and retention - New product Iaunches and trainings - Team building - Multl-
media training program development - Fluent in “Earn the Right Sales™ process -

' ACCOMPLISHMENTS

- Successfully managed all functions related to daily opcerations of a retail organization, Duties include recruiting. interviewing,
hiring and onboarding, the development and implementation of training programs and performance management plans that
consistently yicld positive results. :

- Served in multiple fcadership roles, working closely with lhc exccutive team to cstablish orgam?auonal goals and maintain
forward momentum for the company.

- Workforce management and scheduling oversight Tor multiple locations including over 50 nssociates and managers.

- Orchestraled regular mcglings and trainings focused on sales best practices and cxceeding company and individual goals
' PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program of Belknap/Merrimack Countles Inc.

Concord, NH Homelcss Outreach & Housing Stabilization Manager 2/2019 to Currcnt

As a Homeless Outreach & Housing Stabilization Managcr my responsibilities Include Managing a team
résponding to referrals from NH 2-1-1 Services with the goal of providirig advice, services and assistance to people
experiencing Homelessness or {o those whom are at risk of becoming homeless. A typical day may include Visiting
with local shelters, welfare officers, food pantries and homeless resource centers and homeless people in an effor to
Ingratiate myself while building rapport and trust with the loca! homeless population.

Waltham Traders/IM Wireless g
Salem, NH District Manager/Trainer 2/2017 to 10/2018

Hire, onboard and manage multiple associates and managers for multiple high-volume locations throughout New England. N
Developed and implemented company training programs and assisted with the opening of multiple high-profile locations.

GoWireless LLC/INC.
Derry, NH Manager 3/2015 to !/2017

Diirectly developed and managed a large team of sales professionals while oversecing daily operations oflhc location. Served in g
critical rolc during a company acquisition, contributing 1o 2 successful transition with minimal operational disruption.

Bedford, NH Sales Manager/Arca Manager 02/2002 to 3/2015

Responsibilities included working in conjunction with the executive tcam to recruit, intervicw and hire new consullants and
managers while successfully managing multiple high-volume locations. Specialized in building rapport with customers; carning
their trust and creating lifelong customers.

EDUCATION - Keene State College, Keene, NH
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Kelsi Legsdin

‘Relevant Experience
Information and Referral

Over 10 years of experience connecting clients to Social Service Agencies.

Identify barriers and assist clients in overcoming them.

Located homeless encampment to connect them to services.

Established resources through cooperative relationships with a wide range of area agencies including
local Police, Fire Department, Homeless Shelters, Addiction Treatment, Mental Health, Dlsablhty
organizations.

Created a network of landlords, connectmg the homeless to much needed housmg

Ability to multi-task and prioritize needs of clients.

Advocated for clients such as those experiencing trauma, persons with a disability or parents that
have children with special needs.

Well versed in State and Federal benefit programs including ESG

Resource acquisition and dispersal to those in need, such as food, clothes, furniture, and baby needs.
Outreach and networking.

Computer

L ]

Excel, Outlook, and other Mlcrosoft products
HMIS

Accurate and timely data entry.

Access and retrieve information.

Special Skills

Trauma Informed -

Medical knowledge and experience.

Created a vast network of people and orgamzatlons to obtain suppllcs for those in need.

Worked extensively with those experiencing neurological challenges such as those with traumatic
brain injuries or paraplegia.

Over 10 years of expcnencc doing information and referral in a wide range of settings.

Caregiver

Knowledge of the legal system, especially as it pertains to Family Law.

Experienced at intake, assessment, and referrals.

Schedule flexibility

Interpersonal

Compassionate

Non-judgemental

Work well under pressure. '
Ability to disseminate information quickly in a caring manner.

‘Maintain calm demeanor in a crisis.

Employment History

BM-CAP Street Qutreach 6/2019 - Present

Neurorestorative LNA 9/2014 — 5/2018

Timothy Daniel House CNA 6/2013 - 4/2014

Mary and Moore’s Nursing Home  CNA 11/2012 - 6/2013

Education

b

Certificate in Crises Prevention and Intervention
Certificate in Seizure Prevention
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SKILLS &
ABILITIES

EXPERIENCE |

EDUCATION |

CERTIFICATES |

SUSANNA ALLEN

I am knowledgeable with various computer programs, including Microsoft Office, HMIS and
ART, Advanced Reporting Tool. 1 maintain a strong attention to' detail, which includes .
organizing casc management and running the repores for the Belknap-Mertimack branch.

HOUSING STABILIZATION COORDINATOR — COMMURNITY ACTION
PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
10/2020 — Present

Organize and manage meetings with clients enrolled in the Rapid Rehousing Project, Managé
HMIS, run quarterly and yearly reports for che branch, communicare with Fiscal regardinig any
changes to payments, process and approve applications to specific programs or grants and
communicate with ICA, Insticure for Community. Alliances, abour rcporting‘dcndﬁnés and .
procedures. .

CREDIT & PAYMENT PROCESS]NC SPECIALIST- JLJILL GROUP
6/2006 — 10/2020

Communicare with our warchouse ro resolve any shipping or packing erross, operate a POS
system daily, train associates on standard refunding procedures, maintain the Suspended

. OI‘C{CI“}{CPOFE Hl'ld process 1'cfunds and C.‘(Ch.’lﬂgCS in OLiI' Cﬂl'ﬂl()g S)’S[’Cl]\.

SALES ASSOCIATE - VICTORIAS SECRET
7/2002 - 10/2011

Sold specific Launch items and credit cards, demonstrated proﬁcicncy using the POS system,
assisted management with handling money. organized the store in an appealing manner and
assisted customers. '

BUNAC WORK ABROAD — 2005
Pursued a work program to Edinburg]\, Scotland

YORK ST JOHN COLLEGE — Spring 2004
Studied Brrish Literature and Writing in York, England

KEENE STATE COLLEGE - 2001-2005

Obrained a B.A. in English Literature with a minor in Writing

Certified in the use of HMIS, Homeless Maintenance and Information System and ART,

Advanced Reporting Tool.



DocuSign Envelope ID; TF4E4741-3241-4870-AFEF-779E9FDB0969

Community Action Program Bclknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

Erhergency Solutions Grant Program
17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01-01-A03

Amendment
KEY PERSONNEL
. ) Amount Paid
Name Job Title Salary % Paid from . from this
- : this Contract Contract
Beth Heyward Community Services $59.007 10% $ 5.900.70
Director . ’ ' T
Freeman Toth Housing Stabilization $40.525 10% $ 4.525.00
and Homeless Qutreach ’ A
Manager
Susanna Allen Housing Stabilization $33.150 iOO% $33.150.00
Coordinator . ’ U
Kelsi Legsdin Housing Stabilization $33,150 50% $16,575.00
Homeless Outreach .
To be hired Housing Stabilization $39.000 |  100% $39,000.00
Coordinator - _
Tobehired ° | Administrative $23,400 100% $23,400.00
Assistant




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

L.ord A. Shibinctte

Commissioner ' 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
’ 603-271-9474  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Christine L. Sznianicllo Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964  www.dhhs.nh.gov
Director . .
. April 21, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Surunu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQU ESTED ACTICN

Authorize the Deparment of Health and Human Servnces Division of Economlc and
Housing Stability, to amend existing Sole Source contracts with one of the vendors listed
below, Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties Inc., for the provision of
. Emergency Solutions Grant Services, by increasing the total price limitation by $74,852 from
$3,245,497 to $3,320,349 with no change to the contract completion dates of June 30, 2021
effective upon Governor and Council approval. The original contracts were approved by Governor
and Council on June 29, 2016, item #16 and mos! recently amended with Governor and Council
approval on June 20, 2018 item #41, 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor Area Served Current Increase Revised
Code Amount (Decrease) Amount
Community Action .
Program Belknap , Betknap
and Merrimack 177203-7  and .
Counties Inc. - B003 Merrimack $403,895 $74,852 $478,747
Concord, NH Counties
03302 '
Community Action ,
: Rockingham ,
Parnership of | 177200- | .\ y'sirafford | $373,895 $0|  $373.895

Strafford County B004 - .
Dover, NH 03820 | = .| Counties
Southern New _
Hampshire . :
Services 1Too | Rogungnam | g373805|  $0|  $373,895
Manchester, NH - Y ' .
03103
Counties of.
Southwastern Cheshire,
Community 177511- Sullivan, -
Services Keene, P001 Grafton, $897,348 $0 5897'348.
NH 03431 Carroll and

Coos




" His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable. Council

Page2of4 .
The Froht Door S
156244- Greater
Agency Nashua, $598,232 $0 $598,232
” NH 03064 B0O1 Nashua Arga _ B
The Way Home Inc. i . . -
Manchester, NH | 166673 [ Hillsborough | g4 ggg $0| . $373.895
: B0O09 County
03103 -
Tri County . | Counties of: _
Community Action | 177195- Grafton, , ' :
Program, Inc. B009 Carroltand | - =§224'337 30 $224.337
Berlin, NH 03570 Coos _ .
Total: $3,245,497 | $74,852 | $3,320,349

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

.05-95-42-423610-7927 102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
" HUMAN SVCS DEPT, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, HOMELESS & HOUSING HOUSING -

SHELTER PROGRAM

- State Increased
sl | pcoum | OSSO | imber | Bugger | (OS6reased) | gcc
2017 | 102500731 | CONtracss forProg 42300311 $598,232 $0| $598,232
2018 | 102-500731 | ©OMrads forProg | 4309315 | 3598232 $0| $598,232
2019 | 102-500731 | CONracs for Prog | 42300319 | - $703,011 ©$0| $703,011
2020 | 102-500731 | Sontacts forProg |y pngnqy | 8673011 55,138 | $678,149
2020 | 102-500731 | Soniracts for Prog ‘4236931.5 0| 934857 594,857
2021 [ 102-500731 | GONASTOrPIOO | pgpy $673,011 $34,857 | $707,868
| Total | $3,245497 |  $74,852] $3,320,349
EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally apprdved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source.” As previously
stated, the original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 29, 2016, ltem #16.




His Exceilency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu-
and the Honorable Councit
Page dof 4

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the conlracl was originally approved as scle source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source. As previously
stated, the original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 29, 2016, Item #16.
It was then subsequently amended wilh Governer and Council approval on June 20, 2018 item
#41.

The purpose of this request is to include additicnal funding. thal was inadvertenily not’
included in the previous amendment, for the full time Data Analyst posilion with the Community
Action Program Belknap and Memmimack Counties Inc. The United States Department of Housing
and Urban Developmenl (HUD) requires that the Homeless Management Information System
{HMIS) have an identilied lead agency and Data Analyst, who is responsible for providing HMIS
support within the Department This position sarves to analyze end formulaie procedures and
confrols in order to increase the efficiency of the HMIS and provide technical assistance needed
for state and federal reporting requirements. This analyst provides this dala for all statewide
services for individuals who experience homelessness.

The populalion served are individuals and or families who are homaelass. andlor are al risk -
of becoming homeless. Approximately 1,000 individuals will be served from May 20, 2020 to
June 30, 2021.

These vendors assist individuals who are homeless or al risk of becoming hormnaelsss to
achieve housing stabilily through housing stability case management services which address
homeless- prevention, rapid re-housing and housing relocation, and stabilization services.
Services may include the provision of rental assistance, payment of rental application fees, last
month's rent, ulility deposits and payments, as well as moving costs. Housing slability case
management services include assessing, arranging, coerdinating, and monitaring the delivery of
individualized services to facltitate housing stability for a participant and or household currently
residing in permanenl housing, or to assist a participani and or household in overcoming
immaeadiate barriers to obtaining housing. :

The Departmenl will monitor conlracted sarvices using lhe following performance

. measuras:

. » Reduce the length of lime program pamc:panrs spend homeless. For a program 1o
meet this performance benchmark, households served by the program should
move into permanent housing in an average of 30 days or less. ' -~

"« Permanen! housing success rales. For a program to meet this performance
benchmark, at least 80 percent of households that exit a rapid re-housing program
. should exit to permanent housing. :
s Returns to Homelessness. For a program to meet this performance benchmark, at
least 85 percenl of households that exit a rapid re-housing program to permanenl
housing should nol bacome homeless again within a year.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Depariment -
would nol be able to provide the lechnical assistance needed to meet federal and state reporting
requirements, which could result in the loss of federal funds.

\

Area served: Statee'ide




His Excellancy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 4 of 4

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds, CFDA #14.231, FAIN #E18DC3300001

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not

be requested to support this program.
Respectfully submitted,

Ann H, Landry .
Associate Commissioner ’

The Dcpa;lmml of Heolth and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
. in providing opporiuuities for citizens'to achieve health and independence




New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

State of Now Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the Emergency Solutions Grant Prograrn Contract

This 2nd Amendment lc the Emergency Solutions Grant Program contract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amandment #27) is by and between the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Healfth and Human
Sarvices (hereinafter referred to as the "State” or "Department”) and Community Action Program Belknap
and Merrimack Counties Inc.. (herainafter referred to as “the Contractor®), a non-profit corporation with a
place of business at 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, NH 03302-1016.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Comract') approved by the Governor and Executive Councll
on June 29, 2016 {Item #16), as amended on June 20, 2018, (ltem #41), the Conlractor agreed to perform
certaln services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions lo

General Provisions, Paragraph #4, the Contract may be amended upon wrilten agreement of the parties

and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the pnce limitation, and mod:fy the scope of services 1o support
continued delivery of these services; and .

NOW THEREFORE, In oonslderatlon of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth hetein, the parties hereto agree to amand as follows: '

1. Form P-37, General Provislons, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$478,747 '
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1 9, Contractlng-Ofﬂoer for State Agency, to read:
' NathanD White, Director .
3. Form P 37. General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
603-271-9631.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsaction 2. 8, Paragraph 2.8.5
by replacing In its entirety with Exhibit A, Amendment #2, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of
" Work, Subsection-2.8, Paragraph 2.8.5, to read:

_ 2.8.5 Define detailed business information and application data requirements In coordination with
assigned slale agency staff, and in conjunctlon with approved data-base model and
analysis. '

5. Modify Exhiblt A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsectlon 2.8, Paragraph 2.8.7
by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit A, Amendment #2, Scope of Services, Sectlon 2, Scope of
Work, Subsection 2.8, Paragraph 2.8.7, lo read:

2.8.7 Collaborate with the NH HMIS representatives, slate HMIS Contract Manager, and BHHS
Administrator to Idenlify business objectives to meet state HMIS needs.

Community Action Program Baelknap and . o -
Momimack County Inc. Amendmont #2 , Contractor Initials_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

6. Modity Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.8, by adding Exhibit
A, Amendment #2, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.8, Paragraph
2.8.11, to read:

2.8.11 Conduct research and analysis of data and trends related to housing and homelessness.
7. Modity Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Amendment #1, Section A.2.6

Amount, by repladng in its entirety with Exhibit B, Methods and Condilions Precedent {0 Payment,
Amendmaent #2, Section A.2.6 Amount, to read:

$74779  SFY 2017

| §74779  SFY 2018

$104779  SFY 2019

$114,774 SFY 2020

$109,636 __ SFY 2021
$478,747  Total

8. Modify Exhibit B-2 Budget - Amendment #1 by delsting Itin its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit
B-2 Budget — Amendment #2, attached hereto and incorporated herein. ’

9. "Modify Exhibit 8-3 Budget - Amendment #1 by deleting itinits entiretylr and replacing it with Exhiblt
B-3 Budget — Amendment #2, attached hereto and Incorporated herein.

Community Action Program Belknap end —r
Marrimack County Inc. Amendmont #2 ' Contractor inifials ,= —
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

All terms and condltions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistant with this Amendment #2
remaln In full force and effect. This amendmant shall be effective upen the date of Governor and Executive
Councll approval. .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, tho parties hava'aat their hands as of the date written belbw,

" State of New Hampshire
Department of Heallh and Human Services

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP AND
MERRIMACK COUNTIES INC. -

2.21:2030 | Quj\mfg Gl
e y \
- | | e Bx CeLk v Director

Community Aztion Progrem Bolknap and C
* Merimack Gounty In¢. . Amendmont #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emargency Solutlons Grant Program

. The preceding Arnendrnant having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

‘Date Na 6:
. - Tl!l

| heteby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govermnor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire a! the Meating on: - (dato of meeting)

. . OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date’ ‘ ‘ Namae:
Title:

!
Conimunity Action Progrom Balkngp and .
Memimack County Inc. Amendment #2
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JefTrey Ao Meyers
Commissioner

Christine Tappan
Associate Commissioner

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
) . HUMAN SERVICES AND BEHA VOM HEALTH

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9546

1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9546

Fax: 603-2714232 TDD Access: 1-300-735-2964 .
www.dhhs.nh.gov

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

April 13, 2018

7 REQUESTED ACTION

(I

Authorize the Depariment of Health and Human Services,_Bureau of Homeless and Housing
Services, to exercise renewal options to existing agreemenfs and enter into one (1) sole source
contract with the vendors identified below, for the provision of Emergency Solutions Grant Services by
increasing the price limitation to by $2,049,033 from $1,196,464 to $3,245,497 and by extending the
completion date of some contracts from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2021 effeclive upon Govemor and
Executive Council approval. The Governor and Executive Council approved the original agreements on
June 28, 2016 (item #16). 100% Federal Funding

Vendor Current Increase Revised )
Vendor Numbe Location Modified {Decrease) Modified G&C Approval
r Budget Amount Budge!
Community Action . 2 Induslrisl Park :
" Program Betknap 177203- Drive . " )
- and Merrimack 8003 | Coricord, NH $149,558 $254,337 $403.895 | O: 06/29M16#16
Counligs Inc. 0;302
S . 642 Central .
Community Action | 177200- ;
Program of Strafiord 8004 Avgr;::g.agzoger. $149,558 5.224,337 $373,895 | O: 96129!18 #16
‘ . 40 Pine Streel .
Southem New 177198- p .
Hampshire Services 8008 - Mgncg:;a:égr, NH 5149.558_ $224,337 | . $373,895 | ©:06/28/16 #16
63 Community ' ' .
Southwestern 177511- . . : :
Community Services POO1 WBy.oigigl:‘le NH $448,674 $448.674 $897,348 | O. 068/29/16 #16
"} 7 Concord Straet . .
The Froni Door | 156244~ | * nyepya NH $149,558 $448674 |  $508,232 | O: 0672016 #16
Agency BOO1 03064 ’
_ 214 Spruce
. 166673 Street - .
The Way Home Inc. 8009 Manchaster, NH $149,558 $224 337 $373.895 | O: 06/20/16 #16
03103 - .
Tri County 177185 e
Community Action B009 Berlin. NH $0 $224,337 $224,337 | New Sole Source
Program, Inc. - 03570 _
" Totals: | $1,196.454 | $2,049,033 [ $3,245,497




His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councll
Page 2 of 4

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year 2019
and anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020 and 2021, upon appropriation of continued
funding with the ability to adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office
without further approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified. '

05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAM . .

Fiscal Class ‘ Title Current Increased Amount
Year Budget (Decreased)
. : . . Amount .
) 102- Contracts for ‘ : |-
2017 - | 500731 Program Services $598,232. $0.00 $598,232
T -1 " 102-- | Contracts for .
2018 . 500731 Program Services $598,232 $0.00 $598,232
. : 102- Contracts for . :
2019. 500731 Program Services $0.00 $703,011 $703,011
, 102- Contracts for . ~ -
2_020 500731 Program Services ) $0.00 $673,011 $673,011
102- Contracts for
2021 500731 Program Services $0.00 $673,011 $673,011
Total: $1.196.464 $2,049,033 §3,245,497
EXPI__ANATION

The request to enter into contract with Tri County is sole source because an increase in
administrative staffing and internal organizational structure has allowed for Tri-County to more
efficlently meet the needs of individuals and or families who are homeless and or at risk of becoming
homeless. Previously Southwestern Community Services had funding to serve the North Country
population and had formal agreements with Tri-County CAP to administer funds for the Northem region
of the state. Funds have been moved from Southwestern Community Services and moved into the Tri
County CAP ‘sole source contract to allow Bureau of Housing Supports to contract directly with Tri-
County CAP to serve the Northem population. No other agency at this time is able o serve the
homeless population in the northem region with the knowledge and resources that Tri-County CAP
POSSesses. T

’

Exhibit C-1 of the Tri County contract includes language that reserves the Department’s right to
extend contract services for up to three (3) years contingent upon the vendor providing satisfactory
services, availability of continued funding and approval from the Governor and Executive Council.

The purpose of this request is for the continuation of Emergency Solutions Grant Program
services to individuals who are hometess or at risk of becoming homeless. Services include
interventions that have a direct and positive Impact on individuals and families. The services provided
through these contract agreements prevent individuals, and families from becoming homeless and
assist.individuals who are currently homeless to regain housing.

These vendors assist individuals who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless achieve
housing stabllity through Housing Stability Case Management services which address the following
program components: i



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Countll

Page3of4 -
» Homelessness Prevention.
» Rapid Re-Housing.
» Housing Relocation.
« Stabilization Services.

Homelessness Prevention, Rapid Re-Housing, Housing Relocalion and Stabilization services may
include the provision of rental assistance, payment of rental application fees, last month's rent, utility
_ deposits and payments, as well as moving costs. Housing stability case management services include
assessing, arranging, coordinaling, and monitoring the delivery of individualized services to facilitate
housing stability for a paricipant/household currently residing in permanent housing, or to assist a
participant/household in overcoming immediate barriers to obtaining housing.

Vendors will refer eligible individuals to services, which may include but are not limited to:

Budgeting classes.

Job search assistance.
Interview skills training.
Resume writing classes.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2018, and the Depariment shall not be liable for any- payments for services provided
after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the
stale legisiature and funds encumb’ered for the State Fiscal Year 2020-2021 biennia.

All contracts being renewed include renewal language in Exhibit C-1,- Revisions to General
Provisions, paragraph 4 for up to three (3) years contingent upon satlsfactory ser\nces contlnued
-fundlng and approval from the Governor and Executive Councu

" The Department supports the request to renew services as the vendors have provided services
that have met federal and state statutory regulations to provide services to homeless and at risk
individuals in accordance to Emergency Solutions Grant provisions.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals and or.
households may nol receive interventions that have a direct and positive impact on housing stability
which may increase the risk of homelessness or unsafe living arrangements. Without such services
individuals may not receive rental assistance, utility payments and case management assistance in
order to overcome immediate barriers to obtaining housing. Addilionally without the Housing Relocation
and Stabilization services individuals may nol have the opportunity to remain stably housed though
effeclive case management. Individuals may not have referrals to life skill training such as budgetlng
and resume writing classes, job search assistance and inlerview skills training.

Area Served: Statewide
Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds CFDA # 14.231, FAIN E170C330001

in the event that federal funds become no-longer available, generat funds will not be requested
to support this program.
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Respectfully submitted,

Christine Tappan
Associate Commissioner

‘ Approved by:  { '
- fo R Jeffrey A. Meyers
/. Commissioner

. The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is lo join comniunilies and forilics
in providing opportunities for citizens to ochieve health ond independence.



NH Department of Health & Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

State of Now Hampshire
‘Department of Health end Human Services
Amandrnent #1 to the Emergoncy Solutions Grant Contract

This 1* Amendment to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program contract (hereinafter referred to as
*Amendment #17) dated this 22™ day of Februaiy 2018, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (herelnafter referred to as the "State” or "Department') and
Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties Inc., (hereinafter referred to as 'the
Contractor”), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 2 (ndustrial Park Drive, Coricord, NH
03302-1016.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by ihe Governor and Executive
* Councll on June 28, 2016 (Item #16), the Contractor agreed to perform certain sefvices based upon the
terms and conditlons specified- in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums
specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope: .of work, payment

" schedules and tarms and conditions of the contract;.and

WHEREAS, pursuant.to_Form P-37 General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General.Provisions, Paragraph 4 of the agreement the parties may amend and renew the agreement for
up to three (3) years upon written agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive
Counci), and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to exercise the renewal options available and increase the pnce limitation
at level funding; and

NOW THEREFORE, 'in consideration of the foregoin'g and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Coniract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: :

1. Form P-37, General Provision, Block 1.7, Com’p!etion Date, to read:
June 30, 2021. ' '
2. Form P-37, General Provisio,ns,. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$403,895. '
3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contractlng Officer for State Agency, to read:
E. Maria Reinemann Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.
4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number to read:
. (603) 271-9330. :

5. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section'1, Provisions Apphcable to All Services, Subsectlon 1.4, to
read:

1.4 For the purposes of this contract, the Contractor shall be identified as a Subreciplent In
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

6. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, S_ubsection 2.8,to read:

2.8 The Contactor shall ensure staffing during State Fiscal Year 2019 includes one (1) full

. time Data Analyst to analyze and formulate procedures and controls in order to increase
the efficiency of the Homeless Managemeni Information System (HMIS) and related
business operations. The Contractor shall ensure Data Analyst duties include, but are
not limited to:

Community Action Program Betkngp und Menimack Countles Inc.
Amendment i1

17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01 ' Pago 1015
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NH Department of Heaith & Human Services
Emargency Solutions Grant Program Contract

. 281

2.8.2

283

284
285

286
287
2.8.8

289

Gathering statistics from homeless service providers for the purpose of analyzing'
and developing reports for the Depafiment, as well as public and federal entities

Performing &ll duties in association with HMIS contract manager and
Departmental administrator to prioritize projects and compiete- business
objectives. ' '

‘Participating in meehngsld:scuss:onslcommlttees with key agencies, prowders

and community organizations.
Preparing answers to public mformation'in'quiries relative to homeless statistics.

Defining detailed bisiness information and application data requirements in
coordination with assigned Department staff. )

Analyzing system emors and problems, recorhmend solutions, and provide
technical assistance as necessary to end users. :

'Collaboratmg with HMIS representatives on the coordmahon and |mp|emenlahon

of system components, including screen forms and repods

Researching functional specifications for system changes, including but not limited
resource estimates.

Reviewing and analyzing HMIS statistical data, including data quality to ensure
reports are accurate and timely.

2.8.10 Collaborating. with Depariment staff and statewide homeless service providers on

data analysis, report production and data quality issues.

7. Exhibit B, Method and Condmons Precedent to Payment, Preamble Emergency Solutions Grant

to read:

A. Preamble -

Emergency Solutions Grant

A.1. The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A-
Emergency Solutions Grani

A.2. This ¢ontract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds
made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

A.2.1. NH General Fund:  Not Applicable

A.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%
A.2.3. CFDA# . 14.231 ' ‘
A.2.4. U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development

‘A25

Emergency Solutions Grant

Community Acllon Progrem Balknap snd Memimack Countles tnc.

17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01

Amendment #1
Pago 20l 5



NH Department of Health & Human Services .
Emergoncy Solutions Grant Program Contract

A26 Amount $74,779  SFY 2017
$74,779 SFY-2018
$104,779 SFY 2018
$74,779 SFY 2020
$74.779 SFY 2021
. $403896  Total
8. Add Exhibit B-1, Budget — Amendnent #1, '
9. Add Exhiblt B-2, Budget — Amendment #1.
10. Add Exhibit B-3, Budget - Amendment #1.
11. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements

Coriununlly Action Progrem Beiknap and Memimack Countles Inc.
' Amondment #1

17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01 . : Page 3 of 5
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NH Department of Health & Human Services
Emergency Sclutions Grant Program Contract

This amendment shall be eftective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshlire

! Do cnt of Health and Human Services
SoSHR ,D
Dete Christine TappanL

Associate Commissioner

Community Action Program of Belknap/Merrimack

5/02/2018 \
Dsate . J Jeanne Agri
LE  Executive Director
Acknowledgement; '

© State of _New Hampshice , County of -~ Merrimack __ on _5/02/2018 , before the undersigned officer,
personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven 10 be the person whose name Is signed .
above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above..

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

nt(){%ard Netary Public

Name and Thﬁ of Nola'y of Justics of the Peace

z Mmz.,gowmnmmxgm
e mmmw

-
Fal
-

iy

Community.Actlon Program Bolknap and Mentmack Countles Inc.
Amendment #4
17-DHHS-DCBGS-BHHS 01 Page 40l &



NH Department of Health & Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE RNEY GENERAL

o[4] o a
Date . | é;) ﬁi‘sw%w

t hereby certify that the foregoing Amendmant was approved by the Govemor and Execuﬂve Councll of the State
of New Hampshire at lhe Meeting on: (date of meeling)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

N

Date Name:
. Title:

Communily Action Program Belknap and Memimack Counlles Inc.
. ) Amendmend #1
17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01 . Paga 6ol §
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Moaw Hampshite Department of Health gand Mman Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR.EACH BUDGET PERIOD
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New Harﬁpshlre Department of Health and Human Services
' _ Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unaulhorized disclosure, -
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access of potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, *- Breach® shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. “Computer Security Incident® shall have the same meaning “*Computer Security
incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security incident
Handling Guide, Nationa Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Depariment
of Commerce.

3. *Confidential Information” or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medica), health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitatian, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information. '

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received frem or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
~ services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is govemned by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, bul is not limited to
Prolecied Health Information {PH1), Personal information (P}, Personal Financial -
Information (PF1), Federal Tax Information (FT1), Social Security Numbers {SSNj},
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subconlractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative dala in accordance with the terms of this Contract. -

5. "HIPAA" means the Healih lns'urance Portabllity and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder. .

6. “Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security palicy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unaithorized access to a
system or its data, unwanied disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to sysiem hardware,
firmware, or software- characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacemeni of hardcopy documents, and ‘misrouting of physical or elecironic
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

mall, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. *Open Wireless Network™ means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
.Technology -or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted Pl, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information” (or “Pi") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, soclal security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific mdmdual such as date and place of birth, mother s maiden
name, etc,

9. "Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

0. “Protected Health Information® (or "PHI™) has the same meaning as’ provlded in the
definition of “Protected Health lnformatlon in the HIPAA Prwacy Rule at 45 CFR. §
160.103. ’ i .

11: "Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protect:on of Electromc
Piotected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto. ‘ .

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed cor endorsed by a standards developing organization that.is accredited by
the American National Standards Inslitute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

}
A. Business Use.and Disclosure of Confidential (nformation.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or fransmit Confidential information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2.- The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V4. Lasi updalo 04.04.2018 Exhiblt K , Coniractor Inan!s%L
DHHS Information *

Socurlty Requirements .,
Pago 20! 9 Date . 210



New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Securlty Requlrements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in'response to a
subpoena, etc., without first nolifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure,

3. if DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PH{ in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contracior agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. -

8. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compllanoe with the terms of this
Contract.

Il. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that .sald
application's encryption capabllities ensure secure transmission via.the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmlmng DHHS
data. .

3. Encrypted Email, End User may only employ email to transmit Conﬁdenb‘al Data if -
emall is encrypted and being sent to and being recelved by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypled Web Site. If End User is erhpioylng the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

S. Flle Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit .
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mall Service, End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops' and PDA. If End User iis employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices mus! pb encrypted end password-protected,

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data vla an open
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New Hampshh"e Department of Health and Human Services
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DHHS Iriformation Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network .(VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual privale network (VPN)} must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. I
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypled to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

In. -RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Conlract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivalive in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

-A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
conneclion with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capablmles and includes backup
data and Disasier Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees 10 ensure proper security monitoring capabllities are In
place to detect potential security events that can.impact State of NH systems
andfor Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees o provide security awareness and edt_matfon for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard coples of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identi_ﬁed in section IV. A2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported arid hardengd operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anli-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware ulilities. The environment, as a
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o Exhibit K f
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whole, must have aggressive inlrusion-detection and firewall protection. .

6. The Coéntractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure. '

B. Drsposrtron

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or s
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon reguest or contract termination; and will

obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the -~

~ Contractor-or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of

New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure. wipe program

in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media

sanilization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Pubiication -800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines

! for Media Saritization, National Inslitute of Standards and Technology u. s
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and. certify in writing at

time: of the data destruction, and will provide written cedification to the Department

upon request. The written cerlification . will include all’ details necessary to

demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly -

evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
" Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding. ‘

3. Unless .olherwise specified, within thity (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confi dential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping. -

. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contraclor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contracior- will malntaln proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V4, Lasl update 04.04.2018 Exhibll K Contractor rmum%ﬁ__
DHHS Information ]

Securty Requirements o ' ' .
T Paesats WS

!



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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10.

11,

The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls Lo
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

The Contraclor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to

detect potential security evenis that can impact Stale of NH systems andlor_

Cepartment confidential lnformation for oontraclor provided systems.

The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecling Depariment confidential informalion.

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes thal defines specific securlty
expeclatuons and momtonng compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for lhe Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

The Contraclor wi[l work with the Department {6 sign and comply with -all applicable

State 6f New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policles

and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access o any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
syslem access being authonzed .

If the Department determmes the Contraclor is a Business Associale pursuant 1045
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contraclor, or the Depariment may request the survey be. compleled when the
scope of the engagemen! between the Department and the Contractor changes.

The Contractor will-not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Departmen! data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless

‘prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security. Office

leadership member within the Department.

Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall

'make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to

prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss fesulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
cosis associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due 10
the breach

12. Contractor must, comply with -all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and securlty of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions .of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS

. Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govem protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law. '

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthiorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of securlty requirements -
esiablished by the State of New Hampshlre Department of Information Technology.

‘ - Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doitivendorfindex. htm
- for the Department of Information Technology policies, gutdehnes standards, and
procurement: mfonnatlon relating to vendors

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notifi cation and incident
response process. The Contractor . will notlfy the State's anacy Officer, and-
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any secuiity breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that' connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply . with such safeguards as réferenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.:

b. ' safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic: devices/media contalning PHI, P, or
PFl'are encrypted' and password-protected.

d. ‘send emalls containing Confidential Informatlon only if encrynted and being
" sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

[y
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential information to the extent permitted by taw.
f.  Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually

identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be slored in an area that is

physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biomelric identifters, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transil, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above. ‘

h in ail other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as delermined by a risk-based
" assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the sne dlreclly or indirectly through
a thlrd party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves' the right to conduct onsite Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Coritract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regutations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of -any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in

-accordance with the agency’s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification

procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notmths!andmg Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and prooedures
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incldents;
. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

2
3. Report suspec‘ted or conﬁrmed Incidents as requlred in this Exhibit or P-37;
4

. Ildentify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to [ncidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation

. measures. :

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reporied, as
applicable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:
' DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues: o
. .. DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs,nh.gov
C. DHHS contact for Informalion Security issues:
DH HSIﬁfoanaﬁonSacurityOfﬁce@dhhs.nh.gov
D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
ODHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
_ DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
.- - ' OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
" BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 08301-3857

© 603-271-919G . 1-8G0-852-3345 Ext. 9196
Marilse Nihan, M.B.A : FAX: 603-271-5139 TDD Acccas: 1-800-736-2964 . www.dhha.oh.gov

Depuly Commissioncr

Jeffrey A Mcyers
Commissioper

o SHEC Approv ed

Her Excellency, G M Wood H
er Excellency, Goverrior ar_glaret ood Hassan Date G/a?//é

and {he Honorable Council
Sta,te House _ : " R ‘ (4
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 | om # 2

e el ; REQUESTEDACTION

Authonze 1he Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and
Housmg Servnces to enter intd agreements with the vendois listed below for the provneton of
‘ Emergency Solutlons Grant sérvices In an inount’ not to exceed $1, 495 592 efféctive. 2duly 1,
2016 or upon Govemor and Exécytive .Council -approval, whtchever is Iater through June 30

) 2018. 100% Federal Funds :

o Vendor o Y Vendor A"d?:treiss ] ' Amp‘qh‘t 1
) : : Number RN
Commumty ‘Actign.Partnership of 177203-B003" 2 Industrtql Park Drlve i | -$149,558
Belknap, and-Merrimack County . ' | Concord, NH 03302 - - o
Communlty Actlion Program of. 177200-B004 | 642 Centra). Avenue - $1 49-558
Strafford:Gounty- - * o o i fe om0 | DoverNH, 03820 . .o s |ooo
Easter $e@ot New Hampshlre : 177204-8005 (555 Auburn Street ' 3149 558
] . Manchester NH 03103
Harbor Homes tnc ) -155358-B001 45 ngh Street 3149.570
~ ' Nashua, NH-03060 . .
Southern New Hampshlre Services | 177198-B006 . ] 40°Pine Street $149,558
s Nanchester, NH. 03103 L
Southwestern CommUmty Servtces 177511-P001 | 63 Communlty Way $448,674’
’ Keene NK" "
The Front Door Agency . B 156244-8001 |7 Concord Street = - | $148;558
~ Nashua, NH-03064 - .
The Way Home, Inc. . 166673-B009 | 214 Spruce Street $149,558 |. -
i L : Manchester NH 03103 | .
' “Total: | $1, 49‘5 592

o v e EUNds to , SUpPOrt this_request are availab _Q.ULDQ _fo|lg_vmg _ac_c_o_un_g_m State Flscat Year .. . ____._
2017 and anttctpated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2018, upon the avallabthty and '
continued approprigtion of funds in the future operating budget with the ability to adjust
- énciimbrances bstween state fi scal years through the Budget 'Office wtthout Govérior and
Executlve Councul approval if needed and jUStlr ied.
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Her Exce{wn'cy. Gaovernor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Caouncil
. Page2ot3 .

- : * ‘ . . .
05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER

PROGRAMS
Fiscal Year Class Title . Amount
2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs. $747 796
2018 102-500731 Conlracts for Program Svcs. $747,796
Total: $1,495 592

p—

EXPLANATION

The purpose of these .agreements is to provide Emergency Solutions Grant Program
services, which includes interventions that have a direct and posilive impact on individuals and
familles. The services provided-through these contract agreements prevent individuals and

families, from becomihg Hémeless or the services assist individuals wno are currently homes 1o
. regain housing. . .

These vendors assist individuals who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless

ﬁhMmg‘sHhiW%asmgﬁMtﬁaMﬂmgemeWJMmmdmrﬁ—

the following program components:
° Home!essness Prevention. .
o Rapid Re-Housing.
o Housing Relocation.
‘o Stabilization.Services.

Homelessness Prevention, Rapid Re-Housing, Housing Relocation and Stabilization
services may include the provision of rental assistance, payment of rental application fees, last,
monti's rént, utlhty depdsits and payments, as well as moving costs. Housing stability casé
management serviges include assessing, arranging, coordinating, arid monitoring the delivery of
individualized services to facilitate housing stability for a participant/household currently residing
in permanent holsing, or to assust a pamc:pantlhousehold in overcoming immédiate bariefs to
obtammg housing.

Vendors will also ensure that elnglble individuals have access to servuces which may include -
but are not limited (o: . .

o Budgelmg classes.

s Job search assistance.
o Interview skil:ls training.
o Resume writing classes.

In 2015 the Emergency Solutions Grant served 2, 872 clients who were home!ess or at
imminent risk of homelessness: Of these 2,872 clients, 200 were veterans, 109 were chronically .
homeless, and 667 were in families with children. .

— o me) e —— - - — . g - = . - - - .. . - LY



Q.

" Her Excallency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

and [he Honorable Councul
Page 3 of 3

‘ A Request for Applications was posted to the Department's website from December 18,
2015 through February 5, 2016 to solicit vendors to provide Emergency Solutions Grant
services. The' Depariment received nine (8) applications in response to the Request for
Applicalions. A team of individuals with program specific knowledge and experience evaluated
the appltcatlons One (1) application received by the Department did not compont with the
services requested in the Request for Applications, Three (3) applications were from one (1)
vendor. The Department selected seven (7) vendors wnh which to enter inlo eight (8)
agreements. The bid sheet Is attached.

This contract contains language that reserves the Department's right to renew services
for up to three (3) additional years, subject to the continued availabllity of funds, satisfactory

- performance of services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, Individuals and -
families may not receive the emergency housing assistance necessary to prevent or reduce lhe

risk of homelessness. .

Area Served: Statewide p
Source Of Funds: 100% Federal Funds CFDA #14.231

in the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program. )

. , Respecﬂullym
) . . . . P

Marilee Nlhan, MBA
- Deputy Commissioner

Approved by:

Jeifrey A, Meyer
Commissioner

The Dapartment of Heelth and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and Independence.



New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Humlan Services
Office of-Business Operations.
‘Contracts. & Procurement Unit--
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b o Summary Scoring Sheet
T ' ; T

Emergéncy Spiutions Giant{ESG) * - #.17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-RFA-01

I RFA Name . . -*  RFA'NuUmber - : . - .ReviewerNames
l o || MelssatHatiield, BHHS Program
L "+ Specialist )
. . . ’ ‘| "Maximum 1" -Actual. - Jute Lane, BHHS pragram
.. Bidder Name - ‘PassiFail Points _ Pojnts 2. Specialis! .
Community Action Partnership of Strafford . Krsti Trudel, Program Planning &
% Gounty - S : 185 | b3 3. Review Specialist
Community Action.Program, Belknap-Merrimack B § ' :
2"Counﬁqs. Inc. , 165 RN 4.
3. EasterSeals NH, Inc. ] 165 1'v|51 - 5.
1 W ; ' : 1 6
- Harbcr'Home"s, Inc. . . 165 . 164 . .
. P ' '
5. Headrest, Inc. - i 165 o | [£
1 - . I .
7 Southern NH Services ) . . 185 158 .
1 - .
. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. - E - ’ )
7. Cheslitre ‘ 165 154 g
P 8 ,'$outljmféste—m Community Services, Inc. -
" Sullivan’ . . 165 ° 154
4 g The Bridge House, Inc. . : e ) 65 | 111
* 10, . -
! TheFront Door Agency ) 1 . 1 161
BT : )
. The Way Home 165: 162
1
H L]
1
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- QM NUMBER P-37 ( version 5/8/15)

Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program (17-dhhs-bhhs-rfa-01)

Hptlce: This agreeniont and ali of fzs artachmients shall become publlc upon subrisslon to Governor and |
Executlve Coundl for approval. Any information thaeis prl'.'at.'e. confidentlat or proprlewary must
be clearly Identiffed to the agency and agreed to In wriding prior co tipning the contract; T

, AGREEMENT - -
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as foliows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS '
1. _IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 Stalc Agency Name 1.2 Siate Agcncy Address .
Depanment of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street Concord, NH 03301 -3857
1.3 Contraclor Namo . : 1.4 Contractor Address -
Community Action Program of o - | PO Box 1016, 2 Industrial Pairk Dnve Concord,
Belknap/Merrimack County ' " | NH 03302- 1016 . C o i
1.5 Qontrac_tot'_l_?.l-]lone Nu:mbcr 1l_6= Accouni Number: : | 1.7 Completion Datc 18 .E(-i.ce-l_,imi'w:lion
,503a235-3295 . | 05-95-42-423010- June 30, 2018 - $149,558
' . 7927 102-500731 . e )
19. Ccntmctmg Oﬁ' icer for Statc Agcncy ' . 1.10  State Agency Tclephone Numbcr :
Eric D 'Borﬂn LT .. | 603-271-9558 .
LY C_?pn:a_lclo Signature: ‘ S 112 “Name and Title 61‘-Contm$f$ignﬁft§ry

LA

Ralph Lllﬂcﬁcld _Executive Duector

findicigdin blocking, <. - . — . .

-r

113 Acknowfcdgcmam State bf NH; ~ ,County uf _Mgmm_ask

On Mny 17, ‘20],_6 bcfprc 1hc u.ndemgncd oﬂicer pcrsonally appeared the pcrson ldennﬁcd in block 1. 12 or. sahsfncmnly
proven‘i, be: thf;. pcrson whosc nnme is slg;nod in bloek 1. t1,:and ecknowicdged lhnl shé cxecutcd thls documaut in the capacuy

it 13 1 Smgﬁamn:‘of Notqry Bubhc or Jusm:c of the chcc

N -/} KATHY L, HOWARD Notary Publw NﬂHmpshix . T
- ."'-' L WCmm!waaEanOdubv lé 2010 v . i ,
[Se? ‘
1132‘ Name, und;Fnl?ofNomryor Iusuceot‘tthence ) S cel T L,
i Kal‘hyL Howard Notary Bublic : i S . AR o
T. l4 State Agency Signawre . .15 Name and Titte of State. Agéncy Signatory -

’Mm&u ’ﬂ,\awf. upu}a (Irmumtmm BH’H‘S

1 16. Appruva! by, t!'rc N.H. Dcpnrtmcnt of Admuustmhon Dmslon of Personde| (1 if applicable)

By._ e, . . " Director, On: .

117 Appmvul by the Auomcy General (‘Form Substnncc aod Execution)

— - m— w mas - —

T o i

-

1.18 Approva'l by the GovenUand Exccl(t)vc C||

[

On:

By:.

Page 1 of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO -

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“Siate™), engoges
contractar identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perfonn,
and the.Contractor shall perform, the work of sale of goods, or
both, identified end more particularly described in the altached
EXHIBIT A which is :ncorporn!ed hcrcm by reference
(“Scmces")

3. EFFECTIVE, DATR/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any' provision of this Agrecement to the
contrary, and’ sub)ect to the approval of* the Governor and
‘Exeautivé Coudci) of the. Staic . of New :Hampshire, if
. applicable, this Agreement, and. all obligations of. the partics

_hereunder, shall become effective- on the date the Governor
-and Execulive Oounctl approve this Agrcemcm as indicated @ _

"block 1.18, tmidss no such approval js fequircd, in which case
the Agrecmcm ‘SHall becothe ¢ffective’ on the dafc “the
.Agrccmcnt 1s. slgned by the Stale Agency. as shown in. black
1.14 (“Effective Dite").
3.2 If the Contraclor commences the Scrvices prior-to the
. Eﬁ'ochv; Datc all-Services performed by the Contractor prior

ntuhalLbc.perfouanlc.ns!mLum.——Anfommquthmnmao»M&uon,-lhe—@éntrac:or—shall-—-—-

'Contmctor, and ini*the. cycnl that this Agreement does not
become effective; -the Siate ’shall have ‘no- llabnhty to the

Contractor, mcludmg without limitation, any obligation to pay

the Contractor for-any tosts incurred or Scrvices performed.
Contracior must complete all Sc.rwccs by-the Complctson Date
specified in blgck 1.7. .
4. ' "CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any. provision of this Apreement to, the
contrary, all. obligations 4f, the State hereunder, including,
without’ Ilmumlbﬁ itié oontmuance of paymients hcrcundcr are
contmgcnt ‘upoil hie availability and continuéd appropnaluon
of funds; and in .ng, event: shall the -State be liable.for' any
. poyments hereunder in exccss of such available appropriated
funds. In the evenl of a reduction or ‘termination of
nppropnatcd funds, the State shall have the rlght to withhold
payment until such funds become available; if-ever; ond shal
have (he. right to terminafe this Agreement immediaiely upon
giving the Contractor aotice of such termination. The State
shall not 'be rcqulrcd to tmnsf:r funds [rorn any other account
" to the Account |dcnuf ed in. bloék 1.6 in the eveat funds'in that
Account are- rcduoed or, unavmlnble
L CONTRACT
PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, mcthod of paymeni, and terms of
payment are ideutified "dnd more perticularly ‘described in
EXHIBIT B which'is incorporated herein by reference.

Pmcmmcn "Lu'mmnom

5.2 The _poyment by-the State.of-the contract price shali be the

only and the complete reinburiement to the Contractor, for al]
cxpenses, of whaievetnatire incurred by (he Contractor in the

. pérfonnance hereof, and-shal] bc the only-and the. complcte '

compensation to-the Conlmctor “for, the Services. The -State

. provisions "of Execulivé

5.3 The State reserves the right to offsct from any amounts
otherwise payablc 1o the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitied by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or eny other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithsianding gny provision in this Agreement to the

contrary, and notwithstanding 'uncxpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH: LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL, EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. .

6.1 In connection with the pcrformanCc of lhc Semccs, the
Contraclor shall comply with ali siatutes,. Iaws rcgulnuons,
and orders of federal, state, county or mumctpnl authorities
wmc.h rmposc any obhgatlon or duty upon the. Contraclor.
ingluding, but nat limited to, civil nﬂll.s and equal Gpportudity
laws. This may include the requirement to ul]hzc pixiliery
gids and services 1o ensure that persans with commumcnt:on
disabilities, ‘including  vision, hearing and speech, tan
cdmmunicate with, recéive information from,, and convey

comply ‘with all applicable copyright taws,

6.2 During the term of this Agrecment, the Conlrlactor shall
pol. discriminale agamsl cmployecs, or apphcants “for
cmployment beceuse: of race, color, ﬂ:!lglOﬂ creed, 2gc, sex,

handicap, sexunl orientation,-or national origio and will take

affirmative nelion to! prcvcnl such discrimination..
6.3 If this Agreemert is funded in any. part by.monies of thc

made hercunder, excéed the Price Limilation set forth in block

United States, the Coantractor shall-: r.omply Wwith al): the -

‘Order No
Opportunity”), as

"11246™ " (“Bqual

Employment .supplemented . by | the

regulationt of the UnllL.g] Stelcs Dcpartmenl of, Labor- (41' ‘

C.F.R. Part 60}, and with finy ‘rules, rtguhmons and guidelings,

as the State of New- Hampshire or the Unitcd States issiie to
implerent.thése rt_gulalmns The Coniractor furthér agreds to

permit the “State “or. United States JAccess to any of the

Contractor's books; récords and accounts for-the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with a1l rules, rcgulatwns n.nd orders,
and the covcnanls térms and.conditions of this Agreement

cow
7. PERSOVN'EL .
7.1, The Contractor shall ot ils owm expcnse pmwdc all

- personnel necessary to perform_the Services. The, Gontragtor

warrents (hat ali personnel engagcd in the, Services shail be
qualificd to perforrn the-. Sérvices, . and “shall: be pmperly
licensed and olhcrwxse nulhonzcd 10 do’So undér sl nppllcable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized io wrmng. during thc term of

. this' Agrecment, nnd for o period of six ©) months ofer the

Compleiion Date i block 1.7, thé Contractdr shall net turc
and shall not, permit any subcontrnctor or other person; firm or
corporafion, With whom it is engagcd in a combidcd, cffort:to
pérform the -Secvices to- hm:, _any- person ¢ ‘who-is: o~ State _
cmployee or. offi cial, - who- ig: matcnully invdived.-in the:

shall have no habll:ly to the Comractor other than the contract procurement, ndrqng_xstmhou or performance of This
T .piice, . R .- "
Page 2 of 4
Contractor Initials
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. .dcicrmmcs tbat the Contrector has <cured tbe, Evcnt of Default’

This provision shall survive Lenmination of this

L

Agreemenl.
Agreement.
7.3 ‘The Contrecting Officer specified in black 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispule concerning the.interpretation of this Agreemen,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shail be final for the State.

-

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES,

8.1 Any onc or more of Lhe following acls or omissions of the
Controctor shall consntute an event of default, hereunder
(“Event of Dcfuull")

8.1.1, fa:lurc to.perform the Services sansfaclonly or on

“ schedule;
.8.1.2 failure 1o submit any report required hercunder; and/or

8.13 feilure to-pérform any-otber covenant; term or condition
of this Af,rrccmcnt

8.2 Upon, the' ogcumenge. of. dny Evcnl of Defanlt, the State.

may také any one,.or morg,.or gll, of the follomng actions:

8.2.1 give the Coutmctor 8 writtén notice specifying the Event

of Default’ a.nd requmng it to be remedied within, in the

of, Dcfault and: suspcudmg.nll paymenis to be: made, under this
Agrcémcnt and: ordcnna l}lql the portion of ‘the contraét price

wbzch Mould olbcmrlsc uccrue to the Contragtor, duting. the-

pcnod from the dete:of syéh nouce unt.l such-time as the Stote

_ shall peverbe pa:d 16 1hc Gontractor;. .-

8.2.3 sets oﬁ' ngmnst any other obhgatmns the Smte rnny owe (0

the, Contmcior.ﬁ.ny.dumagqs ‘the State suffers. bx reason.of any
Bvent.of Default; aq;l!or .
8.2.4 treal the. Agmemcnl as- breachod and pursuc nny of is

) rerncdtcs al lnw or m cquny, or both.

9, DATAJACCESSICONF(DENTIALITW )
pnzsznv.«nov

9.1 As used in this Agrcchcnt, ‘the word “dula“ shall mean all,
mfonnaubn and.- lhmgs deva]oped or obtained during the -

pcrformnncc of;. or. acquired or dcvclopcd by reason of, this

-Agrw-ncnl mcludmg, but not-limited to, ‘al} studies, reports,
. files, formulac, surveys, maps, charts, sound. recordmgs, video

rwordmgs, plctonal rcprbduchons drawmgs, nna!yscs,
graphic. rcpre.sentatmns compulcr programs, computcr

prmloul.s. ‘notcs, Icltcrs, mcmornndn, papers, and documents,

all whether finished or unfinistied. .

9.2 All ‘dsta and .any’property which, has been reccived from

the Statg or purchascd with funds prowded for that purpose

under- thls-Agrccmcnl- shill-bé-the- ‘property-of: the-Stale;-and-

- absence, of 2 grester or ledser specification.of: timé, thmy (30):
. days from the dnte of lhc nonbc and if the Event of Dcfnull 13
: not»umcly remcd_:‘sd termipate this Agrccmcnt, cﬁectwe two
(2) duys after-giving the, Conmctor notice of iermination;
832 give.the’ Contractor & riltenwnotice specifying the Event,

10. TERMINATION, In the event of an early terminetion of
this. Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contracior shsll deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fiftcen (15) days after the date of
terminstion, a report (“Termination Report’”) describing in
detail ati Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matier, content, and number of copies of the Termioation
Report shall be identical to those .of any Final .Rcport
described i'rl the attached EXHIBIT A. ' .

1L CONTRACI‘OR'S RIJLATION TO THE ST A'J'E

the performance of. this Agreemcat the Cootractor s in ail
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an cployce of the-State. Neither the Contractor.nor any of its
officers, cmployees ngcnls or mernbers shall have-suthority.to
bind the Statc ot receive any benefits; workers’. compénsdtion
6 other enidluments- provndcd by the Slatc to 1ts emp]oyocs

12 ASSIGNMENTIDELEGATIONISUBCONI’RAC!‘S.
Thie Controcior shall not assign, or dthérjse;trensfer- any
interest-in Whis Agleclncnl »ynhout he. pnor wnttcn ootite apd )
consent of. thic Stafc. - "Nénc- of the : Services ‘shall_'be
subcontractéd by: the Conl.ractor \Anlhout the: pnor wrtttcn
consenl of lhc Suuc . . .

13 INDEMNIFICATION 'I'hc Conm:ctnr shall dcfend
irigdemnify end hold harmics; the: Smlc its Tofficers- and
employees, from and against:any aod oll'loises suffercd by the
State; its ofﬁccrs -and employocs nnd _py.and’ alh c!auns,
liabilities-or- penaincs usscrﬂ:d sgainst the State;’ its, officers

and employees,. by orion.bichalf of, any: pefson, on account of

based or- rcsulimg from ansmg-out'of (or: which- may be:
claimed to .arisc.out of). the acts” of -omissions of" thé
Contractor: , Notwnhslandmg ‘the.. forcgomg, nqthmg hzrcm
conlalnad shail be ‘deemed, lo “constitute. a.waiver. of- the
soveieign. lmmuuuy of the Sta!c, wh1ch lmmumty is hencby
réséived to.the: Stnlé Thls \covcnnnl ‘i paragraph 13 shall
survive.the tcrmmahon of thls Agreement v et

14 INSURANGE: . * +* . .

- 141, The Conrructor shall St :ts solc cxpcnsc,mblnm nnd

mainlain.*in force nnd “shall. rcqunre sADY subeonlmclor or .

' assignee fo " obtain: "and rnamtam in! forcc .the follomug

-

shall be returned to the Stite ‘Opon démsnd or wpon”
*terminatian of. lhls Agrecment, for any reason. .
9.3 Confidentiality of dnla shall be goveined’ by N.H' RSA

chnptcr ‘91-A or oLher existing low. .Disclostre of duta

requires prior writien approval of the State,

¢
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.

insurance: ot .
14.1.1 comprehensive: gcncrnl Jiability msurn'nce ag;unsh a[l
claims of bodily :njury, dedth: or‘propcny -damage, in amounls
of fot Iéss than.§l: 000,000 per occurrencc nnd S?.,ODO 000
apgrepate; dhd”

14.1.2 specnal caus¢’s of loss covcmgc foml covcnng “2ll.
property subject 16 subparhgmph 9.2:herein, inan. umouii nov’
less than-80%-of:the-whole- replacemeiit:valuc of the: property—
14:2 The policies descriticd in subparagroph 14:1 licteia shall
be-on policy ‘forms and cndorscmenu approved: | for usc.in the.
Stite of . New Hampshlrc by “ther N;H. Dcpartmcm of
Insurance, and issuc: by insurers licensed in the-Stafe of New
Hampshire: i, s .

I
T
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14,3 The Comiractor shall furnish 10 the Contracting Officer

identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for #ll insurance requircd under this Agreenent.
Contractor .shall oiso furnish to the Contracting Officer
identificd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
tnsurance for all cenewal(s) of insureoce required under this
Agreeinent no later than thirty (30} days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance polities. The ccrtificate(s) of
insuroncerand any renewals thercof shall be aftached and are
incorporated “herein by reference.  Each certificatce(s) of
insurance shall contain o clouse requiring the insurer’ to
provide the Contsacting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his

or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written

notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

t5. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this ogreement, the Contractor agrecs,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is ip compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapler 281-A
(“Warkers' Compensation”).

152  To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of. N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall

and maintain, ‘payment of Workers' Compensalion in
connection with- activities which the person proposes to
undcriake pursuant to this Agreement.
fumnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his

or her suceessor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
monner described in NJH. RSA chapter 281-A and aony

pplicable renewal(s) thercof, which shall be attached and ere
incorporalcd herein by reference.  The .State shall not be
responsible for .pdyment of any Workers' Compensution
premiums or for any other claim or bencfit for Contractor, or
any subconiractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No feilurc by the Statc to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed s waiver of its rights with regard {o that Bveot of
Defoult, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce miny Tvent of Defoult shall be deemed a
whaivér of the right of the Statc 10 enforce cach and ull of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Befault
on the part of the Contrector.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shal) be decmed 1o have been duly delivered or given at the
tisne of wailing by certificd mail, postage prepaid, in & United

_ States Post Office addressed to the partics at the eddresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, hereim.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be emended,’

Contractor shall .

Y

waived or discharged-only by an-instrument in wriling signed -

by the parties hereto and only afler approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Txecutive Council of the State of New Hampshire -unless no

Document Version 05/15 '

such approval is required under the circumsiances pursuant to

Siate Iaw, nule or policy.

19, CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agrcement shall be construed in accordance with the
Jows of the State of New Hainpshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the partics ond their respective
successors and ossigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties lo express their mulual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or.

_ in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto da not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agheement shall not be
copstrued to conl'cr.any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement

- are for reference purposes only, and the words contained

therein shal) in rio way be held to explein, medify, emplify or
gid ‘in the interprefation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agrecment,

Aracioyr. or-AsSiEnec-10-seoure————213—SEEGIAL-PROVISIONS.—Additional-provisions—set———— '

forth in the attached EXHIBIT € are incorporated hercin by
reference. ‘ ' -

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdittion to
be contrary to any stetc or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will' remain in full force and
effect, c '

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrcement, which may

" . be execuled in a number of counterparts, cach of which shall

be deemed an original, constitutes the entirc Agreeroent and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes afl prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto. )
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New Hampshire Dapartment of Heélth and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Exhibit A L

Scope of Services

1. ‘Provisions Appl:cab1e to All Services

1.1, For the purpose of this Contract, any reference to days shall be a reference to business
days.
1.2. The Contractor shall provfde services to individuals and families in the ‘Counties of

Belknap and Merrimack who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. in
accordance with 24CFR Parts 81 and 576.

1.3. The Contractor shail submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they witl provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to ensure  meaningful
access to their programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date. .

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall determme Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) eliglbility for
individuals identified in Section 1.2, which includes but is not {imited to:

211, Determining individuai and family income eligibility in accordance with U.S.
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regulations for ESG, in accordance with
24.CFR 576. Income eligibility must be assessed every six (6) months of
program participation. The Contractor stiall ensure annual income: -

2.1.1.1.  Includes all-earned and unearned income from all sources lhak go to
any family member.

2.1.1.2." Is calculated by annuahztng current Inoome to determine projecled
annual income.

2113, Is adjusted according participant income increases/decreases. The
Contractor-shall ensure all prevention participant households report ali
income changes within 30 days of the change occurring.

2.1.2. Documenting eligibility for households applying for Rapid Re-Housing and
Homelessness Prevention services according 1o HUD guidelines, which includes
but is not limited to collecting and documenting information regarding:

2.1.2.1.  Ilmmediate risks/crisis to individuals and families applying for
assistance to determine if steps are needed to avert physical or
psychological danger or threat-of immediate housing loss.

21.2.2. Basic demographtc and contact information, which mcludes but is not
limiled to name, age, dependenis, other family, current location,
contact phone numbers and address

2.1.23. Problems as defined by participants that affect housing, such as late
e et — e e e mm = - .1ent,landlord.. problems,,credlt hsstory,_cnmlnal history,.employment__.________
and income. .

2.1.2.4. Solutions as defined by what the participant wanls or requests from
’ what Is available to him/er.

' Community Action Program of BelkaspMrmimack Ceunty Contractor Inftals
€N A _ )
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2.1.2.5. Eligibility information, including but not limited to, venfication of literal
homelessness or imminent risk of homeless. Documentation must be
in accordance with HUD's preferred method of verification as noted in
24 CFR 575.

21.26. Additional risks and vulnerabllttles for prlorttizmg purpgses, whtch
include, but are not limiled to, severe rent burdens, domestic vrolance
‘priof incarceration or instititiondlization, -health and mental heatth
issues; substance:- abuse -and other . specn"c houslng retentron
barriers. .

T 24.2 7 ~ Written third-party verification of rental arrearages notices of svictjon
S, homelessness or utrlnty shuloff notices: © - : el

2.2, The Contraclor- shati conduct Housrng Relocation and Stabrllzatlon (HR::) actrvrtres
which Includes bul.is not limited to inspecting each unit to epsure housing' meets HUD
Habitablhty Standards, using, HUD's Checkhst for Habrtablhty Standards. Addntlonatly,

= the Contractor shall ensure

2 2 1. Occupred housing meets State and local housing requrrements Includlng ‘but'not
. llmtted to oomphance with: .

2. 2 1% . Af apphcable state and Iocal housing codes..
' 2272 Llcensmg requtrements "
2.2.1 ._3.- All reqmrements regardmg the congition, of the structure
221 4. Al reqdirements regardmg the operation of {he housmg or services.

", 2.2.2. Occupied houslhg shall.meet the Lead-Based Paint Potsoning Preventioh’ and
"~ Disclosure Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846), the: Resudential Lead Based Paint Hazard
. Reduction Act of 1992 (42 U.§.C.4851-4856), .and: implementing regulattons fn

CFR partas 5ubpartsA B, H J K, M, dnd R. '

2. 3 The Contractor shall provide fi nancral assistance: to etlglble |ndw|duals Identified in
Sectlon 2.1, for sefvices that include, but are not I:mrted tor,

2 3. 1 Rental apphcatron fees.

232 Secunty deposns

23 3 Utllrty dePDSIlS and payments
2 3.4. Last month s rept. A
2.3.5. Movmg costs

2.4.The Contractor shall prowde ellgrble individuals and famlhes with Tenant- Based Rental

Pt

A55|stance (T BRA) Wthh inclides but is not limited to:

. 2 43, A mammum amoupt of $9, 000 in rental assrstance to be applied toward mionthly
_ ' rént andlor rental arrearages ’ r
_—a— . 242 Rental assistance over.no more.than. a pine (9) month perrod Tne Contractor

__-..--.-_-..-—.—A-—-.--q—pu i s = Wyt e —— —— A — - o wbud oy ——
A shall :

Cumn’u.ldmhmnuemmCuﬂr
Exhith A -
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24.21. Enler mto a rental assistance agreement with the owner/landlord on
' behalf of the program participant, eénsuring that the Contractor ‘
receives a copy of all general notices, complaints and notices of
eviction from the tandlord/owner.

2.4.22. Ensure each program participant obtains a written lease for the rental
unit, unless the assistance provided is solely for rental arrears.

"24.2,3. Provide rental and all. forms of: financial assigtance directty-to’ the
landlord, utility or other third-party on behalf of the participant

. 2..452.4. Ensure fhat rental assistance does not-exceed the Fair Market Rent
established by HUD, as provided under 24 CFR part 888.

2425 Ensure rental units comply with. HUD's . standard of rent;
" reasohabieness, as established in 24 CFR 982.507. Co

2.5. The Contractor shall’ provide eligible individuals and familiés with housing’ stablhty case
managemen. Ehglble services cogts must comply with all. HUD regulahons in 24. CFR-
576. 105 whichi includes, but is not Inmlted to:

'25.1. Developing Housrng Budget Plans for all elrg:ble rndnnduais usmg the. Information
identified in- Section 2.1.3 to ensufe pamclpanls have, the ability to- sus\am the
cost of the housung on along- ten'n basls once the assistance or subsidy ends,

L 2. 5 2. Assess arrange coordrnate and monitor the delrvery of Indwiduahzed sérvices to
facrlltate housing stability for prograin par‘trc:panls who resude in, permanent
housmg, or assist a program pamcnpant in. overcomrng |mmed|ate barrlers to
obtammg housung oo T ; e Y

et

26 The Contracigr-ghail-make avallable on-golng housing stablhty case managemenl for
. §ix (6) months aﬂer Tental assistance- has ended. . o .

.2 7 The. Contractor shall ensure sufficient tncensed staff to prowde clrent level daia |nlo the
- New Hampshlre Home!ess Managemenl Informatron System (NH HMIS) Pro;ects
under lh:s oontracl must be fam:lrar wﬂh and follow NH HMIS poltcy (h [;g, Mnh-

3. Reportlng Requlrements S

3.1. The coniractor shiall prowde quarterly- reports using HMIS daia ‘which rnctude. number
of entnes intg, RRH, Prevention and- related costs for aihservuces by the 10th day

) followrng the. end of lhe quaner N .
4, Dalwerables of Services L ' .o

4 1 The Conlraclor shall prowde housmg slabihzatuon case managemenl lo a _minimum of

. sixteefi’ (16}- households
4, 2 The Con!racior shall successfully and rapidly re- house ten (1 0) househo!ds in safe and
—-- -rsustalned h0usmg— : C e ——iie — —e———

4 3. ,]’ he Contraclor shall ensure all chent level. data in Sectlon 2. 7 is enlered Into NH HMIS
wnthsn five {5) days of lhe c!ienl’s entry into the program .

oumm.umbnmmolnmwsmmm-y - G vitws ¢ E né' d
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions appty to the scope of servicés as delaned in Exhlbnl A-
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: " Not applicable
Federal Funds: 100%
CFDA#: 14.231
Federal Agency: - us. Department of Housmg & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant
AI.HUUHi. - _ $7HTTO-SFY-2017
$74,779 SFY 2018 ' *
$149,558 Total

1. Subject to the Genera! Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
corpletion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees o fund
the Contractor for Rapid Re-Housing, Homelessness Prevention and Housing Stabilization
utilizing funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development .
(HUD) Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed $149,558.

. 2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1, Audited Financia} Repori: The Audlted Financial Report ‘shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement 2 CFR part 200, Three (3) copies of the
audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty {30) days of the completicn of
sald report to the State.

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requnrements of 2 CFR part 200, within mnety
(90) days after the Completion or Temination Date, one copy of an audited financial
report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing the
guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of tpg—: United States.

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Cosls" ;shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly-incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable-for payment in. _
accordance wnth 24 CFR 576 as well as allowabie cost standards set forth in 2 CFR
part 200 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines

CAP Belinophlesimack Caunty CGehitit O
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established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2
CFR part 200. :

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs inciuding all
costs to the Contractor shail be submitted on a monthly basis by the Contractor for the
amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as
designated by the State which shall be completed and signed by the contractor. The
Contractor shall provide detailed financlal expenses information with all payment,
requests ona monthly basis. . )

3.2.1.The Contractor shall submit reimbursement documentation of expenditures of Federal
funds at the time of. seeking. relmbursement for costs. In no evant shall the fynds
provrded exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions.
Upon release -of addilional Federal funding {o the State, the Contractor may Invoica for
balance of contracted amount as specrﬁed in block 1.8 based on documentatron of
expendttures - .

3.3. Rewew of the State Drsallowance of Costs: At any ttme dunng the performance ot the
Serwces and . upon recelpt of the termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State rnay review.all Project: Costs incurred by the Contraclor and all paymenls made to

- dale; Upon such review; the: State shall disallow any items' of expense which. ara’"not
deterriiiied to be aliowable. or are determined t6 be in excess of actual expendrtures
- and”"shall, by wntten nottoe specifying : the disallowed expendltures Inform the
Contractor of any such dlsallowance If the State dtsatlows costs for which payment has
not béeh made, it shall refuse 16 ‘pay sich costs. Any amounts “awarded to' the
Contractor pursuanl to this Agreement are subject 1o recapture pursuant to 24 CFR
Subsectlon 576.55. - 3

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS

- 4.1, The State agrees to prowde payment for actual costs up fo $149 558as deﬁned by HUD .
. under- the provisions: and appllcabte regulations at 24 CFR 576 and'24°CFR part.91.:-

4, 2. The' Contractor may_amend the contract budgel through ling item Ingreases, decreases

or the. creallon of new lirfe tems. provrded these amendments do not exceed the contract
pnce Such amendments shall only be: made upon written request to and: wntlen approval

' from the:State. - = . - . : . v
43 Conformanoe o 2 CFR part 200 Grant funds are to. be used only in accordance
with pfocedures; requirements and. pginctptes specd' ed.j in 2 CFR part 200 . PN

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

51 Flsca] Control The Contractor shatl estabhsh fiscal control and. fund accountmg
procedures which -assure. proper dlsbursement of, and accounting-for; grant finds. and any
requrred nen- federal expend:tures Thls responsmmty appltes to funds dlsbursed |n dlrecl
operatrons ot the Contractor Co ) . 23

Al

5.%: 2 The Contractor shall matnlam a ﬂnancial management system \that complres with
"Standards of antractor Financialr Management Systems®-or-such equivaleént-system-ag the——
-Staté: may’ require: Requesls for" payment shall be made accordmg to sectton 3 2 ot this
agreement

Exhish D
Fagm 2012
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds recelved by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to lfie Conlractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the futherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby eovenants and
agrees as lollows '

1, Compliance with Federal and State Laws Ifthe Contraclor is parmitted to determine the ehgrbu]rty
. of individuais such eligibility delermination shall be made in dccordance with applicable-federal and
. _state Iaws regulahons orders, guidalines, poficies and procedures .

2. Time and Manner of Detorm|nation:’ Ellg:brlrty delerminations shall be méade on forms provided by
*+  the Department ior that purpose and shall be made and remade at such limes as-are prescnbed by
!he Departinanl " -

3 E)ocumentptlon ln addltlon 10 ihe delermlnataon rorms required by the, Depart'nenl the. Conlractor
shall maifitain a daita.file on each fecipignt of services hereunder, which file shafl include. all
Inforrnatlon necessary to supporl an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests The Contraclor.shall furpish the Departrnenl with ‘all forms and documentatron

: vregardmg.ehgibrhty-datamﬂnatwns—ahal-the-ﬁ)epartment—mawequee!—er-feqmre

4. Fair Hearmgs The Cpnlracror understands ihal all applrcants for $erwces hereunder as weIl as
_Indmdua!s declarpd inellgrble have a rught to a fair hearlng regardmg that determrnatlon The
Céniractor hereby cq,venants .and agrees that all ‘applicants for services shall be permrlled to il Gut
an, applrcahon fonm.and that each applrcant or re-applrcant shall be informed of hlsfher rrght to a fair
hearlng in aocordanca “with l;)epartmenl régulallons .

5. Gratullies 6t Kickbacks: The Contractor agrées that it Is a breach of this. Contract'to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of-employment on behalf of the. Conlractor any Sub-Corifréclor or
the State in ofder to influence the performance of the Scope of Work delalled in Exhibit A ofthis-
Con!racl The State may terminate thig Contract and any sub-contract or sub- agreement ififis
deie.rmlned that payments,.gratulties or.offers of empigyment of any. kind.were offered or’ received by
sny ofﬁcla!s,pfﬁcers employees or age.nls af the Contractdr or Sub—Conlractor

4o

6., 'Retmactwe Paymants Notwr!hslandmg anything to the contrary contairied in the Contract or in any
‘othér docunient, conlract or underslandlng. it'ls expréssly’ undarstood and ggréed by the" parties -
heréto, that no' payments will Be made, hereuﬁder 1% rermburse tié Contractor for ¢osts Incumed for
any purpoge or for any services provided to any individual prior {o the Effective Date of thé: :Contract
- andno payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any.senvices provided
* pior 9'the date on whuch the individua) app]res for services of (éxcept as’ othenmse prowded by the
federal regulahons) pﬂor fo-a delermlnation tHatthe Indiwdual is ellgrble for such’ services, " "¢
7. Conditions &{ Purchase Notwnhstandrng anythlng to the con\rary coma:ned in 1he Contract nothung
herein contained: shall be deemed to obligéte or.require the Department.to pufchase séivices
. hereunder. at arrate which.rejmburses the, Conlractor inexcess of the Contractors costs,.at a-rate
_which exceeds- lhe amounts reasonable and necessary to'assure the quality of. such servige, or:at.a
. . rafe which Bxceeds the rate charged by the Coniractor to mehgible Individuals or. other lhlrd pany
- . funders for such serwce If at-aiy time disring the term of this Gontract or aﬂer recerpt of the Final .
T Expenditure. Report‘ hereunder, the Depanment'shall determina.that {he’ Contractor has used oo
payments hereinder’ to rermburSe items of expense otherthan such costs,. or has recéived: paymenk
in excess of. guch costs or in éxcess.ol; such‘ ratas charged by the Contraclor to rnelrgrble indwiduals
- _me-- - . . ofother third:paity funders, the Depanme_ni may,electtor 2. Tt LnL el e e s
- 7.4, Ré Renegouate lhe rates for payment-hereunder, ‘in"which event new rates sha\l be eslablrshed
7.2. Deductrom any future paymem to the Contractor the amount of any prlor relmbursement in
excessoféo:r.ls " - - ..._..._ e -

Exhiblt C ~ Spedlal Provislons . Contrgcior Infials
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7.3. Demand repayment of lhe excess payment by the Caontractor in which event fallure to make
such repaymeni shail constitute an Evenl of Default hereunder, Wheh the Contraclor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Conliractor agreesto .
reimburse the Depariment for all funds paid by the Deparimeni to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Depariment to be ineligible for such services al
any lime during the pertod of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAIN'TENA.NCE..RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY: i

8. Malntenance of Records: In addition to the eliglbillty records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to meintain the following records during the Contract Period:
B.1. FiscalRecords: books, records, documents and other dala evidencing and reflecting all costs
"+ @and olher expenses Incurred by the Contraclor in the performance of the Conlract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period,.said records to bé
maintained: in accordance with accounting procedures and practices whrch sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are.acceptable to the Depanmeni and
to' include, without limitation, all ledgers, bdoks; records, and original avidence of' cosis.such as
'purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requlsmons for materials . inventories, valuations:of
in-kind contributions, |abor ltme cards, payrolls and other records: requesled or required by the
. Department. .
8.2. Siatistical Records: Statlsuca[ enrollment euendance or- vrsu records for each recrprent ol
¢ .services during the Contraci Period, _which records shall include alt fecords of application end )
eI;glbilrty (including all forms requrred lo delermine eligibilily for gach such reclpient}, records
regarding the provision of services and: aﬂ invoices submilted lo the Depanmenl to oblain
- payment for such services. :
8.3, WMedical, Records Where appropriate and s prescribed by the Depanment regulattons the
Conlraclor shall retatn medical records on each pauentlreclplenl of Ber\rices T

’

9. Audit Contreclor shall submn an ennual eudil Ao lhe Departmeni wi:hrnleo days aﬂer the close o! the '
' agency fiscal year. Itis recommended that the report be prepared in accordance: with the. provision of
Officé of Management and. Budget Circular A<133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
* Profi t Orgenlzatrons" and the-proyisions of Standards for Audit of Governmenlal Orgamzahens
Programs;_ Aclivities and Functions, issued by the US General, Accoun;mg Office (GAO slendards) as
they, perlain to-financial compl;ance audits. . .* N .
9.1:  Audit’and Review: Dufing the tefm of lhts Contract and the perlodfor retenllon hereunder the -
" ;Departmenl the tinited States Depaﬂment of Heallh and'Human; Services, dnd eny of therr A
R .des!gnated representatwes shall have agcéss to all reporls and records malntaxned -pursuant 1o
. . ihe Contract for purposes of audit; examinatlon excerpls and Iranscnpts W
- 92 ‘Audit Liabilities: In addition to and nét in any way.in hrnrtahon of obligations of the Contract rt is
. understood arid-agreed. by the' Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable foF any staté ,
or federal audit excepirons and'shall relurn to the Dépertment, -all payments made-under- ihe -
Contracl 1o which exceplion has been laken or which have been dlsaliewed because of such an
excepuon ) . e . g . Py
10. Conf dentiallty of Records All mforh'retron repons and records mermafned hereunder ar oollec!ed
in conneclion with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall figt
be disclosed:by-ihe: Contractor, provided however, (hat pursuant to slale laws and.the- regulaubns of
“the Depanmenl regarding the use and-disciosure of such information, drsc!osure may be'mede to.
. public-officials requiring such informiation in connection with their official duties and for purposes .
=T STt gl conngcted 167 the' ddrinistration”of thg gervices and” the Contract and’ providéd {urtier; that~——— " ——————".
the-use or dlsdosure by any party of any Information conceming a reclprent for any purpose not .
drrec!ly connecled with the administralion of the: Deparlmen! or the Contractor's responsibnllres with
respéct to purchased services hereunder is prohsblted except oh wntlen consént of Ihe reclpient hls

. altomey of guerd:an A
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and condtions. contarned in
the Paragraph shall survive the {ermination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statislical: The Contractor agrees (o submit the foltowmg reports al the following
times if requested by the Departiment.

11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detatted description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contraclor to the date of the report and .
containing such other information as shall be deemed salisfactory by the Depariment'to
Justity the rate of payment heréunder, Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
desrgnated by'the Departmentor deemed satisfactory by the Depanment;

11.2. FinafReport: A final'report shall be submitted within. tHirty: {30y days-aftérthe end ofthie.tefm
of thiis Contract. The Final Report shall-be in & form satisfactory 1o the Department and shell
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated i the Proposal
and other rn!ormatron requrred‘by the Dapartment

12. Corr'plctron of Scrvlcos Drvat!owanco of Costs Upon-the purchase by the Depanment ot fhe
maximum number-of unils provrded forin the Contract end upon’ payment of the price limitation
hereynder,; the Contract and allthe obligations of the parties hereundef (except such oblrgatrons as,
by:the terms-of the Conlract:are to be performed after'the end of the termiv.of this Contract-and/for

: aurvwe-theténnmatrorrof-the-@onh‘act)-shathermmate-promded-however—that-rt—upon-revrewof'the
Final Expendrture Report the Departmént shall.disallow any expenses claimed by the Contfactor as
costs hereunder the Department shall: iretaln the' 'ight, alits discretion, to/deduct the amounl of such
expenses as:are dlsallowed or lo recover such sums trom lhe Contrector

"i

13, Credils: Al documents nolices, press reteases research reports andothzr materials prepared
dunng or resuiting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall tnclude the followrng
stalement;
13.4. The preparatton of this (report document elc. ) was fi nanced under a, Contract wrth the State

+  of New Hampshire; Department of Héalth and Human- Seivices, with funds provided-in part
- by the_State of New Hampshlre andfor such other fundiiig sources. as were available-or .
requrred e 9., the Umted States Department of Heatlh and Human Sewices

14, Prlor'Approval and. Copyrlght Ownershlp -All matérials (writtan, vtdeo aud:o) produced or .
purchased under the contract shall Rave prior approval from DHHS before printing; production,
distribution or'use. The DHHS will retain copynght ownership for ‘any and ‘all original materials
produced, including; but not limited to, brochurés, resource’ ‘directories, protocals or guidelines,
poslers, or reports. Contrector shall nol:reprodice-any malenals produced under the contract without
prror wrltten approval fiom DHHS LT . o ;

v - P -.,‘_'. )
4 nt

15, Operatlon of: Facllltles Complrance with Laws -and Régulations:(n the operation of any’ facllities
for prgvrdlng servicesythe. Contractor shall comply with ell laws;:orders and régulations of federal
stale; county. and munictpal. authonttes ‘andwith ‘any direction of any | Publlc Ofﬁcer or-officers
purguanl,té laws which shall i impose an order or duly upon the conlractor wilh respect'to the: -
operation of the facliity or the grovision of the services at such facllity. If any governmental license or
permit'shall be requrred for the-operation of ihe said fecllrty 6r the performance of the sald services, -

. .thé Conhtractor will procure said license or permit, and will at afl limes comply:with the termsuand
‘conditions: of: -each.such license or permit. In connectron wrth the forogotng requirements, the L
Contractorhereby covenants arid agrees that, during the term of this Contract: the fatlities shall.
compy with alt rules orders;. regutatrons and reguirements of. thé State.Office. ‘of.the Fire Marshal and
the local fire. protectlon agency. and Shall be Insconformence wrth Iocat buildtng and zon!ng codes by-
laws: -and regulatrons et : R . i - . "

- - .,.h,; N e e e -. - -, - ' -——

R T et ........‘.......-.,-..n- e r— — . - _J-u...---..-.a...-.—.-a—-—-.— -;\- --¢—-————-—-—- e e —

186. Equat Emiplgyment Oppartunity’ Ptan (EEOP) “The-Coritractor will provide an’ Equal. Employment -
* Opporunity Plan [EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justlce Programs:(OER), i-t has = *
- received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient recelves $25, 000 or more énd has- 50 or

' - '  ExnbiC = Special Provisions " Contraclor rmmﬁ
oaze . ' - Pags3 ol § _ Dale Q.F:czgc(f»
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mofe empioyees, it will memtain 8 current EEQP on Fle and submit an EEQP Centification Form 1o the
OCR, cetifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide.an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR cerlifying it IS not required to submitt or maintain an EEOP: Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, bul are required to submit a certificalion fofm to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Cerlification Forms are available at: hitp:/iwww.ojp.usdoj/aboutiocripdfs/cert.pdf. !

17. Limited English Proficiency {LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Seryicas for persons wih Limiled Englisk Proficiency. and resulting agency guidance, natlonal origtn
. discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP}). To ensire
compHance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1858 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1864, Cantractors must-take reasonable’ sleps to-ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful-access to ils programs. . .

18. Pllot. Program for Enhancement of Contractor Emp!oyee Whistleblower Protections: The )
followfng shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Srmpln"red Acquisition Thresho[d as derned in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150, 000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE W}-ﬂSTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT To INFORM EMPLOYEES OF

. WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013) )
(a) Thrs ccnlrect and emptoyees workrng on this contract wrll be sub}ect to me whrslleblower rlghlc
and: remedres inthe prlot program on Contractor employee whrslleb!ower proleclrons eslahlrshed at
41U.8.C. 4712 by section 828.0fthe National Defense Authorization Act for. Fiscal Year.2013 (Pub L.
112: 239) and FAR 3. 908

. (b) The Coniractor shall inform. rls employees in wnlrng in the predommam Ianguage of the wdrkforce
T oof employee whrstleblower rights and proteclrons under 41U.8.C. 4712, as described in saction
3 908 of the Federal Acqursmon Regu!allon : o - C

(c) The Contracior shalf Inseri the subistance of this clause rnbludmg thls paragraph (c) in all
subcontracts over the srmphf‘ ed acqulsﬂton thréshold: "

S .'1 . ¢
18. Subcontractors DHHS recogmzes thal the Conlrac!or may choose o use subcontraclors wrth
- greatét’ expertfse to perform certain health care sérvices or functions for effi iclency or convenience;
but the- Conlractor shall retaln the responsrbrlrly and -accountability for the function(s). Prior.lo; ..
subcontraclrng the Conlrector sha!l evaliate the: 5ubcontraclor & abrlr!y to perfcrm the’ dele ated .
Jungtion(s). This is accomplrshed lhrough a wrﬂten agreement that Speclfies activities and reponlng
responsrbrlrlres of the subcontractor and provrdes for fevoking the delegatron or rmposmg sanctions If
the:subcohlragtor's performance is not adequate Subgontractors aré subject to the samé contractual
conditions as the Conlractor and the Contractor is responsible o ensure subcontraclor complrance \
wﬂh fhose condrtlons .
Wwhen the Contreclor delegales a functron loa subconlreclor the Contraclor shali do the follwnng
19.4. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's abllily.to perform the activilles, belore de!egat!ng

the.lunchon..__._ e —— ——— — terrm o m ety e mmi e —m b 2 e——

’-.'

-19.2. Have a wrrllen agreement with the subconlractor that speclfies, aclivilies and reporting:
: responsibl!rtres and how sanctions/revocation wrll be managed if the.subcontractor's
performance is nol adequate
19.3.  Monitor the subconltraétors performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibi C - Spacial Provisions Contracior Intllats - Q
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_18.4.  Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibifities, and when the subconlractor's performance will be raviewed
10.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracls,

'If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identifi ed, the Contraclor shall
taka corrective action, .

DEFINITIONS
As.used In the Contract, tha following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense delermined by the Depar:tmenl {o be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting pnncnples established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations,-rules and orders.
DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is

=,.ulled—"Finanelal—Management—Guldeltnes—end-whmh—contmns—lhe-regulahone-govem:ng—tha-f iranciat
acliviles of contractor agencies which have contractad with the State of NH 1o receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contraclor on a form or forms
required by the Depariment and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligivle
individuais by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the totat cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Conlractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified aclM!y determined by the Department end specifiad in Exhibit B of the
Contract

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, elc. are
referred to in Ihe Contract, the sald reference shall be deemed to mean all such lavss, regulations, elc. as
they may be amended or revised from the lime to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
_ Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgeted pursuant to the New Hampshire

Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, forlhe purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal reguiahona promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Confractor guarahtees that funds provided under this
Contrac! will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

¢

* Exhibll G — Speda) Provisions Contéacor Intlals __ E\_ £ :
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1, Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any proviston of this Agreement to the contrary, all obltgatlons of the State
hereunder, Including without limitation, the conlinuance of’payments, in whole or in' part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or avallabllity of funds,
rnctudlng any subsequent changes to' the appropriation or availabilily, of funds atfected by

" any stale.or federal legislalive or execulive. aclion thal reduces, ellminates or otherwise
modifiés the eppropration or avallability of funding foi this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit. A, Scope of Services, In.whole or in part. In no avent shetl the )
State-be liable for apy paymenis Kereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
thé_event of a reduction, termination or modffication of ‘appropriated o, aveﬂabte funds the
Siate shall have the right to wtthhotd peyment until such! ‘fund§’become avattab‘te if evel: The,
Slete shall*have the nght to réduce, lerminaté or mbdtty services. bnder” thts Agreement
tmmedtatety upon gmng the ‘Contractor notice of such reductton termmatton or ‘modification.
The. Stale shall not be required 1o transfer funds from -any othér source or account Into the
Accounl(s) rdentmed in block 1,6 of the Generat Provrsrons Account’ Number or any other
aocount in the event funds are reduced ot unavallable. - .

2 Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract Terrntnatton is amended by addrng the”
fottowmg Ianguege T . :

101 The.Stale may terminate the Agreemen st any time for any reason, al the sole drscretton of
‘the State, 30 days -afler giving the Contractor wrttten notice that the-State’is. exercising |ts
optlon to termmete the Agreement. .

.

10.2 In the event of early termtnatron the Contractor- shall within 15 ‘days’ of notrce of early
termmahon develop end siUbmit to the State a Transition Pian for servrces under the
Agreement including but not Itmtted to, identifying the present dnd future needs of clients
receiv:ng services under the Agreement end estebhshes e _process {0 meet those needs

10.3"The Canlractor shatl tutty cooperate ‘with the State and shiall promptty pro\nde detatled '
- mformation to support the Trapsition-Plan mctudmg, but not limiled 1o, ‘any. tnformalnon or
v date requeeted bythe State related lo'the termination ot the Agreement and Trensltion Plan
end shatl provrde ongoing communicatton and'revisions of the Transttkm Ptan to’ the State as
requested N - e . PR -.r_‘..' :

10.4 In the event that séfvices under the Agreement tncludrng but not lrmrted 1o cltents recervtng '

services Under the: Agreement are transtttoned to havmg services. delwered by,enolher enttty
.tnctudmg contracted" pro\nders of the ‘Stalé, the Contractor shatt pr‘ovxde e process tor
' untnterrupted dettvery of eervrces inke Transttron Ptan '

' -‘1'0,.5 The Contrector shall. estebltsh a method of notttylng clrents and other affected tndtvtduats
about the transrtron The' Contractor shall includs’ the proposad. communtcatrons tn its

Tr_e_r_tsrt:on Plan stibmitted to. the State as described atzove ) T
3. Subparagraph 2411 of the Genefal Provtstons of this contracl ts deteted and the followtng
. subparagreph is added -

1444 cqmprehenswe general Itablllty insurance against all clalms of, bodlty rmury deeth or ‘property

- =« - --ddriags; —|n~amounts of-not-less-than-$250,000-per- claim-and-$1:000; 000-per-occumance

wilh-addifiona) geneéral liability umbrelta insurance coverege of not tess\than $2 000 000 per
occiriance;.and - S N Lot T 1Y Lo-

4,  The Dtvtston ceserves the nght to renew the Conlrect for up to three (3) eddrt:onal yeers subject lo
the conlifudd avallability of funds, salisfactory pedformance of services “gnd’ approval by the

Governor'gnd Executive Council. . )
] Exhibit C-1 - Revistons to Genersl Provisions Contractos Iniials ﬁ
LS . - . e, . . . . . L)
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~ CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WOBKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identifled In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with-the provisions of
Secfions 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Acl of 1988 {Pub. L. 100-690, Title v, Subtitle D; 41
U.58.C. 701 ei seq.}, and further agrees to have the Conlractor's representative, as identified In Seclions
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute ifie lollowlng Ceification; -

ALTERNATNE! FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN lNDlVIDUALS

us§ DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTORS
- US DEPARTMENT: OF EDUCATION:- CONTRACTORS -
us DEPARTMEN‘I’ OF AGRIGULTURE CONTRACTORS

This cerlrﬁcellon |s requrred by the. reguleltons Irnplemenhng Secllons 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace ‘Act of: 1988 (Pub. L. 100—690 Fitle v, "Subtille-D; 41 U, S G701 el seq) The Jarivary 31,
1989 regulalions were.amended and prIIshed es Pad if of the May 25; 1990 Federal Reg'ster (pagee
21681 21691) and requrre cenification by. granlees (and by’ lnlerence sub—granlees and sub-
contraclors) priortd’ award that they wilt dhaintain a drug-lree workplaoe Sectlon 3017 630(c) of the
regulalron provides that'a grantee (and by inference, sub-grenlees and sub-conlractors) thatis a Slate

—-——-—may—eleeble—make one—oeﬂrllealron—lo-lhe—laepadmenl—ln—eeeh—federaI-ﬂscel—yeer—ln—l:euol-eemf aal
A .edch grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the ceml‘rcetmn ‘The certificate set oul bélow is a

melerlal represe_plelron of fact upon.which rellance is placed when the agency: .awards lhe grant. Fplse,
cértifi cebon or violation of 1hé certification shall be grounds {oi suspension'of payments . suspension.or
termmalron of grenls or governmenl wide suspensron or debarment. Contractors uslng lhls form should
. send sllo' R

Commissioner

:NH Deparimeit of Health and Human Services

129 Pledsant Stréet, . .

Concord NH 03301-5505

1. The grantee cemﬁes lhet it will or wil oonlmue o provrde a drug -free workplace by
1.4, PUblrshlng ) slalemenl fotifying’ employees that thé Unlawful manufactire, cllslrlbul:on
drspens:ng possessron or'use of & controlled substance is*protiibiled in the grantee’s
workpla,ce and specifying lhe ections lhal'wrll be taken agarnsl employees fof vrolatlon of such
prohibition; T Y
1.2. _ Eslablishing-an ongoing drug-ffé"e- awareness program to inform employees aboul -
1.2.1,;.The dangers of drug abuse in the, workplace '
1.2, 2 The grantee's pojrcy of: melnlalnrng a drug-free workplace,
- 1.2 3. Any, avarlable drug coiinseling; rehablhlellon and employee asslslance programs and
1.24. The pena]lles that may be, lmpoecd upon employees for drug ebuse viclations
. oecurring in the workplace; _ '
1.3, Makrng it'a requuremem ‘thél eath émplioyge'to be engaged inthe perlormance of the grenl be
given g copy of the statemiént required by paragraph (a);
14, Nolllymg the ‘employéee in‘the: statement required by paragraph (2) that, es a condmon of
» émpidyment under tha grajit _lnelempbyea wil) . e
1.4.1. . 'Abide- by the !erms of'the slatement; and
. 1.4.2. Nolify |l the employer in wnlmg of his or her convlcllon fora wolat:on of a cnrnlnel drug
- A stalte: occurring in thie. Workplace ng later, lhan f' Ve, celenclar days after such
g conwcllon et PR Wl
1.6. ¢ Notlfylng the agéncy in w’ming. wrlhm ten Celer\der days efler réceivinig notice under
=-- subparagreph 1:4.2 from:an employee ot.othenvise recelvmg actual riolice of such:conviclioh.-
Employers of: cﬁnvrcled employees must: provide notice, inciuding: posrhon fitle, .to’ gvery grent
oﬂ'cer on whose granl aclrwty lhe convicled employee was- worklng unless lhe Federal egency

P

EXhItH D'~ Certtication Fegaiding Drug Frae " Contiaclor Initi3ls
' Workplece Requirements ’
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such nolices. Notice shall include the
identification number{s) of each affecled grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
- subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is 50 convicted
1,6.1, Taking appropriate personnel aclion against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehablfitation Act of 1873, as
amended; or
'1.6.2. Requiring such employee 1o participate satlslactorlly in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or Iocal heaith,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making & good faith efion to continue to malntain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1. 1,1.2,1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee'may Insert in the space prov:ded below the site{s) for the performance of work done in’
connettion with'the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, cily, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
' Chéck 0 if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here,

Contractor Name: ’
Community Action Program Belbnp-Mcmmack Counties, Ine.

May 17, 2018 ;

Date . Name: Ryph LiNeficld

Title:  Executive Director

., .'

i
- e —— - — - e ———— — - - - - - - - ey s —— — e s ki s — b ———
" Exhiblt D — Cerlificalion fegarding Drug Free " Contractor initials .
Workplace Requirements ’ @
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QERTIFICATION REQ&RDING LOBBY[NG

The Contraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees 10 comply wilh the provisions of
Section 319 of Pubfic Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for Naw Restrictions on Lobbying. and
31U.8.C. 1352, id further egrees to have ihe Conlractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute (he foliowing Ceritﬁcahon

us DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CON'I'RACTORS
" US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
us DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE CONTRACTORS

Programs (mdicale appllcab!e program coverad)

*Temporary Asslsiance lo Needy Families under Title IV-A

*Child Suppon Enforcement Progtam under, Tiile (VD

*Social Services Block. Grant Program under Title XX +
*Medicaid. -Program under Trlla XIX

*Community Services:Block' Grant-under Title VI

'Chtld Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

- - .- . - = - . - 1

The und;er'signed c'enin'es o t'hgbésl of his.or her' knowiedge and bélieh that: -

1. No.Federal appropr!aied funds have-been paid or will be paid by or-on behalf of the undersngned to
any pérson for Inﬂuenclng or attempting fo influence an officer or employee of any agency,;s Member
* of Congress an officeror employee of Congress,.or an employee,of a Member of Congress in
* connection wlth“the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal amendment or
madtfrcahon of eny Federal contracl, grant, loan, or cooperative agreemenl {and. by specif ic mention
sub-g rantee or sub—contractor) ' . p
2. If anyfunds’ other 1han Federal appropnalad Iunds.hava been paid or will be paid to any person for -
mﬂuenclng orattempling to mfluence anofficer or employee of any agency, aMember of Congress,
an:6fficer or employee-of Congress or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Fedéral contraét, grant, ioan, or cooperalwe agreemeni (and by specific menhon sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undejsigned shall complete and. submit Standard Form LLL, {(Disclosure Fom (o
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its Inslructlons altached and identified as Slandard Exhsbrl E-l, )

3. The underslgned shall'requure that the language of this certification be included iri'the award
document.for sub- awards at all tiers {including subcontracts, sub-grants; énd contracts under-grants,
Ioans and cooperallve agreements) and that all sub- recipients shall cerify- and dlSC[OSE acoordmgly

This cerhﬁcallon is 8 material representation of fact upon which reliance was' placed when this. lransat;lton \
was made; or eéntered info, Submussfon of this certification’is a prerequisﬂe for making or enleririg inlo this -
transaction amposed by Secuon 1352, Tille 31, U.S. Code. Any person'who faﬂs 1o file the requurad
cerlificalion shallbe sthect toa clvil penalty of not Iess than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for *

each such fallura

Conliactor Name ’
Community:Action Program Bclknap -Merrimack CounUes Inc.

{ May7h2016 -
-:Dale . - - -z-

Tl " méqu}efﬁ_ﬂiéfm_" T .

Exh!bilE Ceﬂ:l’caﬂon RegardlngLobhying + Conlraclor Initads _&~ *\¢
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENS|ON
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Conlractor idenlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the Prasident, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, .
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Conlractor's .
represe_!ntalive. as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execule the following )
Certification: :

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION o :
1. By signing and submitting this proposal {conlract), the prospective primary parlicipant is providing the
certification set out below.. ’ :
2. The.inability of a paison to provide the cerlification reéquired below will nol necessarily result in denial
of participatioh in this covered transaction: If necessary, the prospective paricipant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot grovide the certification. The cerification or explanalion will be
‘congidered in.connection with the NH Depariment of Health and Human Services: (DHHS)
determination whether, to‘enter inlo this fransaction. However, failure of the prospective-primary
participant to-fumish e cerification.or an explanation shall disquality. such person-from paricipation in
this trensactign. - : : L B '
. . P S T b
3. The geﬂ;rﬁcgtfgn in this cfause Is  material representation of fact'upon which reliance was’placed
wtign DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If itis later determiined that-the prospective
- prifary.participant knowingly rendered an errorigous certificalign, in addition to otherremedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS rhay terninate this transaction for cayse or default.
4.~ The prospechive primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency fo’
whom this.proposal (contract) is submitted if at: any time the prospective primary participan! leams’
(hat jts cértification was erroneous when submitied or has becomé errofigdus by. reason of changed
" circumstances. . . i - S
5. Théterfms.’covered trarisaction,” "debarfed,” *suspended,” *ingligible;’, lower tiér covered J -
transaction,” *participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction;” “principal,” "proposal,” and,
Svoluntarily éxgiuqed,-';ag.'USéd In this-cldusé, have the:meanings set bul'inthe Definitionsand ,
.~ Coverage secfions of the rulés implementing Executive-Order 12549: 45.CFR Pait 76. Seethe: «
attached definitions> - .» . . . P RO B P

" W -
. ! >

' * ) B .. - . L
6. . The.prospeclive.primary participant agrees.by submilting this groposal.(Gontract) that, should the .
proposed covered trafsaclion be entered into; it shall not knowingly, enter into any lower tier. covered

- frangaction wilh'a pefsonwhilis debarfed, suspended. dectared ineligible, or voluittarily excluded

from pafiicipalion in this covered transaction, unless authorized-by DHHS:™ o

1

7. The prospeciivé primary patticipant further agrees by subiitting thié prajsosa! tiat it il include the
" clause titled *Certification Regarding, Debarmen, qupens,ion,_lngliglﬁility and Voluntary Exclusion-  »
Lower Tist'Covered Transactions,” prévided by DHHS; withoul modification, in all lower tier covered

3 . . . . s - A . Y Y . .
.= lransactions.and In al| solicitalions for:lower tier'covered tansactions. .

B. A p'z'g"rtiéipant in.a covered transaction may rely,upon a certification of & b_rospectj"we ﬁaﬁipjpanl ina
* lower tier coveted transaction that it is.not debarred, suspended, ineligible, of Ifvoluntarily-excluded

_from:ihe.covéred.transactionsuniess-it-knows-that the:certificalién is-errgfiesus~A pariclpant-may-=--— —-
- dacide the method dnd frequency by which it delermiries the eligibility of its principals. Each
_participant may, bul is nol required to, check the Nonproturement:List {of excluded parties).

9. Nothlng contaired in the roreg;oing shall be construed o require é.'éteblis:hmeut.of a"system of reéords '
in order to render in good faith,the certification required by this clause. The knowledge.and '

P ) Exhibll F - Cerflficaion Regarding. Debamnenl, Suspension ' Contreclor titals _@‘

o And-Olher Responsibiiity Mattees
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information of o pariicipant is not required to exceed that which.is normally possessed by a'prudent
person |n the ordinary course of business dealings.

" 40. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a paricipant In a

covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaclion with a person who is-
suspended, debarred, Ineligibie, or voluntarily excluded from partiipation in this transagtion, in
addition to other remedies avalable to the Federal govemment, DHHS may ferminate thig transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS ’ : -
11. The prgspectwe primary participant certifies to.the-best-of its Immvledge and behef‘ that i: and fts -
princlpals
11.1: "are not presentiy debarred ‘suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Inelrgble or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions.by any Federal depariment oragency,
11.2., have.not.within-a three-year period preceding this. proposa| (Eontract) beefi'convicléd.of or had
a civil Judgment rehdered. against them for.comrhission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connegction with,obtaining, attempling to oblafn orperforming a publtc {Federal, State or jocal)
transaction or 3 contfact undér @ public transacllon violdtion of Federal or State antitrust .
statutes or.commisston-of embezzlemenl theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or’ deslructlon of.
rec.ords makmnjalse,slalemﬁpls,unmcemmggsm!en.pmpadw .

11.3.. afe not:pregently indicted for otherwise, cnmmaily or civilly charged by g govemmental entity
(Federal ‘Slate.or local) with commiss:on of any of the oh‘enses enumeraled in paragraph (l)(b) -
+ of this’cedification;-and.. .
11.4: have'nol within:e lhree—year penod precedmg thls applncahon!proposal had oneor mnre public
1ransact:ons (Federal, Sl.ate or. Iccal) terminated for cause or defaull..

12, Where the prospective primary pamcnpant is unable to-¢ertify to any of thé statements in this’
cerﬂf‘ cation, such prospeclwe parllclpant shall. attach an explanatlon to thls proposal {contracl). -
LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS ' ’ ' Y
13." By signing and submilting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier panlcipant as’
defined In-45 CFR Part 76.-cetifies to-the best of ils kngwiedge and belief- that it and i{s.principals:
13.1. are nél. preseritly debarred, suspended ‘proposed for debarment, déclaredineligible, or .
vo[unlanly excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal depariment oragency.
13.2.. where the prospectivé iower tier participant is unableto certify to any of the, above; such
prospectwe pamcxpant Shalf arlach an explanatlon to this proposal (contracl)

14. The- prospecltve lower tier participant further-agrees by submlmng this proposa| (con!ract) that it will
inciude this' clause.entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspensjon; 1ne|:glbﬂ|ty, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower, Tier Covered Transactions.” withoul modification in a!Hower tier covered
transactlons and‘in all so!lcnatlons for lower ller covered transactions. -« . ,

. - .
' Contractor Name:.. . '
Oommumty Acuon Progrnm Bclkmp Mcrnmack Counties, Lnc.

Mey17,3016 . ) S
Date” : Name leph ttefield
. . Lo < Tille ! Exccullvcl;)_'ircclon.

Exhibit F - Cerlification Regarding Débarment, Suspcnslon Contractor Witials
, - And Other Respansibllity- Matlers '
cUDIshIgTa. s Pagh 2 0f2 Data
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New Hampshire Doepartment of Health and Human Services Oy
Exhibit G &
CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIAuCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATJON EQUAL NT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

Tha Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
reptesentative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Generet Provisions, to execute the foliowing
cerlification:

_Contractor will comply' and will require any subgranlees or subcontraciors to comply, with any eoplicab,le
federel nondiscrimination requirements which may include:

"~ the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 37884d) which proh:brts
recipients of fedefal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices of in
the delivery of seivices or bénefils, on the basis of race, color; refigion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requtres certain recrplenls ta produce an Equal Employment Opportumty Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delmquency Preventron Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Seclion 5872(b)) whichiadopls by
referénge, the civil rights: obligations: of the Safe Slreets Act. Reciplents of federal funding under-this
stalute are. prohibrted from drscnmlnatrng, either iR employment practrces or in the delivery. ol services of
benefifs; on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act mcludes Equal
Employment Opportumty Pten requrremenls

- -the Clwl Rights Acl oI 1964 (420S.C: Sectron 2000d which prokijbits recrpxenls of federal r nanclal
assrstance from drscnmmalmg on the basrs of race, color or nalional origin in any program or-activity};

. the Rehabr!rtatron Act of 1973 (29 U. 5.C. Sectron 794), which prohibits-recipients of Federal financtal
~sissistance. frofv drscnmmaling on the bdsi§ of drsab:lrty in regard to employment and the de!wery of
servtces or benef (s, in any program or activrty

.- lhe Amencans Awith Disabilities Act of 1980 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131- -34), which. prohibits
dqscnmtnatron end ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment; State and local
government services publrc ecoommodatrons cornmerctat facilities; and transporation;

- the Educatron Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685 -86), whrch prohrblts
cﬁscnmrnation an, the basls of sek i’ federally essrsted educatron programs,;

- the Age Drscnmmat:on Act of 1975 (42 u, S C. settions 8106-07), which prohrblts drscnmmatron on the
basls of, age in programs,or activities recervrng Federel financial assistance. - It doés: not rnclude :
‘ employment drscrimrnatlon ) '

“.28EER. pt 31 (U S Department of Justrce Regulations: - OJJDP Grant Programs) 28 C F.R. pt. 42,
VRS Deparlment of. Justice Regulations - Nondlscrrmlnatron Equat Employment. Opportumty Policies
- and Prooedures) Executwe Order No. 13279 (equa! protection of the laws for. faith-based and: community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559; whichi provide fundaméntal principles and polrcy-meklng '
critene fof pennershlps wrth faith-based end ne:ghborhood organizations; S
28 CF.R. pt 38 (U S. Department of Justtce Regulations — Equal Treatmenl for Fajth-Based
Orgamzattons) and Whrstleblower protections 41 U.5.C.§4712 and The Nallonal Défense Authorlzat(on
Act(NDAA) for: Flscal Year 2013'(Pub. L, 112 239, 'enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of.Contrecl. Employes Whrslleblower Protections, which protects employees agalnst
repnsal for certain whistle blowing aclivtﬂes in connection with federal grants and contracts,

The certrt’ cale sél oyt below is a materiel representatron of fact upon which refiance i is [_Jla_r;ed when the _
agancy awards (he grani. False certfication or vioafion of the certification shall be grounds far

) suspensron of, payments suspension or termrnatlon of grants or govemment wide suspenston or-
debarment. .

Exhrbll G
- i Contractor initials
Carticaton of Comglianze with roquinemens poru&:ﬁ:‘:m n«mﬁ Coprat.] rea'rront of #lh-nuld mmmom

YT
Rov. 10721714 - Page 1012 . Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhiblt G

In the event a Federal or Slale courl or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after'a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national orlgin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the rectpient will forward a copy of the finding to the Offica for Civil Rights, to
the-applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following .
certification; - - : ' :

1. By signing and submilting this proposal (contract) the Contracior ag['ees to comply with the provisions
indicated above,

Contractor Name: . .
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Countics, Inc.

Al\.\ &N~

_ May 17,2016 ‘ . (C WD —
. Date - : Name: ﬁ}lph Litiefield ~——
. _ ‘ Tille:  EXecutive Diréctor |

Exhil;ﬂG i ..
. Contracior initlals
Conticaten of Cornpliancs with s ¥3 pavisining to Feder Nondiscrimination, Equal Trezmment of Folth-Dased Orgart:aticns

o7 Whisdotiowas
o . é Eé
‘Rev. 102104 ] Pego 2ol 2 Date




New Hampshlre' Department of Health end Human Services
Exhlbit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE .

Public Law 103-227, Pant C - Environmental Tobagco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitied in any portion of any indoor facility owned or léased or
contracted for by an entily and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to chitdren under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programis eithier
directly.or through Stateor local govemments, by Federal grant, conlract,.loan, or 1oan guarantee.” The
taw does not apply 1o children's services provided in private residences, tacilities fundéd solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions.of facliities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.. Failure
to comply with tha provisions of the law may result in the imiposition of a civil monelary. penalty of up o
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entily.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the Genéral Provisions' agrees, by signature of thé Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1,11 and 1.12 of the General, P{'ov_is:ions, to execute the following
cenification. =~ - t L L

-

1 . By _signingla.nd_subm'ming fhis contraci, the Contréctor agrees to make rpa;ona'ble efforts to comply

.vailti.all @pplicable provisions of Public Law*103-227, Part.C, known asthe Pro-Childreh Al 'of 1994.

Contracior Name: P -
Community Action Program'Betknap:Merrmack Counties, Inc.

- May 17,2016 . . : Q—-\&— : s b
"Date o Name: B‘Ra]pﬁ L{lﬂcﬁ'&dj;_/ S
. Title; Executjve Director

. .
' - !

-

. N ! *+ . .
Exhibil H - Certificaion Regarding Contractor. inltiats
. Environmental Tobacco Smoke . J
CUDHHSH1071Y Page 10f1 . Date B
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Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-181-and
with the Standatds for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable. Health Information, 45.-
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein; "Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor:that-
recelve use or-have access to protected health information under this-Agreement and 'Covered

- Enlity” shall mean the State of New. Hampshure Department of Health and Human Servnces

(1) . Definitions.
a. 'B[_e_gch" shall have the same meaning as the terrﬁ *Bfeach® in Section 164 402 ol Tltle 45
Code of Federal Regulations.

b, "8ug|ne§§ Agggglate has the meanlng glven such term in-section: 160 103 of Title 45 Code
of: Fl:deml Rpmllntmnq . .

c. “Covered. EntIM has the meaning gnven such ferm in section 160.103 of’ Ttla 45
Code of:Federal Regulations,

d. "Designatéd Record Set* shall have the same meamng as the term “designated record sel"
in 45 CER Section 164.501.

~e. "Data Agar ggallo * shall Nave the same meanmg as the term “data aggregahon in 45 CFR

Seclion 164.501.

f. “Heaith Car_e' Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term "health care o_peratior]s"
in 45’ CFR Sectiori 164.501.

9. ‘HITECHAct" means the H.éalth information Technologv for Economic and Clinical Health
Act: TitleX|ll: Subtitle O, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery'and’ Reinvestment Act of
2009

h. "HIPAA" meéans the Health Insurance. Portablllty and Accountablllty Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and' Secunty of Individually ldenttllable Health
Infarmation, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto

i. “lndividual® §hall have the same meanlng as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Sectioh 160 103
and shall'include a person who quallﬁes as a personal representatlve in accordance with 456
CFR Section 164. 501(g). .

i " rr!acy Rule * shall mean the Standards for Privacy of lndivldually Identtf able Health

) Informat;on at 45 CFR Parts 160"apd- 164, promulgated under HIF’AA by the United Stales
Department of Health and Human Servu:es :
: . tion® shall have the same meanlng as the term “protecied. health
Informatlon 'in 45 CFR Seclion 160.103, Ilmlted to the. information ¢reated or recdived by

Business Assocuate from or on behalf of Covered Entlty - -
L 32014 . . . Exhtbll ] = . Contxaclor Inillals _{_E .

Healih Insiirance’ Purtablllty Ach -

" . Business Assoclilo Agreement ] ]
Page.t of G N ) Oato A J). (/] )
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Exhibit |

I "Réguired by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term “required by-law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103. -

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
hisfher designee. /

n. “Securily Rule” shall mean the Security Si_ahdards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Heaith Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, .
unfreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organizalion that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute. . o '

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shali have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Paris 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH ’

" Act.

(2) ' Business Assoclate.Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Assoclate shall not use, disclose, maintain or lransmit Protected Health .
Information (PH)) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit-A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHi in any manner that would constitute-a viotation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associale may use or disclose PHi:
. L. . For the proper management and adminis;lralip'n of the Business Associate; -
[l As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth [n paragraph d. below; or
I, For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity. -

c. To the extent Business Associale is permitted under the Agreement to disclose.PHI to a
* third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (l)
 reasonable assurances from the third parfy that such PHI will be.held confidentially and

used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (i) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Assoclate; in. accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Securily, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, 1o the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach. . '

The-Business-Associate-shall notr-unless-such-disclosure-is-reasanably-necessary to— - ~— ———
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a

‘request for disclosure on the basis that it i$ required by.law, without first notifying

Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and

to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

Y2014 Exhibil | . Contracior tnitlals £ Q

Hoadth Insurance Porlability Act

Business Asswpcisic Agreemen|
Page 2ol 6 . Date / 6
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Associate shall refram from disctosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies. -

e If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed fo .
be bound by additional reétrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Bysiness Associate
shill be, bound.by-such addilional réstrictions and shall riot disclose PHI in violation of
such eddmonal restrictions and shall abide by any addrtlonal securtty safeguards.

(3) Obtlgatlgg gu_g'e,. gtiyities ofBusIness Assoclate

a. -The Buslness Assocrate shall notlfy ihe. Covered Entlty 5. anacy Offrcer |mmedrately

'aﬂer the Busrness Associdte becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected -
health information not provided for by-the Agregment including breathes of unsecured
protected health mtorrnatton and/or any security incident that may have an Impact onthe-
protected health mtormatton of. the Covered Entity, - .- .

LTS TS qhe duty Ho refiifri- of-deskroy-the PHI asprovided under-Section3 T)—-The Govered | Entity-

b. The Bustness Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when |t becomes
aware of any ofithe above situations. THe risk-assessment shall rnclude but riot be
limited to

o The nature and extent of the protected health mformatlon tnvolved mctudrng the
S types ofs identifiers and the likelihood of're- identification;
o " 'The unauthorized ferson used the protected health rntormatron or to whom the
- .disclosute was made;
" o’ ‘Whettier the protecled health information was getually acqurred of vrewed
i <o, “Theextent to which the-risk to the protécted health Informatiohr has beén
) mrtrgated

:"The Busrnéss Assoclate shall ¢omplete:the Tisk dssessment wrthrn 48 hours of the
_breach’ and rmmedrately report the fi indings of the risk assessment In wrttrng to the
Covergd Entrty

c. The Business Assoclate shall comply wtth alt sectrons of the Prrvacy Secunty and
’ Breach Nottf catién Ruie _ : .

d. Busrness Assoclate shall make: avarlable all ofits internal pollcles and procedures books
" and'fécords relating to the use and disclosiiré of PHI received from, of ‘Created or
-"recerved by the, Busrness Associaté on behalf of Covered Entity to the’ Secretary for
purposes of detérmining Covered Entlty s comptrance wrth HIPAA end the Prlvacy and B
Securrty Rule . Y
€. Busrness Associate 'shall require all of its bustness assor:rates that receive, use or have
acceSs to PHI* ander the Agreement to'agree i writing to a;!here to the same :
B restncttons and!condrtrons on.the use: and dlsclosure of PHI contained: herern tncludmg_

: shall be: consrdered a drrect third party beneﬁclary of the Contractor's bu'siness ‘assqtiate
agreemenls with Contractor s Intended business dssociates, who' wiil.be recélvlng PHI -

014 0 . o C Exhibit 1. Conrmctortruua;s é*@
: ' - - Héallh Insurante Porta.blﬁtyAd

Buslness Associslo Agreement '
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Exhibit)

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associales who shall be govemed.by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entrty,
Business Associate shall make available during nommal business hours af its offices all
records, books, ‘agreements, policies ‘and procedures.relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Assocrate ] compltance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entrty )
Buslness Associate shall provide access to PHlin a. Designated Record Set 10 the
Covered Entity, or'as directed by Covered Entity, to an rndrvrdual in order to meet the

. Within ten (10) business days.of receiving a written request from. Covered Entrty for an

amendment of PHI or a record about an lndlvldual containgd in a Desrgnated Record.
Set the Business Assocrate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
arnendtnent and incorporate:any such amendment to enable Covered Entrty 1o {ulfill it

BusrneSs Associate shall document such disclosures of F’HI and tnforrnatron related to
such dlsclosures as would be:required for Covered Entity. to respond to a'request by an
lndrdeual for an accountrng of drsclosures of PHI in eccordancevwrth 45 CFR Sectron
164, 523 , e e A N
Wthrn ten (10) ‘business days:of receiving a | wrrtten request from Covered Entrty for a:
request for an accounting of drsclosures of PHI, Busrness ‘Associate. .shaliniake. available
to Coveéfed Entity such mformatron as-Covered. Entrty may requrre to: futﬁll its obligations
to pro\rrde an accounting of drsclosures with respect to PHI in. accordance wrth 45 CFR.
“Sectlon 164 528 o L -

‘ . oy ‘;; .
in the, event any individual requests actess 10, amendment of or accountmg of PHI
directly.from the Busingss Associate; the Business Assocrate shall'r‘r‘rithir'r two (2) -
. Business days forward such request to Covered. Entrty Covered Entity shall ‘have the
responstbthty oﬁespondmg 1o; forwarded requests. However, if fonrvardrng ‘the: -
rndrvrdual 'S request to-Covered; Entity ‘would cause Govered Entrty or the Busrness o
Associaté to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and ‘Security Rule, the- Busrrhess Assotiate
shall instead respond to tha individual's request as required by such lew and notrfy
Covered Entrty of such response ag soon as practicable R r_ 0 r_. )

Wthrn ten (10) busrness .days of terrnrnatron of the Agreement for any reason the. -
Busrness Associate shall retum or destioy, as‘specified by Covered Entrty. all PH|

" received. from, or created or received by the Business; Associate in_connectiofi with the

Agreement and shail not retain @ny copres or. back»up tapes of.s such PHI. If.refuriror
destruction is not-feasible, or.the disposition, of the PHI-has been. otherwtse dgreed to In
the Agréément, Businéss Assdciate shall contiriue to extend the protectlons of the
Agreement to:such PHI and limit further uses'and disclosures of euch PHI to those
puiposes {hat make the return‘or desiruction infeasible, for s0. jong as Bustness .
Exhiplt | © Convactor,Intyals é i
Health Insurance Portability Act -

Bilness Associale Agreement ’
Page 4016 Dato
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Associats maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Assaciate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Assoclate shall cemfy to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

‘ (4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Assoclate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
. Notice.of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Assocrate 5
vse or disclosure of PHI. .

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, ar révocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose. PHi may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164. 508 ' '

c. Covered entity shall promptly noufy Business Assocnate of any reslnctlons on the use or
522

to the extent that such restriction may affect Busmess Assoclate s usé or disclosure of
‘PHI.

(6)  Termipation for Cause

in addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Cavered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Buslness Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the -
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covenad Entity shall report the
violation to the Secrélary.

(6) -Miscellaneous

a, Definltions and Regulatory References. All terms used, bul not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to

a Section in the Privacy and Sacunty Rule means the Seclion as in eﬁecl or as

amended. y

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary 1o amend the Agreement, from time to lime as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Securlty Rute, and applicable federal and state law. .

c. - Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowiedges that it has no awnarship rlghts
wnh respect to the PHI prowded by or created on beha}!f of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to-comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and.Security Rule. : E

32014 . Exhibit t Contractor Inltials
. Health Insurence Poriability Acl

Business Assodate Agreement ‘
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' e Seaqregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any

person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall nol affect other terms or

conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

or condition; to this end the

f, Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or

destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) 1, the
defense and Indemmﬁcation provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the .
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement,

~t

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have duly execuled this Exhibit 1.

' Community Action Program
,&-ﬂ l—( M N H’ . Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. -
The State U i Name of.the Contractor

Signalure of Authorized Representative  Signaltuye %uthoﬁzei g}epresentatwe

HM\\&C Ny han : Relph Littleficld

Name of Autharized Representalive Name of Authorized Representative
. MUJM CW\S’HW . Execulive Director

Title bf Authorized, Representative - Title of Authorized Representative

5 !7—‘( (L6 May 17, 2016

Date . - = Date

a0 o Extiibil | - Conlraclor Inllials fé : e
. "Health Insurance Porability Act .
Buslness Associale Agreement
Page B of B
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. CERT!FICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILlTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) QOMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountablmy and Transparency Acl (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater lhan $26,000 and awarded on or afier October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25, 000 or more. If the
initial award is-below $25,000 but sybsequent grant modificalions resull.in a lotal' award equal (o or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporling Subaward and Executive Compensalion Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the folliowing’ m!on'natlon far any
subaward or-coniract awand-subject Lo the FFATA reporting reguirements:

1. Name of enlity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source -
]
7
8.

. Award litle descriptive of the purpose of the funding action .
Location of the enlity
Principle place of performance
—_ 9 Uniqueidentifier of the enlity {DUNS#H)

10. Total compensation and names of the lop five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
= revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information.is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipienls must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contracior Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accouniability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
_and 2 CFR Pan 170 (Reporling Subaward and Execulive Compensation Information), and further agrees
1o have the Conlraclors representative, as identified in Sectioris 1.11 ang 1,12 of the General Provisions
execule the following Cerlification:
The below named Contraiclor agrees to provide needed information as otilined above to the NH
Depariment of Health and Human Services and o comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal"
. Fmanclal Accountabilily and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:
-+ Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Moy 17, 2016 ’ . —$>

Date

Tille: Executive Director

Exhitil J ~ Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initizls é §

. Accountability And Transparency Al (FFATA) Compliance 6
CUDHHSI 10713 Page 102 Dala
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Exhlbit J

FORN A

As the Contractor identified In 'Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | cerlify that the responses tothe
below listed questions are true and accurate.

-1. The DUNS number for your entity is: __07-399.-7504.

2. Inyour business or organizalion's preceding compleled fiscal yeay, did your business or organjzation
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your ennual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcantracts,
Ioans, graits, sub-grants, andfor cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or mare.in annual
gross revenues from U.S, federal contracts, subcontracts loans, gran:s subgrants, and/or '
cooperahve -agreements? .

; NO - __YES
I 1he answer to.#2 above is NO stop here . . o

I

K the answer lo #2 above is YES please answer the followrng

3: Does the pubhc have access to information about (he compensatlon of lhe execuhves Inyour
* buginess of organuzahon thréugh periodic repdits filed under seclion-13(a) or 15(d) of the:Sgcurities
Exchange, Act of1934 (15 U.5.€.78m(a), 780{d)) or section 6104 of the. Iniernal Revenue Code of -
"1 886? .

L3

NO YES

-

 [fthe, answer to #3-above i$ YES, stop-here
i tha answer o #3 above is NO, please answer the folloving: - B

4. ' The names, and compensatnon of the five mosl highly compensaled olf icers In your busmess or -
orgamzation are as iollows

Iame: 4&— LR Ampuh!: - e T v
© Namer__ . T - ER. :AMOUﬂlé__;_:,___,,\‘.- PRI
‘. . el .
Name: _ i _ .Amount'- ' . ‘ o e
N,a{n.\e:- i . Ampunt; ____. _ N i ot .._f’.-'.l e
Name: ' __ Amount: _ g "_: : '*'"";':'
Exhibt § = CorUficatjori Regeding thy Fedsral Funding Conlractos InUals

: Accourtability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance | .
CUDHHSHIOTY . . ) ' Page 2'0f 2 Dale
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State” or "Department”) and Community Action
- Partnership of Strafford County (“the Contractor”). .

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29, 2016 {Item #16), as amended on June 20, 2018 (ltem #41), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
_consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to exténd the term of the agreement to support continued delivery of these
services, and - .

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
December 31, 2021 {

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Bloék 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan D. White, Director ' _ '

3. Form P-3;:’, General Provisions, Block 3.10. State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
603-271-9631 ’

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4, Deliverables of Services, by adding Subsection
4.4 through Section 4.6 to read:

e .] . - .
4.4, The Department may annually conduct on-site reviews of the Contractor operations to ensure
compliance with the contractual objectives. T - :

4.5. The Department may annually perform file reviews of the Contractor operations to ensure
compliance with applicable federal and state laws. ’

" 4.6. The Department may provide training for Contractor staff as needed.

—DS
17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01-02-A02  Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Conlractor Initials [—
) , . —
A-5-1.0 . Page 1 of 3 ' : Date /1672021
. ]
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to July 1, 2021, upon Govemnor and
Executive. Council approval. '

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written befow,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Docusigned by:
6/16/2021 ' | Christine Sartaniclle
Date : e santaniello

Name:
Title: pirector

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

' ] DocuSigned by: o
6/16/2021 | l éis; Andrws Parkur _
Date ) Name: w

Title: CEQ

17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01-02-A02  Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
A-5-1.0 ' Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. '

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

. ' DocuSigned by:
6/16/2021 | | ' C(é-?‘—
Date . Name: erine Pinos

Titte: Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ‘Name:
Title:

17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01-02-A02  Community Action Partnership of Strafiord County
A-8-1.0 , ' Page 3 of 3



~— .

DocuSign Envelope 1D: 18CD253B-966F-4C45-91F1-D88BC22653E2

State of New Hampshire
" Department of State

. CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby c‘ertify that COMMUNITY ACTION
PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New
Hampshire on May 25, 1965. I further centify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65583 ] !
Certificate Number: 0005337935

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
'the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2nd day of April A.D. 2021.

Do ok

* Wiitiam M. Gardner

AN

ol

T | N
Lo
N5

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

l, : Jean Miccolo , hereby certify that.
(Name of the etected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County.
{Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a'meetmg of the Board of Directors/shareholders, Euly called and

held on October 21___, 2020_, at which a quorum of the Dwectorslshareholders were present and voting. -
{Date)
VOTED: That _ Betsey Andrews Parker (may list more than one person}

. {Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Community Acton Partnership of Strafford County to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State :
’ : (Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its- agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, whlch
may in hIthEf judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of lhts vote.

31 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
_ date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that-the person(s} listed above currently occupy the
pasition(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporatton To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such Imtahons are expressly stated herein.

Dated. S Z& i [ el g

nature of Elected Officer .
ame: Jean Miccolo
Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD
L——/

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MWDDIYYYY)
0512412021

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If tho certificato holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may roquire an endorsement. A statement on
this cartificate does not confer rights to the certificate holdor in liou of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTACT  Teri Davis
3 FAX .
CG! Businass Insurance PHONE ~ . (866) 841-4800 e oy (868) 574-2443
5 Darimouth Drive’ SO . TDavis@CGlBusinessinsurance.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Aubum NH 03032 INSURER 4 : Hanover Insurance Company 22292
INSURED INSURER B : Eastem Alliance
Community Action Partnership of Straflord County msurerc: Philadelphia insurance
DBA: Strafford CAP INSURER D :
o 577 Central S, Ste 10 INSURER £ :
Dover NH 03820 INSURER £ :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 20721 Master REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO GERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TC THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIQD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WATH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
i TYPE OF INSURANCE EJD:MD POLICY NUMBER MMID —FO(M "'%';) LTS
3| COMMERGIAL GENERAL UABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1.000,000
- GE 1O RENTED
| cLamsmaoe @ OCCUR PREMISES (Es occuronce) | 8 190.000
[ | MED EXP (Any onepersony | 3 10,000
A - ZHVA182135 123172020 | 1213172021 | pepsonal s aDvinury . | 5 11000000
' GEMLAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER! GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3.000,000
X pouicy 25 Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | 3 Included
OTHER: ] . Professional Liability s 1,000,000
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lu_muoau.e LIABILITY Ea pecivent] s 1,000,000
| ANy auTO . BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
— | ownED SCHEDULED ;
A || Autos onwy AUTOS AVWVAT56930 1243112020 | 12/31/2021 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
S| HRED NON-OWNED R s
| S AUTOS oNLY AUTOS ONLY Per sccident)
Uninsurad motorist s 1,000,000
O] umsreLLA Lina ocouR . SACHOCOURRBNGE |3 4000000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE UHVA192136 1213112020 [ 1213172021 | soRecATE ¢ 4,000,000
oep | <] reTenTion 3 © 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION o
AND EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY N XI Shiue [ . 35,000
B | e exeL Py CUTIVE m 03-0000133794-03 1213172020 | 1243172021 |EL-EACHACCIOENT 1% ~
(Mandatory In NH) £.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOVEE | 3 1.000.000
il yas, describe under 1000 000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below £.L. DISEASE -POUICY Limrr_| 5 TY0
Oirectors & Officers
C | EPLI and Crime Included PHSD1536676 06/24/2020 | 06/24/2021 [Per Occurrence 3,000,000
" {Agregate Limit 6,000,000

workers Comp 3A Stale: NH

‘DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Addilonal Remarks Schaduls, may be attached f more spacs is required)

i

_CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

o
State of NH, DHHS
129 Pleasant SL

A Concord NH 03301-3857

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,
o

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988 2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are-registered marks of ACORD




: | ~ MISSION |
- To educate, advocate and assist people
- in Strafford County to help meet
their basic needs and promote
self-sufficiency |

PARTNERSHIDP

of Strafford County

VISION
~ Working to eliminate poverty in
- Strafford County

___ Z38592228880-1 416-6¥0¥-4996-8£620D81 101 2dojaau3 ubignoog
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. CEETIFIED PUBLIC ACOCOUNTAINT:
MO FITBORO o MORTH CONSAY
[HIVER + COMCORD
STEATELAM
To the Board of Dlrectors of
Community Action Partnership of Straﬁord County

Dover, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Commumty Action Partnership of

Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of |
financial position as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
ﬁnancial statements. ' '
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements- .
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentatlon of these fi nanmal
~ statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. :

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
~ require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The: procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but

. not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
‘by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We beli‘eve' that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion. '

-
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Opinion \

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County as of December 31,
2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters ' ,

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has .
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. in our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in alt material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June
24, 2020, on our consideration of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community Action Partnership
of Strafford County's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

/\/M Do ibmell i Kobor &

ffﬁ /:Jc stent?” ()5 sace i
June 24, 2020 ‘

‘Wolfeboro, New Hampshire \
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-STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2015

CURRENT ASSETS )
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Tax credits receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

"NONCURRENT ASSETS
Security deposits

ASSETS

Property, net of accumulated depreciation

Other noncurrent assets

Total noncurrent assets

" TOTAL ASSETS

.

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Demand note payabie
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Refundable advances
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

" NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term debt

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions -

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS'

“See Notes to Financial Statements’

3

2018

2019
1,068,744 $ 749,630
1,525,775 . 1,106,724
68,100 63,800
- 250,000
19,510 13,420
12,570 58,266
2.694.699 2.241,840
5,350 5.350
4,815,150 . 3,827,963
27.500 27,500
4,848,000 3,860,813
7,542,699 - $ 6,102,653
105,432 $ 165432
455276 408,959
193,430 161,566
84,272 94,084
- 491,025 415,335
4,955 79,421
1,334,390 1,324797
2 566,846 2.814,690
3,901,236 4,139,487
3,330,373 1,307,042
311,090 656,124
3.641,463 1,963,166

{ .

7,542,699 $ 6,102,653
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENOED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Without Donor

With Donor

' : Restrictions Restrictions Total
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT _
Grant revenue ' $ 8,385,228 $ - $ 8,385,228
Fees for service 2,026,319 - 2,026,318
Rent revenue G385 - 9,385
Public support 492,204 240,031 732,235
In-kind donations 699,583 - 699,583
Interest 335 - - 335
Fundraising 25,334 - 25,334
Total revenues and support 11,638,388 240,031 11,878,419
" NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM :
RESTRICTIONS 585,065 {585,065) -
Total revenues, support, and net
assets released from restrictions | 12,223,453 {345,034) 11,878,419
. EXPENSES ’
Program services :
 Child services 4,467,961 - 4,467,961
Community services . 1,084,934 - 1,084,934
Energy assistance 2,382,868 - 2,382,868
Housing 310,583 - 310,583
. Weatherization 1,894,803 - 1,894,803
Workforce development . 134,487 - 134,487
Total program services 10,275,636 - 10,275,636
Supporting activities o
Management and general 834,730 - - 834,730
Fundraising ' 93,752 - 93,752
Total expenses 11,204 1 1é ) - 11,504,1 18
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE NONCASH :
CONTRIBUTION® 1,019,335 {345,034) 674,301
NONCASH CONTRIBUTION 1,003,996 - 1,003,996
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2,023,331 .(3,45,034) 1,678,297
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,307,042 656,124 1,963,166
'$ 3330373 $ 311,090 $ 3641463

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

See Notes to Financial Statements

’

4
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant revenue
Fees for service
Rent revenue
Public support
In-kind donations -

Interest
Fundraising

Total revenues and support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

-

Total revenues, support, and net
assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES
Program services
Child services
Community services
" Energy assistance
Housing

Weatherization
Workforce development

Total program services
| Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising
Total expenses
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
y
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

! 1

See Noteé tb Financial Statements

Withou.t Donor

With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
'$ 7846142 $ . § 7,846,142
1.773.136 . 1,773,136
25,108 ; 25.109
" 189,972 228,410 418,382
645,330 . 645,330
2582 - 2,582
34,146 - - .34,146
10,516,417 228,410 10,744,827
8.466 (8,466) -
10,524,883 219,944 10,744,827
3,890,640 ; 3,890,640
861.420 . 861,420
2,746,649 - 2 746,649
514,700 ; 514,700
1,610,027 ; 1,610,027
135528 ] 135528
9,758,964 . 9,758,964
956,693 ; 956,603
70,343 : 70,343
10,786,000 : 10,786,000
(261,117) 219,944 (41.173)
1,568,159 436,180 - 2,004,339
$ 1307042 $ 656,124

'$ 1,963,166
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFEORD COUNTY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Donated property and equipment
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Tax credits receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Other noncurrent assets
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll.and related taxes
Accrued compensated absences

Refundable advances
Other current liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES .
Return of deposit on building
Cash paid for debt issuance costs
Payments made on long-term debt
Net borrowings on demand note payable

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest

. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
' Donated property and equipment

' Property and equipment financed by tong term debt
, See Notes to Financial Statements

’ ' 6

2019 2018
$ 1678297 $  (41,173)
175,101 115,671
- (1,003,996) -
(419,051) (12,263)
(4,300) 52,000
250,000 {78,000)
(6,090) (1,888)

45,696 (48,657)

- (15,000)

46,317 191,377
31,864 24,118
(9,812) (6.881)
75,690 23,959
(74,466) 58,632
785,250 261,895
(158,292) (80,315)
(158,292) (80,315) -

- 200,000

- (53,184)

(247,844) -
(60,000) 60,055
(307,844) 206,871

- 319,114 388,451
749,630 361,179

$ 1068744 $ 749630
$ 160,999 $ 40,830
$ 1003996 $ -
$ - § 2867874
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Intermediate ~ Management

Workforce Total Program {Allocation) and’ )

tion Development Services . Pools ", General Fundraising Total
99 $ 78,252 $ 3,072,050 $ 106,649 $ 441,704 $ 36,580 $ 3,656,983
74. T 5911 229,667 8,418 48,879 _ 2,813 289,775
36. 9,765 279,645 7,497 22,254 4,853 314,248
31 1,499 3,858,562 : - - - 3,858,562
00 - 695,644 - - 3,839 699,583
10 819 308,036 17,231 - 93,118 o 4,995 423,380
23 1,607 501,634 ’ 25,407 .30,977 1,768 559,786
39 ' 24103 548,781 . (439,922) ' 28,681 1,649 139,189
59 , 1,478 . 58,642 132,883 12,568 134 204,327
72 5,753 149,238 (12,262) 17,018 : 517 o 154511
59 ‘ 1,128 111,988 11,349 15,137 207 138,681
22 195 . 133,297 5,029 21668 ' 2,385 © . 162,379
07 2320 105145 - 69,956 - 175,101
52 1,158 . 116,547 (23,504) 10,948 148 104,139
40 118 . 32,031 . 76 3,336 18,958 54,401
77 192 16,762 267 11,129 . 252 28,410
29 . 189 36,550 10,224 4,190 . - 50,964
39 - - 10,439 150,560 2,156 - - 163,155

- - - - 945 S 945

: , . 2,969 . ' : - . 2969
35 - 8,009 - 66 14,554 22.629

03§ 134,487 $ 10,275,636 $ | - $ 834730 $ 93752  $ 11,204,118
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. Intermediate Management
Workforce Tota! Program (Allocation) ¢ And :
ation Development Services Pools General Fundraising Total
728 % 70677 § 2,790,212 $ 126,143 $ 518114 $ 27,189 - § 3,461,658
809 6,251 239,281 9,926 41,023 2,119 292,349 .
943 8,774 244 440 11,689 - 32,291 3,107 291,527
818 10,302 4,067,975 ‘ - - - 4,067,975
oo - 638,320 2,345 - 4,665 645,330
774 719 " 3B2,682 18,196 - 67,945 228 469,051
061 3,183 275,608 34,905 14,984 1,412 326,909
392 25,418 455 160 (384,847) © 57,802 2,159 130,274
27 1,210 18,050 - 118,877 24,103 . 7.575 168,605
762 3,735 132,169 (3,880) 18,286 — 439 147,014
899 . 1,203 112,376 14,743 12,239 190 139,548
750 - 85,649 327 44 322 1,299 131.597
- 2,320 94,150 - 21,521 - 115,671
338 1,339 107,678 (12,541) 11,221 978 107,336
297 150 12,172 52 4,210 5,060 - 21,494
218 179 16,099 307 5,290 31 21,727
030 98 73,591 63,582 - 1,314 138,487
080 - 6,043 - 35,506 - 41,549
- - - - 44,219 - 44,219
- - 7,309 176 3,617 12,578 23,680
027 $ 135,528 § 9,758,964 $ - $ 956693 3 70,343 '$ 10,786,000
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NOTE 1.

| NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization ' R _
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (the Agency) is a 501(c)(3)
private New Hampshire non-profit organization established under the provisions '
of the Equal Opportunity Act of 1964. Without services provided by.the Agency,
many local residents would be without a means to provide for their basic needs,
including food, education, child care, utilities assistance, transportation, housing,
emergency shelter and access to other services. The mission of the Agency is to
educate, advocate and assist. people in Strafford County to help meet their basic
needs and promote self-sufficiency. The vision of the Agency is to eliminate
poverty in Strafford County through compassion, education, self-sufficiency,
transparency, accountability, team work, client focus and professionalism.

In addition to its administrative office located in Dover, the Agency maintains its
outreach capacity by operating program offices in Farmington, Milton, Rochester,
Dover and Somersworth. The Agency is funded by Federal, state, county and
local funds, as well as United -Way grants, public utilities, foundation and
charitable grant funds, fees for service, private business donations, and
donations from individuals. The Agency is governed by a tripartite board of
directors made up of elected officials, community leaders from for-profit and non-
profit organizations and residents who are low income. The board is responsible
for assuring that the Agency continues to assess and respond to the causes and
conditions of poverty in its .community, achieve anticipated family and community
outcomes, and remain administratively and fiscally sound. The Agency
administers a wide range of coordinated programs to more than 15,000 people
annually, and the programs are designed to have. a measurable impact on

‘poverty and health status among the most vulnerable residents: those under the

age of 6, the elderly and those living in poverty. This coordinated approach is
accomplished by providing a broad array of services that are locally defined,
planned and managed with community agencies. )

Basis of Accounting: h _ . _
The financial statements have ‘been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

of the United States. _ -
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Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statement presentation follows thé recommendations of the
i Accounting Standard Codification No. 958-210, Financial Statements of Not-For-

Profit Organizations. Under FASB ASC No. 958-210, the Agency is required to

report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the

following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor_restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Agency. These net assets may be
used at the discretion of the Agency’s management and board of
directors. : ‘ .

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions' are temporary
in nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Agency or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. '

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with
‘donor restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified
from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor
restrictions in the statement of activities. '

At December_ 31, 2019 and 2018, the Agency had net assets without donor and
with donor restrictions. -

Refundable Advances ' L
Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and
recognized as revenue in the period in which the related services are performed
or expenditures are incurred.

Contributions '
All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the
donor for future periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily
restricted or permanently restricted support, depending on the nature of the
restriction. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the
contribution is received, the Agency reports the support as unrestricted, ‘

Contributed Services <

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC
No. 958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the
services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized
skills and would otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout th.e'year that are not.recognized
as contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met. : '

10
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments ‘ ‘

Accounting Standard Codification No. 825, “Financial Instruments,” requires the
Agency to disclose estimated fair value for its financial instruments. The carrying
amounts of cash, accounts receivable, inventory, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Inventory . - ' _ .
Inventory materials are fixtures for installation and recorded at cost or contributed
value, using the first-in, first-out method. '

Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment, which have a cost greater than $5,000, are capitalized
at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the date of donation.
Specific grants and awards may have a threshold lower than this amount and
that program will abide by those guidelines. Assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method as follows:

Buildings and improvements - 15-40 years
Furniture, equipment and machinery . 3-10years
Vehicles - ' : 5- 7years

" Depreciation expense aggregated $175,101 and $115,671 for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Accrued Earned Time :

The Agency has accrued a liability of $84,272 and $94,084 at December 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively, for future compensated leave time ‘that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee.

Income Taxes

_ The Agency is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has determined the Agency to be
other than a private foundation. The Agency is also exempt from the New
Hampshire Business Enterprise Tax. - -

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, “Accounting for Income Taxes”,
establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Agency's tax position taken on its information returns for the years
2016 through 2019 and has concluded that no additional provision for income
taxes is necessary in the Agency’s financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Co

11
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Revenue Recognition Policy

The Agency derives revenue from grants, fees for services, donations, public
support and fundraising. Revenues are recognized when control of these
services are transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Agency expects to be entitled to in exchange for those
services. Cost incurred to obtain a contract will be expensed as incurred when
the amortization period is less than a year. '

Use of Estimates : .
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
" that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
. contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actuai
results could differ from those estimates. ' :

Advertising Expenses . S
The Agency expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising |

. costs for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $12,558
. and $22,000, respectively. . :

Debt Issuance Costs _ _

As required under FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03,
amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
amounted to $2,156 and $719, respectively and have been included with interest
expense in the statement of activities for each year. The unamortized deferred
financing costs have been included as a reduction of the long term debt (See
Note 9). -

In-kind Donations _ . »
The Agency pays below-market rent for the use of certain facilities. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the difference .
between amounts paid for the use of the facilities and the fair value of the rental
space has been recorded as an in-kind donation and as an in-kind expense in
the accompanying financial statements. The estimated fair value of the donation
was determined to be $177,259 and $255,313 for the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively. : ‘ ,

The Agency also receives contributed professional services that are required to
be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No: 958. The estimated fair value of
these services was determined to be $33,857 and $150,442 for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated
fair value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $397,292
and $91,175, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2018. For the year
ended December 31, 2018, the estimated fair value of these food commodities
and goods was determined to be $181,461 and $58,114, respectively.

12
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NOTE 2.

‘NOTE 3.

" Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized oh a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have beén allocated among
the program services and supporting activities benefited. Occupancy costs have
been grouped and allocated to the programs as a line ‘item. Such allocatlons have.
been determlned by management on an equitable basis.

The expenses that are allocated lnclude the following:

Expense Method of allocation
Salaries and benefits . Time and effort
Occupancy - Square footage/revenues
‘Depreciation ‘Square footage
All other expenses " Approved indirect rate
PROPERTY
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, property con5|sted of the following:
2019 2018
Land, buildings and improvements . - % 5.0'39,871 $ 3,993,017
Furniture, equipment and machinery- 600,526 562,450
‘Vehicles ) 327,137 _ 249,779
—Total ' 5,967,534 4,805,246
~ Less accumulated depreciation - 1,152,384 977,283
Net property o ‘ $4815150 §$3.827.963

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY _
The following represents the Agency's financial assets as of December 31, 2019
and 2018:

Financial assets at year end: . : :
Cash : $1068744 $ 749,630
Accounts receivable o 1,525,775 1,106,724
Contributions receivable ' 68,100 63,800
Tax credits receivable - : _ - 250,000
Total financial assets ~ 2,662,619 2,170,154
Less amounts not available to be used :
within one year: ' .- o
Board deS|gnated funds 307,315 __ 307,315

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $2355304 3 1,862,839

13
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NOTE 4.

NOTE 5.

NOTE 6.

- NOTE 7.

" PLEDGED ASSETS

The Agency's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 30 days of

operating expenses. As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is invested in short-
term investments, including money market accounts. ' '

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE -
Accounts receivable are stated at the -amount management -expects to collect
from balances outstanding .at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after

" management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a

charge to the valuation allowadAce and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at December 31,
2019 and 2018. The Agency has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts. ‘

CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE :
Contributions receivable represent promises to give, which have been made by
donors but have not yet been received by the Agency. The Agency considers
contributions receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for
contributions receivable has been recorded. Total unconditional promises to give
were as follows at December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Within one year » - $ 38057 $ 28,300
In two to five years 30,043 . 35,500

$ 68100 §$ 63,800

TAX CREDIT PROGRAM

- The New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority's Tax Credit

Program allows New Hampshire businesses to -contribute to not-for-profit

_ community, housing and economic development projects and receive. a 75%

New Hampshire state tax credit that can be applied against New Hampshire .

‘business profits, business enterprise and insurance premium taxes. Through this

Tax Credit Program, the Agency did not recognize any revenue during the year
ended December 31, 2019. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Agency
recognized contribution revenue of $78,000. The total cumulative contribution
revenue raised to date is $250,000 as of December 31, 2018. At December 31, -
2019, the Agency had no tax credits receivable. At December 31, 2018, the
Agency had tax credits receivable of $250,000.

As described in Note 8, all assets of the Agency are pledged as collateral under
the Agency's demand note payable agreement. As described in Note 9, the
building of the Agency is pledged as collateral under the Agency’s mortgage note
payable agreement. _ { .

14
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NOTE 8.

NOTE 8.

DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Agency has available a revolving line of credit with a bank in the amount of
$250,000. The note is payable upon demand, but in the absence of demand, is
due in September 2020. Interest is stated at the prime rate plus 1% which
resulted in an interest rate of 5.75% and 6.50% at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The note is collateralized by all the assets of the Agency.

LONG TERM DEBT

N The long term debt at December 31 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following:

4.90% mortgage payable to Kennebunk Savings
Bank with interest only payments for 36 months
followed by principal and interest payments for
264 months for the first ten. years. In 2028
principal and interest payments will adjust to
1.50% above the highest five-year Federal Home
Loan Bank of Boston. The mortgage note payable
is collateralized by the building and 1eases and
rents of 577 Central Ave. ' . $2,143,096 $2,347,874
- 5.00% mortgage payable to the New Hampshire
Community Loan Fund of interest only payments
_for 36 months foliowed by principal and interest
payments for 264 months. The mortgage note
payable is collateralized by the building and leases
and rents of 577 Central Ave. 474778 520,000
Total long term debt before unamortlzed debt :
issuance costs 2,617,874 . 2,867,874
Unamortized deferred financing cost- __ (51.028) (53.184)
Total long term debt $2566,846 §$2.814.680
The schedule of maturities of long term debt at December 31, 2019 is as follows:
Year Ended _
December 31 , Amount
2020 $ -
2021 _ - 18,343
2022 75,657
2023 : ' 79,448
2024 ' ‘ 83,430
. Thereafter 2,360,996
Total ‘ $2617.874

15
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" NOTE 10.

- NOTE 11.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, net assets without donor restricfions'consisted
of the following:

-

NET ASSETS
At December 31, 20198 and 2018 net assets with donor restrlctrons consisted of :
the following:
2019 2018
Summer Meals . ' $ 11914 $ 51,621
. Building Campaign - 27.891 488,385
Security deposits " 51,584 32,145
Whole Family 163,738 -
" Revolving loan fund : - 52736
Fuel assistance ) : 33,995 23,566
Weatherization 3,434 7.671
Coordinated entry . ’ 8,147 -
Holiday baskets ' 3,985 -
- Food pantry 2,521 -
Special events R 3.881 -
Total _ ' $ 311090 §$ 656124

2019 2018
Undesignated : $3,023,058 $ 999,727
Board designated : . 307.315 307,315
Total net assets without donor restrictions $3330373 §1.307.042

LEASE COMMITMENTS
Facilittes occupied by the Agency for its community service programs are rented

2018, the annual lease/rent expense for the leased facilities was $111 043 and
$117,534, respectively. Certain equipment is leased by the Agency under the
terms of various leases.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as |

follows:
Year Ended
" December 31 Amount
20200 | $ 64,073
2021 _ 19,633
2022° . 15,697
2023 1
2024 - 1
Total - ' $ 99405

16
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NOTE 12.

) NOTE 13.

NOTE 14,

NOTE 15.

NOTE 16.

RETIREMENT PLAN
The Agency maintains a 403(b) Plan and Trust (the Plan) covering substantlally
all employees. Employee contributions to the Plan are made at predetermined
rates elected by employees. Additionally, the Agency provides a matching
contribution equal to 25% of the employee's contribution up to 5% of the
employee’s compensation. Effective April 1, 2018, the Agency instituted an auto
enroliment feature mandating @ minimum 1% employee contribution; however,
employees reserve the right to decline the auto enrollment. Employer matching
contributions for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled $28,408
and $21,727, respectively. ,

CONCENTRATION OF RISK ¢

The Agency receives a majority of its support from federal and state
governments. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, approximately
81% and 90%, respectively, of the Agency's total revenue was received from
federal and state governments. If a significant reduction in the level of support
were to occur, it would have a significant effect on the Agency’s programs and
activities. -

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Agency maintains its cash balances at several fi nancial institutions in New
Hampshire. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to $250,000. The Agency maintains an agreement with its
primary financial institution to collateralize the balances in excess of $250,000.

CONTINGENCIES

~ 'The Agency receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of
these agreements the Agency is required to use the funds within a certain period

and for purposes specified by the govermng laws and regulations. If expenditures
were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations,
the Agency might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made

- for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined

or assessed as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

NONCASH CONTRIBUTION .

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Agency received land and
property as a contribution. The contribution has been recorded at the fair value of
the land and property, totaling $1,003,996. Additionally, the Agency received
$130,000 from the contributor, resulting in a total contribution of $1,133,996.

17
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NOTE 17.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Agency's business. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Agency's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations

. that might be imposed in response to the pandemic. COVID-18¢ also makes it

more challenging for management to estimate future performance of the Agency, .

_ particularly over the near to medium term.

The Agency has remained proactive with its current funding sources, as well as
programs being made available during the COVID-19 pandemic. Prior to
issuance of the audit report, the Agency was able to secure a loan from the
Payroll Protection Program (PPP} offered under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security (CARES) Act. The Agency received loan proceeds in the
amount of $97,500. The PPP may be up to 100% forgivable if the funds are used
for certain expenses as specified by the program.

If the Agency does not meet the loan criteria, the unforgiven portion of the PPP
loan is payable over five years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of
payments for the first six months. The Agency intends to use the proceeds for
purposes consistent with the PPP. While the Agency currently believes that its
use of the loan proceeds will meet the conditions for forgiveness of the loan, we
cannot assure you that the Agency will be ehgnble for forgiveness of the loan, in

" whole or in part.

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized. subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 24,
2020, the date the December 31, 2019 financial statements were available for
issuance.

18
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{ROUGH - : : FEDERAL .

'S NAME GRANTOR'S NUMBER EXPENDITURES
sation _ 4300-2Z2Z $ 117,993
zation ) : 4300-277 $ 04468
zation a At-Risk Aftar School Care Centers 94,387 188,855
ership : _ .- None | 397,292

$ 704,140
Dover Housing Authority . S 30,662
City of Dover - ‘ $ 27802
, . City of Rochester _ 5135 79,158

th and Human Services 05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731 55,255
th and Human Services . 05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731 52,224
uvices . . Community Partners . 434
' s 217733

2016-0003 ' $ 28290
2016-0003 28,612 56,902
$ 56,902
f Energy & Community Services 01-02-02-024010-7706-074-500587 $ 164,711
$ 184711

ind Adult services 010-048-7872-512-0352 $ 2,720

th and Human Services, : :
05-95-48-48010-78720000-512-500352 . 19384 § 22114
th and Human Services, DPH,

: -15-95-90-902010-5896 184,436
“Children, Youth and Families ' 05-085-042-421010-29730000-102-500734-42107 308 : . 9,567
* Children, Youth and Families 05.095-045-450010-61460000-502-500891-42106603 162,321

13-DHRS-BWW-CSP-05 __...54.698 257,019

f Energy & Planning 01-02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587 2,234,146

f Energy & Planning © 01-02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587 180,188 2,414,335
05-95-045-450010-7 14800000-102-500731 357,287

01CHS96002 & 01HP000702 . 3,752,018

*Children, Youth and Famifies 05-095-042-421010-29680000-102-500734-42106802 A 624

*Children, Youth and Families D5-095-042-421010-29660000-102-500734-42106603 : 3583

: - - $ 7,033,227

- $ 8,176,713

$ 1.609.636
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) . .

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION '

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County under programs of the federal government for the year ended December
31, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial posutlon changes
in net assets, or cash flows of the Agency.

'3

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. .

NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST RATE ‘
Community Action Parthership of Strafford County has elected not to use the ten
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4. FOOD DONATION
~Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed. '

NOTE 5. SUBRECIPIENTS
Community Action Partnership of Strafford- County had no subrec:plents for the
year ended December 31, 2019.

20



ISocuéign Envelope 1D: 18C0253B-966F-4C49-91F 1-D88BC22653E2
Leone,
McDonnell
& Roberts

yobisstirudd Ao
CERTIFIED PUBLIC Amotmm
MILLFEDORY o NORTTE COEWAY
DUOVER « CONCORD
WIRATELAA]

\ _
COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire '

We have audited, in-accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2019
and 2018, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June
24, 2020

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements we considered Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for. the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal,
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's mternal control. : : -

A deficiency in mtemaur control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Communlty Action Pannershlp of
Strafford County's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed
‘tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testlng of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not smtable
for any other purpose.

Z‘/ﬂﬂ/ /ﬂrﬂﬁmé//q A// ,/

Jrrd s;rm»o ﬂﬁjmv/f&”

L

June 24, 2020
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY.
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR

EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE °

To the Board of Directors of
Community Action Partnership of -Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2019. Community. Action
Partnership of Strafford County’'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an oplnlon on compliance for each of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,

and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program.-However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of'
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compllance .
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2019, : '

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance - - -
Management of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of

- compliance, we considered Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the audltlng procedures that are approprlate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of .
internal control ovér compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Communlty Action Partnership of Strafford Countys internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
_performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
" internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
“control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
‘over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
_ than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose descrlbed in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is sOIer to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Umform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

A/K’A/ e i)mné// g Aoé‘f’

’/f'ﬁ \951(‘:74:' 055 - ubror?

June 24, 2020
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

1-.

The "auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial
statements of Community Action Parinership of Strafford County were prepared in
accordance with GAAP. .

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are
reported. -

No instances of noncdmpliance material to the financial statements of Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Intemal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No
material weaknesses are reported. :

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County expresses an unmodified opinion on all major -
federal programs: - : :

Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section
200.516(a) are reported in this Schedule. :

The programs tested as major were: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program, CFDA 93.568, and U.S. Department of
Agriculture, Child Nutrition Cluster, CFDA, 10.555 (National School Lunch Program),,
and CFDA, 10.559 (Summer Food Service Program for Children). NON-FEDERAL,
Eversource Energy Service Company, Home Energy Assistance Program.

The thr_eshoid used for distinguishing between'Type A and B programs was $750,000.

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County was determined to be a low-risk
auditee, < ' . .

B. FINDINGS - FIhiANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

None

25



DocuSign Envelope ID: 18CD253B-966F-4C49-91F1-D8EBC22653E2

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

A. FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
' 2018-001 General Ledger Close and Adjusting Journal Entries
Condition; A significant quantity of adjusting journal entries were provided by the
Organization during the audit. Significant adjusting entries related to the following
areas: cash, accrued payroll, pledges receivable and property. The adjusting entries
were provided by management, and in certain cases, identified by the auditor. . '

Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented to ensure all required month and
year end journal entries are being recorded in a timely and accurate manner.

Current status: The recommendation was adopted during 2019,
2018-002 Monthly Reconciliations

Condition: Various statement of financial position a'ccounts were not being reconciled to
their subsidiary ledgers on a monthly basis. ' :

Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented to ensure all monthly
reconciliations are being performed. :

_Current status: The recommendation was adopted during 2019.
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s

of Strafford County

2021 Board of Directors

Alan Brown, Chair

Kristen Collins, Vice Chair
Terry Jarvis, Treasurer
Jean Miccolo, Secretary
Hope Morrow Flynn
Alison Dorow

Marci Theriault

Petros Lazos

Thomas Levasseur

Don Chick

Cindy Brown

Jason Thomas

Alh Morris

Maureen Staples

“Tori Bird
‘Kathleen Sarles

Jessica Pertiello-Bull

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Administrative & Weatherization Office, 642 Central Avenue, Dover, NH 603-435-2500
Mailing address: P.O. Box 160, Dover, NH 03821-0160

Outreach Offices:
61 Locust Street, Dover 603-460-4237
527 Main Street, Farmington 603-460-4313

Head Start Centers
62A Whittier Street, Dover 603- 285—9460
120 Main Street, Farmington 603-755-2883 .
55 Industrial Drive, Milton 603-652-0990
150 Wakefield Street, Rochester 603-285-9461
184 Maple St. Ext., Somersworth-603-817-5458
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Sharo_n A. Tarleton.

Education
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology and Sociology : - A
" University of New Hampshire Durham, NH May 2014
e Summa cum laude '
e Minors: Classics and Political Science
¢ Office of Student Leadership and Involvement Movers & Shakers Award recnplent

Related Experience
Workforce Development/ Case Management

e Administration of assessments geared toward identi fymg a career pathway
Proficient in public speaking including delivering workplace trainings
Development of new work experience internship host sites based on job seeker interests
Cultivation of employment opportunities through city, community and state resources .
Creation and revision of curriculum utilizing Microsoft Word, Excel, Access, Powerpoint
Familiarity with publications pertaining to regional economic development

e Assistance with grant administration & dnssemmatlon of funds
Collegiate Enhancement

e Adaptation of departmental policy through collaboration with faculty and graduates

e Representation of the department at NEASC delegation :

e Recruitment of undergraduates to publish their research
. Solicitation of internal opinions in order to increase appeal for potential new majors

e Forthrightly expressed concerns in order to sufﬁcnently address them
Education and Community Qutreach

o Navigation of new school-wide academic portal mcludmg creation of student profiles

e Fostering a person-centered environment leading to genuine relationships

e Mentorship through afterschool enrichment activities and tutoring

"o Professional development surrounding psychology of leaming and buy-in strategies

e Participation in staff committees to improve learning, social culture and credentialing
Customer Service

e Expedient assessment and fulfillment of customer needs

& Communicative of extensive knowledge of products and services
e Development of substantial customer base through rapport building
e Ability to act quickly and professionally under strict time constraints

Employment and Volunteer History

e CAP - Strafford County Agency Case Mana'ger Dec 2017-present
- NHEP Program Specialist July 2016-Dec 2017
e SAU 56 — Somersworth Title I Literacy Coach Oct 2014-June 2016
' Substitute Teacher ~ Oct 2013-Oct 2014,
UNH Sociology Dept. Undergraduate Representative - Sept 2012-May 2014

Momma D’s Casa di Pasta  Server/Host _ July 2012-Oct 2013
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Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

State of New Hampshire — Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Key Personnel

Name

Ambunt Paid from

Management Supervisor

$49,920.00

35%

Job Title Salary % Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
Sharon Tarleton Economic Stability & Case

17,472.00.




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
HUMAN SERVICES AND BEHAVORIAL HEALTH

 : | W

JelTrey A. Meyers : 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
Commissioner . 603-271-9546  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9546
. ) Fax: 603-2714232 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Christine Tappan _ . www.dhhs.nh.gov

"Associste Commissioner

April 13, 2018

. His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House o

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and Housing -
Services, to exercise renewal options to existing agreements and enter into one (1) sole source
contract with the vendors identified below, for the provision of Emergency Solutions Grant Services by
increasing the price limitation to by $2,049,033 from $1,196,464 to $3,245,497 and by extending the
completion date of some contracts from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2021 effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. The Gavernor and Executive Council approved the original agreements on
June 29, 2016 (item #16). 100% Federal Funding

Vendor _ Current Increase Revised
Vendor Number Location Modified {Decrease) Modified '‘G&C Approval
. Budget Amount Budget
Community Action 2 Industrial Park ] o
Program Belknap 177203- Drive .
and Merrimack 5003 Concord, NH $149,558 _5254.337 $403,895 | O: 06/29/16 #16
Counties Inc. - 03302
. . 642 Central :
Community Action 177200- ) .
Program of Strafford BOO4 Avenue, Dover, $149,558 $224,337 $373,895 | O: 06/29/16 #16
7 NH 03820 - .
40 Pine Street ’
Southern New 177198- .
Hampshire Services B0OS | Manc(l;;s(t)gr. NH $149,558 $224,337 $373,895 | O: 05/29/16 #16
€3 Community : . .
Southwestern 177511- A A
Community Services PODA Way,olgigqg NH $448,674 $448,674 | . $897,348°| O: 06/20M16#16
| 7 Concord Street
The Front Door | 156244- | © o 0p 0 NH $149,558 $448674 |  $598.232 | O: 0B/2916 #16
Agency 8001 03064 -
/ 214 Spruce )
166673 Street - AR '
The Way Home Inc. . B0D9 Manchester, NH $149,558 $224,3§7 $373.895 | O: 06/29/16 #16
03103 ) ]
Tri Gounty s | Seest s
Community Action |- 8009 gerlin. NH $0 $224,337 $224,337 | New Sole Source
Program, Inc. erun. '
S 03570
Totals: | $1,196,464 $2,049 033 | $3,245,497



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 4 '

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year 2019
and anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020 and 2021, upon appropriation of continued
funding with the ability to adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office
without further approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

~ 05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
" HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER

PROGRAM ) /
Fiscal Class Title Current Increased Amount
Year | , Budget {Decreased)
- ‘Amount
. 102- Contracts for
2017 500731 Program Services $598,232 ~ $0.00 $598,232
' 102- Contracts for
2018 500731 Program Services $598,232 $0.00 7 $598,232
102- Contracts for
.2019 500731 Program Services 50.00 . $703,011 $703,011
102- Contracts for
2020 500731 Program Services $0.00 $673,011 $673,011
102- Contracts for -
2021 500731 Program Services $0.00 $673,011 $673,011
Total: $1,196,464 $2.049,033 $3,245 497

EXPLANATION

The request to enter into contract with Tri County is sole source because an increase in
administrative staffing and internal organizational structure has allowed for Tri-County to more
efficiently meet the needs of individuals and or families who are homeless. and or at risk of becoming
homeless. Previously Southwestern Community Services had funding to serve-the North Country
population and had formal agreements with Tri-County CAP to administer funds for the Northem region
" of the state. Funds have been moved from Southwestern Community Services and moved into the Tri
County CAP sole source contract to allow Bureau of Housing Supports to contract directly withTri-
County CAP to serve the Northern populatlon No other agency at this time is able to serve the
homeless population in the northern region with the knowledge and resources that Tri-County CAP
possesses.

_ Exhibit C-1 of the Tr| County contract includes language that reserves the Department’s right to
exterid contract services for Up to three (3) years contingent upon the vendor providing satisfactory
services, availability of continued funding and approval from the Governor and Executive Council.

The purpose of this request is for the continuation of Emergency Solutions Grant Program
services to individuals who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Services include
interventions that have a direct and positive impact on individuals and families. The services provided
through these contract agreements prevent individuals, and famlhes from becomlng homeless and
assist individuals who are currently homeless to regain housing.

These vendors assist individuals who are-homeless or at risk of becoming homeless achieve
housing stability through Housing Stability Case Management services which address the following
program components:




His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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Homelessness Prevention.
Rapid Re-Housing.

. Housing Relocation.
Stabilization Services.

s @& o 8

Homelessness Prevention, Rapid Re-Housing, Housing Relocation and Stabilization services may
include the provision of rental assistance, payment of rental application fees, last month's rent, utility
deposits and payments, as well as moving costs. Housing stability case management services include
assessing, arranging, coordinating, and monitoring the. delivery of individualized services to facilitate
housing stability for a participant/household currently residing in permanent housing, or to assist a
participant’/household in overcoming immediate barriers to obtaining housing:

Vendors will refer eligible individuals to services, which may include but are not limited to:

Budgeting classes.

- Job search assistance.
Interview skills training.
Resume writing classes.

~
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2019, and.the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided
after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been ‘received from the
- state legislature and funds encumbered for the State Fiscal Year 2020-2021 biennia.

All contracts being renewed include renewal language. in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions, paragraph 4 for up to three (3) years contingent upon satisfactory services, continued
funding and approval from the Governor and Executive Council. '

The Depariment supporis the request to renew services as the vendors have provided services
that have met federal and state statutory regulations to provide services to homeless and at risk
individuals in accordance to Emergency Solutions Grant provisions.

Should the Govermnor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals and or,
households may not receive interventions that have a direct and positive impact on housing stability
which may increase the risk of homelessness or unsafe living arangements. Without such services
individuals may not receive rental assistance, utility payments and case management assistance.in
order to overcome immediate barriers to obtaining housing. Additionally without the Housing Relocation
and Stabilization services individuals may not have the opportunity to remain stably housed though
effective case management. Individuals may not have referrals to life skill training such as budgeting
and resume writing classes, job search assistance and interview skills training.

Area Served: Statewide
Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds CFDA # 14.231, FAIN E17DC330001

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program. -
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Respectfully submitted,

LS

Christine Tappan
Associate Commissioner

Approved by: -
(R Jeffrey A. Meyers
o / Commissioner .

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communtities and familics
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve heaith and independence.



New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Emergency Solutions Grant Contract

This 1% Amendment to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program contract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment #17) dated this 22" day of February 2018, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department”) and
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a
non-profit corporation with a place of business at 642 Central Avenue, Dover, NH, 03820

WHEREAS pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract') approved by the Govemor and Executive
Council on June 29, 2016 (item #16) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and 'conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums
specified; and . -

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37 General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 4 of the agreement the parties may amend and renew the agreement for
up to three (3) years upon written agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council; and .

WHEREAS, the parties agree to exercise the renewal options available and increase the price limitation
at level funding; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: '
1. Form P-37, General Provision, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2021. ' -
2. Formm P-37, General Prowslons Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read
$373,895

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency to read:
E. Maris Reinemann, Esq_., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10 State' Agency Telephone Number to read:
(603) 271-9330.

5. Exhibit A, Scope of Servuces Section 1, Provisions Appllcable to All Services, Subsection 1.4, to
read:

1.4 For the purposes of this contract, the Contractor shall be identified as a Subrecipient in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

6. Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Preamble, Emergency Solutions Grant,
to read:

A. Preambie ~ Emergency Solutions Grant

A.1. The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A-
Community Action Program of Strafford COunly Inc.:
17 DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01 Amendment #1
- Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
- Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract :

Emergency Solutions Grant. .

A.2. This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds
made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

A.21. NH General Fund:  Not Applicable’

 A2.2. Federal Funds: 100%
A.2.3. CFDA# 14.231
A24. ' U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development -
A25. Emergency Solfutions Grant

A.2.6 Amount: : $74,779 SFY 2017

| " $74,779 SFY 2018

$74,779 SFY 2019

$74,779 SFY 2020

. $74779 SFY 2021 o {

$373,805  Total
7. Add Exhibit B-1, Budget - Amendment #1.
8. Add Exhibit B-2, Budget — Amendment #1.

9. Add Exhibit B-3, Budget —~ Amendment #1. -
10. Add Exhibit-K, DHHS Information Security Requirements

Community Action Program of Strafford County Inc.
17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01 Amendment #1
. Page2of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Semces
Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
D _ ent of He

6‘/5”/2

Date

and Human Services

hristine Tappan

Associate Commissicner

| Commdnity Actiop Partne
ML -

p of Strafford County
Date

Acknowled

_ TITLE CQ 0 _
ement.
State of ?\/ hF . County of 6757(%@(/ on )On!?f lf AJM 20 ﬁ/ before the undersigned officer,

personally appeared the person identified above, or sattsfactonly proven to 'be the person whose name is signed
above, and acknowledged that sfhe executed this document in the capacity indicated above.
Signaturé of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

awvie v

q‘a%z’or Justice of the Peace
\\w»

E

MPSYY
“ory sty

Community Action Program of Strafford County Inc.
17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01

Amendment #1
Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution. °
OFFICE OF THE ATFQRNEY GENERAL

Gl Qull o
Date . ﬁe.MW :

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: _ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
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17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01 : Amendment #1

Page 4 of 4



+

[ JEVITRY S e —

New Hampahire Depariment of Hastth and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORN FOR FACH BUDGET PERICD

ErdoenProgran Kamme: C. Action P g of 3 Cownty

Dwdprt Reqeer] lon: Emergancy Sotutions Ovant

Duigut Pericat: July 1, 20T-Rine M, 2013

~ - TotlProgem Cost " T Cowrecaw ERWe T WREN - T e Tonded by DNAS Coabd ahane: 3
s Dirmct Indirect Tous . Oirect. tndiwet - Total: - Dwecs [ =) Toi
Incrmnial Firad ) Fraad- T + Imcrumental” “Flaed
X - ETERIE] FLYEIRi - [IRE) TR - W13
——% - [X758;] . - . $343 73 - [X°3F;: 0
. 3 - - - - - - - :
— |3 T . - - - 0 T 3
- 11 N = < - v - N Y
13 T - - 5 § 5 N < P
12 'Mtﬂ% - 3 - - - - - - . -
[3nIAC detpls Mng U | . 3 - . . A B - < N .
P ) [P L+ FLLRE] - 17008 af — el p Z
0,14 80 1 - - - 13 L] v LT
DI 3 I X - - R E X 8,443 60 3 TR0
I TOTAL DX K] [T I N Tl 3137 [TRIIN]] 1303942 P RENE ] iR - Aall

W recl As A Percom of Dired

-
jt
¥

Cormmearty Actior Pragre of 8¥r=otd - N

Pege ol

S | . | L T s



Extluit -1, Gudget Shest, Adandneint #)

Now Hempehirs Departmard of Heallh and Haman Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH GUDOEY PERIOD

DiidberProgram Name: Community Artien Partnarship of Airsfford County

Budge! Request 13 Emergency Solutian Gramt

Buaget Paricd: July §, M18June 30, 200

Yot Frogrem Cont_ T - - Cotracier Bhsce | W asch - - I G Coniract shary
N " Carect” B “lndirect Tetdl . - o Tl “Youd - -
[Line ftren incrarsaital Plisd Iwcremestal Fhind - s Fitad’
1. Teast ™ : T WIng - p 127 TE ") LT IXH - : :
X Berath T2y - 8,543 P - f .
Comutanty . - s - - - -
X Pt - - - - - - -
eyl - - - - - . -
Mg brienancy - - - - - - -
5. § - T T = = . -
Ekcatnel - k] - - - - - N
Lab - - - . . - -
[ Phasmaiy 5 . - - - < A
asgeel - . B = P < N
T - - - - . - -
Trovet - N - - - = .
[« : . - - - N .
T - - . — - _ N
Paiagd - . . - - . N
By bacriphol 3 < - - - < <
Avek gnd Loyl < 5 - - = . 5
[T - - - - . - " -
NCFions - . - - . - - -
‘ducation ang Traiing - - - . . . - -
{3pacait diles Mmanden vy - - . e . - - -
S 17,608 47 A 42 - 12034 [FT:EXr] -
29.18400 - - P ) T 00 -
Wil - b4l . 3 < 19 Z
DATII] & [ X w1397 WAL 12,639, MTHAT[ S 4,17 .
havect As A Percentof Divect L ] v
Caromanty Actiosk Program of Brsiond ’ Conraco mw

Paga 1 af

~

o i | hﬁ’ 1%



Eriii D) Dudgel Thout, Arnanttuat 51

CONPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIDO
! BiddanPrageam Nume Community Acvion Partearthip of Siralford Covaty

Opdget Requesl for: Exmepancy Sehitions Qraat

Busgit Perlend: Juty 1. 1020 June 38, 2031

HMew Hampshire Depertment of Heatth and Human Services -

Yoin Fregram Cott — i Toniracton brare f Wach -~ - -~ | Fonded by OFHS cortractekors -~~~ 1
“hewct etk Tatal Tt tadirecd R~ AL R T "Unatrncy T
L ] Fleast - Fiund * Incrementsl N Flead -
4 - % 6 R [ Y 31 ) - [T 6N Te =
[YTEFE) - [IE¥T] - - - [k . -
. - [ - - - — . .
- 13 - - . g - .
. . 1 . - . - - -
Z (X3 L VLEYAT - (P X5 T8 A -
184 00 THIBG0 N @L - 29,184 0. -
WAL T p TBA2.00 - 5 Z — A0 -
WATLIE( S T 1L00AT Vo3310.01 Ta.tha 78 A AaAL L REIST] Te3 TN, .
e .
-

Onte _

(%



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
- Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The foilowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach® means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
“unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, * Breach® shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section.
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations. )

2. *Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S.- Department
of Commerce. '

3. *Confidential [nformation” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health [nformation and
Personally |dentifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is govemed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (P)), Personal Financial
Information (PFl), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), '
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. “‘End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. “Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security. poficy,
which includes attempts (either falled or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

4

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. “Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is:
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network {designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. “Personal Information® (or “PI") ' means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. “Privacy Rule’ shall mean the Standards for Privacy of lndividuélly'ldenﬁf able Health |
Information-at 45 C.F.R. Patts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

" 10. *Protected Health Information” (or *PHI") Kas the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protecled Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F. R §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information® means Protected Health information that is
not secured by a technolcgy standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing corganization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PH! in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule. '

2 The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Informatlon in response to a

V4, Last update 04.04.2018 o Exhiblt K . Contractor Initials _& l
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 New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibtk
DHHS Information Security Requirements '

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rute, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
' any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to. grant access to the data to the authorized representatlv&e‘
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compltanoe with the terms of this
Contract.

1. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data. .

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information,

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be.
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Se'rvices also known as File 'Shanng- Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmlt Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops ‘and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to trénémit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Netwarks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
~ ExhibitK
DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User’s mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH.File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
"End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to .prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-foiders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (| e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless dewces all
-data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

ll. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or pemmitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabliities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
.and/or Department confi dential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and -education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in sectlon IV.A2

-

5. The Contractor agrees Conﬁdentnal Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security.” All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requiroments

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete booperatlon with the State's
- Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hostlng
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written cenrtification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the:
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U S
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in wnting at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory ‘and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and:Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding. "

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thily (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Conﬁdentla! Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

v. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

. 1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to prbtect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K . Contractor Initials g_ﬂ' ]
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New Hampshire Department 6f Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place .to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internali process or processes that defines specific securty
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of

- obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed. by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Deparlment and is responsnble for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Depariment may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or.unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Depanment. '

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.

" The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
 ExhibitK
DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services,; mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all cther respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5§ U.S.C. § §52a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://iwww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14; Contractor -agrees to maintain a documented breach nofification and incident

response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and

. additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two

(2) hours of the time that the Contractor leams of its occurrence. This includes a

confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach

which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

186. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

. a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that s fumished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

¢. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, Pl, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected. '

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

o Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons

- during duty hours as well as non-duty hours {(e.g., door locks, card keys,

biometric identifiers, etc.).

only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including- any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above,

in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards as determined by a nsk based
assessment of the circumstances involved. .

understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

Fd

LOSS REPORTING

The -Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PH) in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. identify Incidents; .

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4

|dentify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures. - : ' .

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported; as.
applicable, in accor;lance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI, PERSONS TOCONTACT _
A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
B. - DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:
' DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
| DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE %"
DEPARTMENT OF EEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES .
~ OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES
Joffrey A, Moyers . L
Commisgioner . 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
_ 603:271-9196  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 8196
Mariles Nihan, M.B.A, R FAX:603-271-5139 TDD Access: |-800-735-2964 wvi-w_dhhs.nh.gov
_ Deputy Commissioner g . SN
. C&f Aﬂ*‘*‘”(,a\‘tﬁd
* ! . June 9, 2016
Her Exceliency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan ¢ / ‘Z O/ / (o
- and the Honorable Councﬂ ‘ . -
State House - .
Concord, New Hampshlre 03301 ' ltem# e -
REQUESTED ACTlON , N
Authonze the Department of Health and Human Servrces Blreau of Homeless and
Housing* Serv:ces to enter.into agreements with the vendors listed -below: for the. provuslon of
Emergency Soluttons Grant services in an amount not to exceed $1, 495 592, effective July: 1, '
2016 or upon Governor. "and Executive Council approval, whtchever is later. through June 30
2018. 100% Federal Funds.
Vendor "~ Vendor =~ | Address | .| Amount
’ . Number ‘ ) '
Communiity Actlon Partnership of 177203-B003 | 2 Industrial Park Drive |- $149,558
.Belknap and Merrimack County. . . .. | Coneord, NH 03302 . S -
Communlty Actlon Program of 177200-B004 | 642 Central Avenue. | .05149;3552
‘Strafford County R A " | Dover, NH :03820.. o .
Easter Seats of New. Hampsh[re . 177204-B005 ~ | 555:Auburn Street . © | ,$148,558
: Lo o .. | Manchestér, NH, 03103 | " L
_ Harbor Homes Inc CaL 155358:B001_ | 45 High Street; - b, 8149570
] - Nashiia, NH 030607 T
Southern New Harnpshwe Sennces ~ 177198-B006 [ 40PineStreet™ -~ ..~ | $149,558 |
C " | Manchestér; NH 03103 [ -7 &"
'Southwestern Commumty Semces " 177511-PQ01 | 63 Community Way.  ~ $448674 |
. Keene,NH ~ .. . - | _
“The Front Door Agency ' 156244-B001 | 7 Concord Street $148,558
o ' _ ' Nashua, NH 03064~ |+
The Way Home, Inc. 166673-B009 | 214 Spruce Street - -5149,5,5,8'
L ' - L Manchester NH 03103
Total $‘l 495 592

ad

F unds to. support thts request are avallable ini the followmg accounts in State Ftscat Year

2017 and “anticipated -to be available in State-Fiscal Year- 2018, upon the. availability .and

. Continued appropnatlon of funds in the futire operating budget with thé abthty to" adjust

* encumbrarices between stale fiscal years through the Budget Office wrthout ‘Governor’,and
Executwe Council approval 'if needed ‘and justified.
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Her Excellgncy, Govemor Margarel Wood Hassan
and the Henorable Council
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05-96:42:423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVIGES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS; HMS: HUMAN SERVICES HOMELESS & HOUSING HOUSING - SHELTER

- PROGRAMS , :
Fiscal Year Class ' A Title ' Amount-
2017 - 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs. $747,796
2018 ~ 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves. i $747,796
) T Total: | -~ $1,495592

EXPLANATION
The purpose of these agreements is lo prowde Emergency Soluhons Grant Program

sefvices, which includes interventions that have a direct and positive |mpact on ‘individuals and

families. The sérvices. provided through these contract agreements prevent mdrwduals and
families, from becoming homeless or the services assist mdrvrduals who aré’currently homées to
régain housing.

e

.These. vendors assrst mdrwduals who are.-homeless or at risk of becoming homeless

achieve hou$zng siablhty through Housing Stability Case Management. servnces which address |

the fo]lowrng program com ponenis )
s 'Hornelessne_ss Prevention.

v Rapid Re-Housing. '
&" "H@dsing Relocation.

- e Stabrlrzatron Services.

Homelessness Preventron Rapid Re-Housing, Housing Relocahon and Stabilization
sérvices- may include’ the provrsron of rental assistance, payment of rental appllcatron fees, |ast_-
month's- rent utllrty deposrts and, payments as weII as moving costs. Housing ‘stability ¢ase

management services ificlude assessing, arranging, . goordinating, and monitoring thée dehvery of
mdwrdualrzed sefvices’ to facrlrlate housing stabihty fora participanthousehold currently residing
n- permanent housmg, or to assrst a participant/household in overcommg immediate barriers’to
obtamlng housing.

Vendors wﬂl also ensure that eligible mdrvrduals have access to services, whach may include

but are not llmlted to:

. Bugget‘mg classes.

« Job search assistance..
_' * Interview skills trairiing.

. _.Resume wrmng classes.

. In 2015 the Emergency Solutlons Grant served 2 872 clients who were homeless or at
imminent risk of homelessness. Of these 2,872 clients, 200 were velerans, 109 were chronically
homeless and 667 were in. families with chrldren

’
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Her Exceliency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council -
Page 3o0f3

A Request for Applications was posted to the Department’s website from December 18,
2015 through February 5, 2016 to solicit vendors to provide Emergency Solutions Grant
services. The Department received nine (9) applications in response to the Request for
Applications. A team of individuals with program specific knowledge and experience evaluated

_the applications. One (1) application received by the Department did not comport with the

services requested in the Request for Applications. Three (3) applications were from one' (1)
vendor. The Department selected seven (7) vendors with which to enter into eight (8)
agreements. The bid sheet is attached. ‘ e

This contract contains language that reserves the Department's right to renew services
for up to three (3) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory

_ performance of services and approval by the Govemor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request,' individuals and
families may not receive the emergency housing assistance necessary to prevent of reduce the
risk of homelessness. ' , o

Area Served: Statewide . .
Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds CFDA # 14.231

in the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program. .

Respectfully subpitted,
Marilee Nitian, MBA
Deputy Commissioner

Approved by:

Jeffrey A Meyers -
Commissioner '

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families i
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.




‘New Hampshire Department of Heafth and Human

Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit
Summary Scoring Sheet

Services

Emergency- Solutions Grant (ESG)

RFA Name

- Bidder N.ame

Community Acticn Partnership of Strafford

County . - .

Community Action Program, Belknapafiemmack

2. Counties, Inc..

# 17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-RFA-01

. Easter Seals NH, tnc.

- Harbor Homes, Inc.

- Headrest, inc.

- Southern NH Services

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. -
* Cheshire

Southwestém Community Services, Inc. -

" Sulilvan

11.

* The Bridge House, Int. -

10.

The Front Door Agency

The Way Home

RFA Number . Reviewer Names
1 Melissa Hatfietd,.BHHS Program
* Specialist - . :
i Maximum Actual -Julke Lane, BHHS program
Pass/Fail| Points | Points 2. Specialist
’ . 4 Kristi Trudel, Program Planning 8
165 163 " Review Specialist
165 163 4. -
186 161 5:
165 164 6.
165. 0 7.
165 158 8.
165 154 9.
165 154
165 "M
1656 164
165 162 .

e
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{G52RM NUMBER P-37  version 5/8/15)
. ~ - ;!'# y . v
" Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program (17-bhhs-rfa-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information thztis private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as fo\lows
_ ’ GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION. .

1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address

Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name - 1.4 Contractor Address ]

Community Action of Strafford County PO Box 160, Dover, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Pho=nc Number 1.6 ~ Account Number; 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

603-435-2500 - 05-95-42-4230-1Q— June 30, 2018 $149,558

' 7927-102-500731

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Tclephone Number

Eric D. Borrin : o ' 603-271-9558
e Coniracmr Signature ’ : 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Sighatory

3 QM@ | %”cﬁﬁ”éﬁﬁﬁ'}m

1.13 Acknowledgemcnt Stateof _NH | County of 51'1"0\-!"00).

3 ZL“’ before the' undcmgncd officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1. 12, or satisfactorily
p p
pmven to be he person whose name is signed ir block 1,11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Slgnah“ﬁgf Notary' Public or Justice of the Peace

e, Lotitind Nomspr

orJ stice of the Pedce . l '
Kox Meen B Nornson | Dyeqatii Muﬁﬂ’

1.15 Namc and Title of State Agency Signatory

\'fL\QﬂM MUL‘»\ Cwmssrtmm BW&S

-1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Dmsmn of Personne) (if applicable)

By: - Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Afforney General {Form, Substance and Execution) -

Pt e

Mmﬂqurﬂmw -3 g

1.18 Approval by the GT)vﬁgnor and E}(ecutnta touncn] : ]

" By On:

Page | of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in black 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contracter shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is mcorporaled herein by reference
(“Services™). -

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMFLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Exccutive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this-Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hercunder, shall become cffective on the date the Governor
- and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement 15 signed by the State Agcncy as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commnences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior

Contractor, and- in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Scrwccs by the Completion Date
speclﬁcd in block 1.7.

4. CONDIT‘IONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT,
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable. .
5. CONTRACT,
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price,” method of payment, and terms of
payment are identificd and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the Siate of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the

PRICE/FRICE

“-performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete -

compensation 1o the Coniractor for the Services. The State
shall have no hablhty to the. Contractor other than the contract
price.

LIMITATION/

r\

5.3 The Siate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwisc payable 1o the Coniractor under this Agreement
those liquidaied amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of ali payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forih in block -
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. . ' '

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
Iaws. - This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication .
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey

—tHhe%ﬂM&shMpeﬁomMWMammmmdmmmmr shall

comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
cmployment because of race, color,. religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any. part by monijes of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order -No. 11246 (“Equal

. Employment  Opportunity”), as supplemented by the

regulations of the United States Departmem of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guldelmes
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue 10
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or Uniled States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own cxpense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warranis that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws,

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in wnung, durmg the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perforin the Services o hire, any person who is a State
employee -or. official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, adininistration or performance of this

Page 2 o0f4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
" her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Qfficer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES,

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Semccs satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure 10 submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
" of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor & written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remediéd, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event '

of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this

Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price . '

which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 sct off against any other obligations the State may owe to *
the Contractor any damages the State suﬁ'crs by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

824 treat the Agmmcnt as brcached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9.DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION. '

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” sha]l mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
pecformance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, fonnulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
" graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and ‘documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose

- ————under-this-Agreement;-shall-be- the-property-of-the-State;and——-

shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason. :

9.3 Confidentiality of dma shdll be governed by N:H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure- of data
requires prior written approval of the State,

Document Vc::sion 05/15
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10. TERMINATION. In'the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the

. Services, the Coniractor shall deliver to the Contracting

Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of

. termination, a report {“Termination Report”) describing in

detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subjéct
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the anached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. ' In
the perforinance of this Agreement the Contractor is in ‘all
respects n independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an cmployee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have. authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other ¢moluments provided by the State o its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written natice and
consent of the State. None of the Servives shall be
subcontracted by thc Contracior without the pnor writtep
consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
ligbilities or penaltics asseried against the State, its officers
and eniployees, by or on behalf of any. person, on account of|
based or resulting from, arising out of {or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the forcgoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovercign immunity of the State, which immunity is héreby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shait
survive the termination of this Agrecment.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or

. ass1gnec to obtain and maintain in force, the followmg

insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general Ilab:hty insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form . covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not

less than80%of the wimle replavement value of dre propenty.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 4.1 heréin shall
be on policy forms and ‘endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New

Hampshire.
Contractor Initials E-. j

Date ) |17
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish 1o the Contracting Officer

identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cerlificate(s)

of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
" Contractor shall also _furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cerlificate(s) of
insurance for al} renewal(s) of insurauce required under this
Apreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each centificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a ciause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation ormodification af the policy. .

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1- By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
{"Workers' Compensation").

152 To the extent ‘the Contractor is subject fo the
requirements of NH. RSA chapter 281-A, Contracter shall

———mmnmn—gmdﬂquﬂe—&ny-subeentf&smF—er-amgncc-tomu

and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activitics which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, prouf of Workers® Compensation in the
manner described in NH.- RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by refcrence.  The Stale shall not be
‘rt:spcmsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
. any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
“-arise under applicable State of -New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afier any Event of Default shall
" be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. "No express
failure-to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of. Default
on the part of the Contractor. -

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party ‘hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or glvcn at the
tirne of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties al the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
‘waived or discharged only by-an instrument in writing signed
by the partics hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Govemor and
Exscutive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

Page 4 of 4
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such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19, CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agrecement shalt be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in thig Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
infent, and no rule of construction shall bc applied agamst ar -’
in favor ofany party.

20, THIRD PARTIES. The partics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

2l. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement

are for reference purposes only, and. the words contained
therein shall in no way be held 1o explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement..

forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated he:em by
reference,

23. SEVERABILITY. In the cvent any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held bya court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agresment wilt remain in full force and
effect,

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrecment, which may

be executed in a number of counterparts, cach of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all pnor
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Lol

Contmctor Initials W
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Exhibit A

. Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. For the purpose of this Contract, any reference to days shall be a reference to business
days,

1.2. The Contractor shall provide services 1o individuals and families in the Counties of
Rockingham: and Strafford who are homeless or at risk of becommg homeless in
accordance with 24CFR Parts 91 and 576.

1.3. The Contractor shall submit'a detailed description of the language assistance senvices
they will provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of the contract effechve
date.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall determine Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) eligibility for
individuals Identified in Section 1.2, which includes but is not limited to:

2.1.1. Determining individual and family income eligibility in accordance with U.S.
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) reguiations for ESG, in,accordance with
24 CFR 576. Income eligibility must be assessed every six (8) months of
program participation. The Contractor shall ensure annual income:

2.1.1.1.  Includes all earned and unearned income from all sources that go to
any family member.

2.1.1.2. lIs calculated by annualizing. current income to determine projected
annual income.

2.1.1.3. Is adjusted according participant income increases/decreases. The
- Contractor shall ensure all prevention participant househoids report all
" income changes within 30 days of the change occurring.

2.1.2. Documenting eligibility for households épplyihg for Rapid Re-Housing and
Homelessness Prevention services according to HUD guidelines, which includes
but is not fimited to collecting and documenting information regarding:

2.1.21. Immediate risks/crisis to individuals and families applying for
. assistance to determine if steps are needed to avert physical or
psychologicai danger or threat of immediate housing loss.

2.1.22. Basic derﬁograph_ic and contact information, which includes but is not .
limited to name, age, dependents, other family, current location,.
contact phone numbers and address.

2.1.2.3. Problems as defi ned by participants that affect housing, such as late
rent,_landlord problems,_credit history, ¢ nrmnal_h|story._empI0yment

and income.

.2.1.24.  Solutions as defined by what the participant wants or requests from
: what is available to him/mer,

CE;!“ngwﬂ:y Mﬂon ngmn:f Stratford County - Contractor initials Q/
A
Pagatof3 | . Dale



New Hampshire Department of Health-and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

C 1

Exhibit A

22,

2.1.2.5.  Eligibility information; including but not limited to, verification of literal
homelessness or imminent risk of homeless. Documentation must be
in accordance with HUD'’s preferred method of verification.as noted in
24 CFR 576. :

2.1.26. Additional risks and vulnerabilities for priofitizing purposes, which
include, but-are-not limited to, severe rent burdens, domestic violence,
prior incarceration &r institutionaliZation, health and mental héalth

- issues, substance: abuse and ofher specmc housmg -retention
barriers.

| 2.1.2.7. Written'third-party verlf' cation of rental arrearages, notlces of eviction,
= homelessness, or utility shutoff nottces

The Contractor shall conduct Housnng Relocation and Stabillzatlon (HRS) actwittes
which includes but is not limited to inspecting each unit to ensure housing ) meets HUD
Habitability Standards, usmg HUD’s Checklist for Habitability Standards. Addltionally, \
the Contractor shall ensure:

'2.3.'

2.21. Occupled housing meets State and tocat housmg requ1rements mcludlng, but not
||m|ted to compllance with: . - :

2. 2 1.1 Al appllcable state and local houstng codes
221 2 Llcensmg requwements

2213 Al requrrements regarding the condltion of the structure.
22 1' 4. Al requwements regard[ng the operation of the housing or services

2.2.2.'Occupled housing shall meet the. Lead:Based Pairit Poisoning- Prevention and
Disclosure Act (42 U.S. C. 4821-4846), the Residential‘Lead Based Paint Hazard
_Reduct:on Act of 1892, (42 U;$.C.4851-4856), and Implementmg regulations in
CFR part 35 subpartsA B, H. J. K M and R. .

The Contractor shall prowde financidl assistance. to eligible individuals |dent|ﬁed in
Sectlon 2 1, for sennces that include, but are not I:mtted to:

" 231 Rental appl:catlon fees

232 Secunty deposns

.2.3.3, L!tlll_ty‘deFJ‘OSIt_S -and pﬁyments. '

2.34. Last, month'srent. .

- 2.3.5. Movmg costs . T,

24;
. Assistance (T BRA) which includes butis not limited to:

The Contractor shall provide eligible mdlwduats and famthes wnth Tenant-Based Rental

241, A maxrmum amount of 39 000" in rentat 3551stanoe to be applied toward monthty

——— o ———

- rent and!or rerital arrearages

24 2..Rental assrstance over_no more than a.nine (9) month perlod The Contractor.. . ...

zghalli
ConmntyAdJumgrlmutsmomCourw . : : . Contracior Injosts &)(p
LExitliA . ) . . 5 F)' :5 !
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New Hampshir% .Department of Health and Human Services
‘Emergency Soluuons Grant Program

o ®

Exhibit A

2.5,

2.8.

27.

2.42.1. Enter into a rental assistance agreement with the owner/landlord on
behalf of the program participant, ensuring that the Contractor
receives a copy of all general notices, comp]alnts and notices of
eviction from the landlord/owner.

2.42.2. Ensure each program participant obtains a written {ease for the rental
unit, unless the assistance-provided is solely for rentai arrears.

2.423. Provide rental and all forms of financial assistance directly to the
landlord, utility or other third-party on bebhalf of the participant.-

2.4.2.4. Ensure that rental assisténce does not exceed the Fair Market Rent .
established by HUD, as provided under 24 CFR part 888.

2425 Ensure rental units comply with HUD's standard of rent
reasoriableness, as established in 24 CFR 982.507. '

The Contractor shali provide eligible individuals and families with housing stability case
management. Eligible services costs must comply with ali HUD regulatlons in 24 CFR
576. 105, which includes but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Developlng Housing Budget Plans for all eligible mdwiduals using the mformation
- identified in Section 2.1.3 to ensure participants have the ability to sustain the
cost of the housing on a long-term basis once the assistance of subsidy ends.

2.5.2. Assess, arrange, coordinate and monitor the delivery of individualized services to
facilitate housing stability for program paiticipants who reside in permanent
housing, or assist a program participant in overcoming |mmeduate barriers to
obtaining housmg

The Contractor shall make available on- going houamg stabtltty case management for
six (6) months, after rental assistance has ended. -

The. Contractor shall ensure sufficient licensed staff to provide client level data into the
New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Projects
under this contract must be famlliar with and follow NH HMIS policy (hitp:/fwww.nh-

hmis. org)

3. Repor’nng Requlrements

3.1.

The contractor shall provide quarterly reports usmg HMIS data which include, number
of entries into- RRH, Prevention and related costs for -all services by the .10th day
following the end of the quarter.

4. Deliverables of Services

41,

4.2,

4.3.

Pocnibit A
Poge 3 of3d

Commurity Action Progeam of Braftond Couny : Contracir Iritinls &UP

The Contractor shall provide housing stabilization case mahage’ment to a minimum of
sixteen (16) households. "

The Contractor shall successfully and rapidly re-house ten (10} households in safe and
sustained. housing__ -

The Contractor shall ensure all clrent level data in Section 2.7 is entered into NH HMIS
within five (5) days.of the client's entry into the program.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detalled in Exhibit A =
Emergency Solutions Grant:

This contfact is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or. by federal funds.made .

available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) as follows:

NH General Fund: -~ Not applicable-
Fedefal Funds: _ " 100% )
CFDA #: 14231 . _ .
Federat‘Agency': , U.s. Department-of Housing & U_rban Deyetopment
Program Title: : Emergency Solutions Grant g i
——-———AFHQUR‘——-—-—-—-—-——$Z4—119-S':V onn
$74,779 SFY 2018 _ ©
$149,558 Total '

CAP Suatiord County . Extébit © Contractor initials . f .
- . Page 1 cf 2 B T P
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1. Subject to the General Provisions of thrs Agreement and in constderatlon of the satisfactory
~ completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement -the’ State agrees to fund

" the- Contractor for Rapid Re-Hotising, Homelessriess Pravention: and Housing Stabilization
utilizing funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

; (HUD) Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount. not to exceed $149 558, '

2. REPORTS.

i

As. part of- the performance of the Pro;et:t Actrvrttes the Contractor covenants and, agrees to,

submit the foIIowmg

2.1 Audrted Fmancral Report: The. Audited Fmancral Report sha[l be prepared in
. *accordance with the regulations that implement 2 CFR part 200. Three (3) copies of the
audited financial repdrt shall be submitted within thlrty (30) days of the completlon of
,sard report to the Sfate. . .

22 'Where the Contractor«rs not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200 wrthrn nlnety'

{90) days after the Completlon or Terminatiori Date, one’ copy of ‘anr-auditéd financial

report shall be subrnrtted to the State. Said audit shail be conducted utlhzmg the -

. gu1del|nes set forth in"“Standards for Audit of Govemmental Organrzatrons Program
Activities, and Functrons by the. Comptroller Géneia] of the Unlted States

3. PROJECT.: COSTS PAYMENT SCHEDULE REVIEW BY THE STATE v

) :31 F’ro_qect Costs As used in this Agreement the terrn "ProJect Costs shall ‘mean aIl
expenses drrectly or |nd|rectly incurred by the Confractor ja the™ performance of the

-

. . _._Projéct Activities| as.détermiined by the State fo.be ettglble and allowable for, payment in

. accordance with 24. CFR 576 -as well“as allowable- cost: standards set forth-in' 2 CFR
part 200 as revrsed from timé to- time and with the. rules regulatlons and- gurdellnes
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established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2
CFR part 200.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Reimbursement requests for all Pro;ect Costs including a!l
costs to the Contractor shall be submitted on a monthly basis by the Contractor for the
amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as °
designated by the State which shall be completed and signed by the contractor. The
Contractor ‘shall provide detailed financial expenses information with all payment
requests on a monthly basis.

*3.2.1. The Contractor shall submit reimbursement documentation of expenditures of Federal
funds at the time of seeking reimbursement for costs. In no event shall the funds
provided exceed thé Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions.
Upon release of additional Féderal funding to the State, the Contractor may invoice for
balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8 based on documentatlon of
expenditures.

3.3, Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Pro;ect Costs incured by the Contractor and all payments made to
date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expense which are not
determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures,
and shall, by written nofice specitying the disallowed expenditures, inform the
Contractor of any such disallowance. if the State disallows costs for which payment has
not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs, Any amounts awarded to the
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24-CFR
Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

- 4.1.The State agrees to provnde payment for dctual costs up to $148,558 as defined by

HUD under the provisions and apphcable regulations at 24 CFR 576 and 24 CFR part
91,

4.2 The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases
or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract
price. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval
from the State.

4,3 Conformance fo 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are fo be used only in accordance -
_ with procedures, requirements and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

5 CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

5.1 Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund actounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any
required non-federal expenditures. This responsnbmty applies 1o funds disbursed II"I direct
operations of the Contractor.

5.-1-.2—.—The-Gontraetor—shall—maintain—a-ﬂnaneial—management—system'—that;complies*with-—
“Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or such equivalent system as the

State may require. Requests for payment shall be made accordmg to section 3. 2 of this
agreement. )

CAP Strafiord County Exnibit B Conlracir Initals W
. Page2of 2
. Dats



G |

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Ser\nces
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby govenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance:with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such, eligibility determ:natron shall be-made in @écordance with applrcable federal and,
state laws, regulations, orders, guldelrnes pOlICIBS and procedures

2. Time and Manner ‘of Determlnation Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provlded by
the Departmenl for that purpose and sha[l be made and remade at such trmes as are prescnbed by
the Departrn ent. ;

3. Documentat'er !n addltton to the detarmmahon forms requrrnd By the Department e Contrnctor
shall mamtam a data file on each recipient of services hergunder, thCh file shallinclude all
information. necessary to _support an éligibility determination and such other information‘as. the -
Department requests The Contracior: shall furpish the Department with all forms’ and documentallon

L :|ty-delenn1nehons-lhat-the—Bepeﬂmeﬂt—mey—fequest—er—reqwru

Fair. Heanngs .The Contractor understarids that all applrcants for services hereunder as-well as
individuals declared lnelrglble have a right to.a fair héaring regardmg that detérmination. The
.Contractor. hereby. covenants.and agrees that all applicants for. services:shall be permitted to fill out
an appllcauon form and that each apphcant or re-applicant shall be |nformed ot his/er ngh’t to a fair
heanng in accordance wrth Department reguiatlons

e

5. Gratultres or Krckbacks The Contrattor agrees thatit i is a bréach of this, Contract to accept. or
make a payrnenl gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any 'Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence; the performance of the Séope of Work detailed in.Exhibit-A of this. -

. Contract. The State may terminate thiis' Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
“any: offi cnals offlcers employees or agents of-the Contractor 6r Sub- Contraclor o

o

Retroactwe Payments thwrthstandmg anythrng to the contrary contained in the Contract orin any
. other document, contract or understandlng it is expressly understood and egreed by the parties k
hereto that no. payments will be ‘thadet ‘hereunder to relmburse,lhe Contractor for costs incurred for
any'purposé or for any sérvices provided to any individial prior'td the Effecllve Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contrattor for any sefvices provided:
priof to the dale on whnch the indjvidual applres for services or (except as otherwrse prowded by the

* fedeéral regulahons) pnor toa deterrnlnatlon that lhe lnledl.IaI is ellglble for such servlces

l 1

s

herein contained shall be deemed fo obllgate or requtre the Departrnent o purchase servlces ]
hereunder at a rate which relmburses}the Contractor in excess of the. Contractors’ costs at a ‘rate *
Whlch ‘exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary. to.assure-the quality of such: service orata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by, | the Contractor to ineligible individuais or other third. party «
funders for such service. If at-any time during the term of this Contract-or after receipt of.the'Final -
Expend:ture Report hiereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor hds used
payments hereunder to rermburse items of eipense other-thar siich costs, or has recelved payment
.in-excess: of such costs orin'excess .of siich fates charged by the Contractor to tnellgtble individuals

- . “orother third paﬂy funders; the, Department may elect to:- ST B U A L S

7.1.0° Renegohale the rates for payment hereunder; in which everit new' rates shall be. establlshed
. 7:2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior relmbursement in’
excessofcosls T - e S

~Cantracior Initials %W
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7.3, Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contraclor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees | fo
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Depariment to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be inefigible for such services at

" any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period!

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evrdencrng and reflecting all costs
and other expensas incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Pericd, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are accéptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs Such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, fabar time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statrstrcal Records: Statistical, enrollment, altendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
efigibility (including all forms required to delermine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provrsron of services and all mvorces submitted to the Department to obtain

: payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the

. Contractor shall retain medical records on each patientrecipient of services

9. Audit: Contractor shail submit an annual audit to the-Department within 60 days afier the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,

" Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accountmg Office (GAD standards) as
they perlain to financial compliance audits.

9.1, Audil and Review: During the term of this Contract and the pericd for retention hereunder the
Department, the United States Department of Heafth and Human Services, and any of thelr
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract {or purposes of audit, examination, excerpls and transcripts. ’

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which éxception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception. - . .

10. Conﬂdentlallty of Records: All information, reports, and records mamtarned hereunder or co\lected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department, regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes

directly-corinécted-to-the-administrationof the'services"and the’ Gontraet and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohrb:ted except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian. .

Exhibit C — Speclal Provisions Contractor initials ? M
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1.

12.

—_——————— sunvive the-temination-ef-the-Contraetl-shallerminate-provided-roweverthatl-if:-upenreview ol the

13

14,

15,

16.

» Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the F’aragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Stalistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the followmg reports at the followmg

times if requested by the Department.

11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a delailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such cther information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitied on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department,

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall:be submitted within thirty (30).days after the end. of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Complation of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Unon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Confract and/or

Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
_costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared

during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following

statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or °
required, e.g.; the United States Depariment of Health and Human Services,

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: Ail materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Coniractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county’and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facilty. If any governmenta) license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor wifl procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license orpermit. In conneclion with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities 'shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with iocal building and zon:ng codes, by-
laws and regu!atlons

Equal Employment Oppoﬁunlty Plan (EEOP) The Contractor will prowde an Equal Employment -
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the reciplent receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exnibit C - Spedial Provisions - Contractor InlﬁalsW
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7.

18.

-

19.

more employees, il will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Cerdification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000;, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 empioyees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEQP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it I$ not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tiibes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption..
EECP Certification Forms are available at: hitp.//mww.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cen.pdf. :

Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13168, Improving Access {o
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes. discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). -To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil’
Rights Act of 1864, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that-.LEP persons have
meaningfu! access to its programs.

Pitot Program for Enhancement of Contrac:or Employee Whistieblower Protections: The
foliowing shall apply to all contracts that ‘exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013) -

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whislleblower protections established at
41 U.8.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorrzatlon Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908. .

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the'workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, a3 described in secuon
3.908 of the Federal'Acquisition Regulation.

~{c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), i.n all

subcaontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

Subcontractors DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater experlise to perform cerain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shail evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1." Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the-function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
[responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3. Momtor the Schontractor‘s performance on an ongoing basis

»

Exhibit C - Speclal Provisions " Contractor Injtlals
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19.4. . Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5.  DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are adentlﬁed the Contractor shall
take comrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract the followrng terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with stale and federal Jaws, requlations, rules and orders. .

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is .

———emarMmagmermdam%nWhmhmmhmgmwvemmﬁheﬁmnma.
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, sha!l mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
requited by the Depariment and: containing a description of the Services to be provided 1o-eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setling forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Comract

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specifi ed in Exhibit B of the
Contract. . .

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state taws, reg'utations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, efc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NHand -
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guaranleeé that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services,

Exhibit C - Spedial Provisions Contractor Inltisls
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Natute of Agreement, Is
replaced as follows: - . . :

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon glving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Accounl(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Agcount Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Squaragraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following fanguage;

10.1 The State may termjnate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written nolice that the State is éxercising its
option to terminate the Agreement. .

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of eary

. termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
. receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The. Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information of
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan

. and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
"requested. i

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, inciuding but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contractéd providers or theé State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affecied individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed comtunications In its

.. Transition Plan submitted to the State as described-above.

3, Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added: ' ' '

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or property

- damagein-amounts-of-not-less-than-$250,000-per-claim-and-$1;000;006-per-occurrence

with additionai general liability umbrella insurance coverage of not less than $2,000,000 per
-occufrence; and . . . .

4,  The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to three (3) additional years, subjecl to
the conlinued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

' ' " Exnibit C-1- Revisions to General Provisions Contractor Initiats E .,& j
cwu-r.-p}smoﬁa
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~.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply.with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-680, Title V, Subtitle D; #1
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees lo have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foIIowrng Certification:

ALTERNAT]VE 1-FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

us DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
.US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
us DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ‘CONTRACTORS

This certification js requnred by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0;41U.S.C. 701 ét'seq,). The January 31,"
1989 regulatrons were amended and publisiied as Part i} of the May 25,1990 Federaf Register (pages
21681-21691), and require. certlf' cation by granteés (and by rnterence sub grantees and sub-
contractors), priorto award, that they will maintain & drug-frée wortcplaoe Section 301? 630(c) of the
regulation provides that a granteé (and by inference, sub- -grantees ; and sub—contractors) that ls a State.

ma}dmpm-makeeneeemﬁemmwepadmn&macMedemlm%Weamewicemm for

each gfant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate. set out bélow is a

material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency -awards the, granl False.
certrﬁcatron or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments suspenision or

’ termlnatron of grant.s .ot govemment wide suspeneton ar debarment Contraclors usmg this form should
send |t to A

Commlssioner

NH Department .of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant. Street, : -
Concord NH 03301-6505 : .

1. The grantee certrfles that it wrll or will continue to prov:de a drug -freie workplace by
1.1:  Publishing a statement notlfylng employees that the unlawful manufacture drstnbutron
- dispensing, possession or use of a controlléd substance is prohrblted in'the grantee 5
workptace and spec:lylng the actrons that will be taken against employees for vrolatlon of such
prohlbrtlon KR . ‘-
1.2. ‘Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2,1., Thedangers of drug abuse in the. workplace;
1 2 2. Thé grantee’'s palicy of marntammg a dmg-free workplace )
‘1_.2 3. .Any available drug counsellng, rehabllrtatlon and. employee assistance programs and
124, . The' penaltles thal may be. |mposed upon, employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;
1.3.  Makingit'a refuirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement requlred by paragraph {a); .
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement fequired by paragraph (a) that, as & condmon of
ernployment under the grant, the employee will s
1.41," Abide by the terms of the statement; and e .
. 142 Notrfy the employer in wntmg of his or her conwctron fora vrolatron ofa cnrnlnal drug
.- ‘slalute pceyrring in the workplace no later than iwe calendar days al’ter such )
. -convictiop, )
C 1.8l Notrfymg the: agency in wntlng, wrthm ten calendar days after réceiving nctrce under
-~ subpardgraph 1:4.2 from an employee or‘otherwise receiving actual-notice: of such'conviction. -
) Employers ‘of conwcled employees must provide notice, mcludmg posrtron fitle, to every grant
. ioft" cer on whose grant actlvrty the convrcted ‘employee was workrng unless the Federal agency

- - - . “ e " e A

. Exhibit D..—".Certiﬁcatl'on fegarding brug Free = . . Contractor initals &%
‘ Workplace Requirements .
CUDHHS{110713, . Page 1 of 2
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New Hampshnre Department of Heailth and Human Services -
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall mclude the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one &f the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. TaKing appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to paicipate sattsfactonly in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabllitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
taw enforcement, or other appropriate .agency, .
1.7. Maklng a good faith-effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
' implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance, (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

v

Check O if there are waorkplaces on file that are not identified here.ﬁ

Conlractor Name:

.511:5144 T ﬁd(r\)

Date Name
- Title:

Exhibit D — Certificatlon regarding Drug Free - Canlractor Initigls W

. Workplace Requirements 5’ I
CLOHHS/ 10713 Page 2 of 2 . " Date | 6
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servlces
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The.Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provistons of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government.wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and .
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as‘identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
us DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE CONTRACTORS

-k - . - - -

Programs (mdlcate appllcable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Supportt Enforcement Program under Title [V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program. under Title XX
‘Medlca;d Program under Title XIX

'Commumty Seryices Block Grant under, Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant ynder Title IV

Tne u'ndersigned cenil"es {o the best of his or her-knowledge and belief that;

1. No Federal appropnated funds have been pa:d or will be pa:d by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influehcing or attemptmg to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress; an officer or employee of: Congress or an employee of a Member of Congress.in
coniiection with the-awarding of any Federal-contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, granl loan or cooperative agreemenl (and by specific mentlon
sub-grantee.or sub-contractor), .

2. ffany funds other than Federél'appropnated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for -
influencing or attempting to influence an ofiicer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress; or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this

. Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agieement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and.submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Formto
Report Lobbymg, in accordance with |ls mstmctlons atfached and rdenllr ed as Standard Exhibit E-1)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language ‘o this certification be inciuded in the award
document for sub- awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants,;and contracts under grants:
loans and cooperat:ve agreements) arid that all sub-recipients shall certlfy and disciose accordingly.

This cémf cation |s a rhaterial representat:on of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered intd. Submission of this certification is a. prerequtsste for making of entering into this
transaction |mposed by Section 1352 Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the requm‘-.'d
certification shall be subject to a-civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $1 00 1000 for _
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

’ﬂlall,b o &CLWQ&/

SoTBate =t o= e Name E T —m e

Title:

C e . Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Contractor Iniﬁals_M
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Execulive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debaimient, . . .
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's ' e
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification: ' ‘ )

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERﬂFICAﬂON oo
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below. '

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an’
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human'Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction. : ' ;

3, The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. 1f it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available o the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

) . ¢ . ) ‘

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency.to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitied if at any time the prospective primary participant leams
that its certification was emoneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed

circumstances. .

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” *suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” *parlicipant,” "person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” *proposal,” and
*voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules impléiiériting. Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions. or X '

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the “
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

- \

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the

" clause fitled "Certification Regarding Debarment; Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -

. Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all [ower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transaciions.

8 A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant ina
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded

from-the-covered-transaction-unless-it‘knows"that the cettification™is erronecls A particigant Tridy
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in-the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records,
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certificalion Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contraclor Initials
) . : And Other Responsibility Matters ) 3 (0
CWOHHSATE7 13 Page tof 2 _ . Date |
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normaily possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings. .

10. Except for transactions authonzed under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters info a lower tier covered transaction wilh a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies availabie to the Federal government, DHHS may terrmnate this transaction
for cause ordefault.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS ' ' T
11. The. prospectlve primary participent. certifies to the.best.of |ts knowtedge ‘and belief, that it and its
' pnncupats
11.1. "are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared mehgrble or
; e voluntanly excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency,
& crvrl judgment rendered against: them for comiission of.fraud of:a cnmmal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to-obtain; or performing a public (Federal State or loca)
. transactlon ora contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
- statutes or commission.of embezzlement; theft, forgery, bnbery. falsifi catron or destructlon of

_———QMksng%MatemenwmmwnWGteap. OpEHy:
11.3. are not présently indicted for othierwise criminally or civilly gharged by a governmental entity .
(Federal State,or local) with commission of any of the- offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
. of this'certification; and .o s
11. 4 -have not williin a threezyear pefriod precedrng thls apphcatlonfproposal had oné or more publlc
. . .3 transactrons (Federal State or local) terminated for cause, or defautt

12. Where the. prospectwe primary parttclpant is unable to.cerify to any of the statements in this -
certtf' cation, such prospectlve partlcrpant shall attach an explanatlon to thls proposal (contract)

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS :
13. By stgnrng and submitting this-lower tier proposal (contract) ine prospective lower tier pamctpant as
definéd in 45 CFR Rart 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and-belief that it and its- principals:.
3.1, are not presently debarred, susperded, proposed for debarment déclared ineligible; or
- voluntanly excluded from partlcrpatlon in this transaction by any federai department*or agency.
13.2.. where the prospective.lower tier: participant is unable to certify to a@ny of the above, such '
' prospectlve participant shall attach an explanatron to this proposal (contract)

14. The, prospective lower tier parttcupant further agrees by ‘submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inellglbllrty and
Voliintary. | Exclusion - Lower Tier:Covered Transactions;” without modification in all fower. trer covered:
transactrons and inall soltcnatlons for lower tier covered transactions: - r '

L _

Contractor Name

D 5_}\3\1/@ " NM 1 r)k, |

—- e e B - o —————— = e e a4 A . ——— 4 h— = —

~

. . . . .o
AR B . b - . " - -
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
‘ WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signalure of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foliowing
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

. the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.5.C. Section 3789d) which prohlblts
reciplents of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act

requires certain reclpients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunlty Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this -
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services of
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan reqmrements

" - the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Sectton 2000d, which prohibits remplents of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis cof race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from dlscrlmlnatlng on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.5.C. Sections 121 31 3»4) which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and Iocal
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Dlscnmlnat:on Act of 1975 (42 U.8.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in"programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. | does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Departiment of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13558, which provide fundamental principles and poficy-making
cntena for partnershlps with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28CFR. pt. 38 {U.S. Depariment of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defénse Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013° (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whlstleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection wnh_federal grants and contracts.

The cerificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the

agency awards thegrant False certification or violation of the cerlification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wme suSpens:on of
.debarment

Exhiblt G )
Contractor Initlats

Cerlifcadon of Compllance with racul s pertaining to Fecersl ﬂmdscmﬁr:m Equs! Treaunent of Falh-Baied Omanlraaom

' and Whistiablower protecions
6274 ' ' 3 / “ﬂ
Rav. 1621114 v Page 1 of 2 . Dale




New Hampshire Debartment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Depariment of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Prowsnons to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal {(contract) the Contractor agrees to comply W|th the provisions
mdlmied above.

Contractor Name:

=y
b
=

Date Nanie:

Exhibli G &{/70
Contractor Inilals

Centiticadon of Compliance with requrements plnnlrinp to Federal Nondiserimination, Equal Traxtmant of Felth-Basod Orslruﬂms
and Winistiatiower pretscions
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, alse known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
- (AcY), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
of library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guaraniee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Faiture
to comply with ‘the provismns of-the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1 12 of the General Provisions, to execute the fofiowing
cerification:

1. By signing and submrmng this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all appilcable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro- Children Act of 1994,

Contractor Name:

) R 7 G .

Date : ~ Name:.
' Title:
¥
Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initisls 2 C - ’
. . Enviranmental Tobacco Smoke 3 Lﬂ
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HEALTH INSURANGE PORTABLITY ACT .
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT -

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees o
comply with the Health Irisurance Portablllty and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the:Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health information, 45
CFR Pants 160,and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business

‘Associate” shall hean the Contraclor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that.,
' recelve, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity”.shall mean the; State of New Hampshlre Department-of Health and:Human Sejvices:-.

(1) ' Defimtions

a. "‘Breach" shall have the same meamng as {he term “Breach” in"section 164. 402 of Titls 45,
: Code of Federai Regulatrons

' "Busmese Assoclate” has the meanmg gwen such. term in section 160.103 of Trtle 45, Code
ofF edeLaLBe,,ulatrons . .

--'...-A-_..._._.......‘.

c. “Covered Entity” has the rneaning'given such term in section 160.103 of: Tltle 45,
Code of Federal Regulatlons '

- d. "E)esrgnated Record.Set” shall have the same meanrng as the term "designated record set

in 45 CFR Section 164. 501

e. Data Aggregation” shall have the same meanlng as the term "data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Sectton 164.501. . . .

fo. "Health Care Opergtions” shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operatrons
" in45 CFR Section 164.501. - .

g.. lleECH Act” means the Health lnformallon Technology for Economic and Clinical. Health
~ Act, TitleXIIl, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
: 2009 ' -

. - “HlPAA means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act o'f'19'96 Public Law

"104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of individuatiy- ldentrf able Health
lnformatlon 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. .

i _."lndlyldual" shall have the same meaning as the term mdlwdual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shali include a person who quallﬁes asa personal represenlatrve in accordance wrth 45
‘CFR, Section 164. 501(g) . i .

j "Prlvacy Rul ' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Indrvrdually Identifiable Health

Infermation-at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the Umted States

'Department of Health and Human Servrces . .

k. “Protected. Heallh’ lnIormatlo ) shall have the. same meamng as. tneterm J‘protected_h—ealth_
information” in 45 CFR Sectton 160.103, lifnited to thee information ‘created or recelved by

- BuSiness Assocrate from or.on behalf of Covered Entity.. - S - s -

32014 ' : Exhibtl - ' Contractor Initialé M_'

Fow Rt - - Hea'lh insurdnte Portability Acl _ . PR T
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I “Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee,

n. “Security Rule* shall mean the Security ‘Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. *Unsecured Protected Health Informatiori” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Instilute. :

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning -
esiablished under 45 C.F.R. Paris 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act,

(2) Busmess Associate Use and D|sclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, dlsclose maintain or transmit Protected Health’
information (PH!) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services cutlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Assaciate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents; shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI'in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph, d. below; or
1. For data aggregation purposes for the heaith eare operations of Covered
Entity. . .

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHito a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making .any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and

~ used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
-disclosed to the third party; and (i) an.agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Securlty, and Breach Notification
‘Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent |t has obtained
knowliedge of such breach. _

—d.———’Fhe-Business—Associate-shall-not,-unleSS'such'disclb‘sure‘is‘réa‘s:dh‘ébly necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that'it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
o seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

o014 : Exh:bh | Contracior Inltials gtgi
Haallh Insurance Portability Act - ,
Business Associale Agreement 5’ [‘5 ’ ’ b
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(3

Associate shall refram from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business:Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to

" be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security

safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions, and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

- Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Busiriess Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected heaith information of the Covered Entity.

32014 -

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The rlsk assessment shall include, but not be
iimited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected heaith information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the °
breach.and immediately report the fi ndlngs of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall cornply W|th all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Bueiness Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity s compliance with HIPAA and the anacy and
Security Rule. . . .

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same

..restrlctlons and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein; including

t.he giuty to return or destroy the PHI as provided Under Section 3 (1). " The Covéred Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's' business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Exhibit | Contractor Initisls
Healih Insurance Porlabllity Act
Business Assoclate Agraamen . 5 la ”_0
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be govemed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protecled health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entlty
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its ofﬂces all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order {o meet the
requ1rements under 45 CFR Section 164. 524 N

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a writlen request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PH! available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.5286.

o Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PH! and information related to .

' such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an

individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Séction

164.528.

] Within ten (10) business days of receiving a writlen request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to-fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of d:sclosures with respect to PHI in’accordance with 45 CFR

-Section 164.528.

k. In the evenl any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PH!

' directly from the Business Associate, the Busmess Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rute, the Business Associale
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

i Withiri ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any re'asdn, the
Business Assoclate shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI

received from,-or_created_or-received.by.the.Business-Associate-in-connection-with-the

Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. [f retum or
destruction.is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business g [—}

32014 ) Exhibit [ Contractor Initials
. L Health Insurance Porlability Act’

Business Assaclate Agreement ) b
Page 4 of 6 Dale



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

C

Exhibit |

(4)

C.

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the-
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or dlsclosure of PHI,

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used-or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. '

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or

————&Mew%ﬂ%%a@m@é%mgm&mmm@anwwm CER- 164,522,

(5)

(6)

3!2014

to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Assoc:ate s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate tocure the
alteged breach within a timeframe spec&ﬁed by Covered Entity. |f Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitioris and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended _
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to, "
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as

amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary-for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes-in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and -
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

’ Data Ownersbig. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights

with-respect to the PHI pravided by or created on behalf-of Covered Entity. - - --

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA; the Privacy and Security Rule ?

Exhibit | Contractor Iruilals
Health Insurance Portability Act
Busingss Assoclate Agreement 5 a ‘
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e. . Segregation. tf any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any

" person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or

. conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisians of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the

standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.
s

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the pames hereto have duly executed this Exhibit |.

Mm \\)A | &mmmhﬁthm%me

" The State Name of the Gdntractor Stz ffo 2

\YY\amQag'fLﬁ\mm U (e

Signatyre of Authorized Representative Sig”nature of Authorized Representative

Moalee Nihan ety Andrews Prker

Ndme of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

D gp”gjl% Cooniseiomer  (hwid Excaito, Dy
Title 'of Ahorized Representatjve Title of Authorized Representative -
_Slzle YYLM 13, Lol

Date - Date
-~
312014 Exhibil ) Cantracter Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Assoclate Agreement ' % l 6
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING JING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
~ AC CT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountabllity and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to repeort on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accoidance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

" Name of entity )
Amount of award

Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source ’

Award title descriptive of the purpose of the fundmg action

Location of the entity

Prlnc:ple place of performance

tnique’identifier of theemtity (DUNS #)

0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SQO@NOo s LN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, In whnch
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prows:ons agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation [nformation), and further agrees -
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH

. Department of Health'and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. S

Contractor Name;

AT o T4 @Q

Date " Name:
Title:

Exhibh J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Inifials Z-d ’ .
Accountabiity And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compilance l U
* CUMHHSA 10713 : Page 1of 2 Date .
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FORM é

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate

1.

2.

The DUNS number for your entily is: 0 qq 53(05.3 G

In your buslness or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
recaive (1) BO percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
inans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants and/for
cooperative agreements?

X no ‘ YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

Does the publnc have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your

. business or arganization through pericdic reponts filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 {15 U.5.C.78m(a}, 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of
18867

NO - _____ _YES .
if the answer to #3 abové is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer lhe following:

The names and compensation of the five most hlghly compensated officers in your busrness or
organizalion are as foHows

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: . ' Amount:

Name: ' Amount:

Name: Amount:

CUDHHSH 10713 Page 2 of 2 : Dato

Exhibil J - Certlfication Reg afdlng the Federal Funding Contractor lnmals,m
Accounlability And Transparency Act (FFATA} Compliance - I ‘ u
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2

ThIS Amendment to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State” or "Department”) and Easter Seals New
Hampshlre ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS pursuant to an agreement {the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29, 2016 (item #16), as amended on March 21, 2018 (Item #9A), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specrfred in the Contract as amended) and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to.Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended ‘
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, Easter Seals New Hampshire as of July 1%, 2021 shall be acquiring The Way Home Inc. and
any future delivery of services and/or funding on their behalf; and

"~ WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement to support continued delivery of these
services; and :

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
December 31, 2021 . :

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan D. White, Director '

3. Form P-37, General PrOV|S|ons Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number to read:
603-271-9631 S

4.' Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4, Deliverables of Services, by adding Subsection
4.4 through Section 4.6 to read:

. 4.4, The Department may annually conduct on-site reviews of the Contractor operatlons to ensure
compliance with the contractual objectives.

4.5, The Department may annually perform file reviews of the Contractor operations to ensure
compliance with applicable federal and state laws.

4.6. The Department may provide training for Contractor staff as needed

ns
| | | er
17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01-03-A02 Easter Seals New Hampshire Contractor Initials
A-5-1.0 Page 1 of 3 : Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to July 1, 2021, upon Govemor and
Executive Councﬂ approval. .

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by: -
6/17/2021 _ ’ Christine Sartamicllo ,
- Date : Name: TIAE Santaniel o

Title: Associate Commissioner

Easter Seals New Hampshire

: Docu'slgnod by:
6/16/2021 ' , | Hiw Troaner
Date . Name: Feanor _

Title: cro

17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01-03-A02 . Easter Seals New Hampshire
A-5-1.0 . Page 20of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
executlon .

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

. DocuSigned by; .
6/18/2021 | l C@u
. j
Date - : The Pinos .

Name:
Title: Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ._. (date of meeting}

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

. 4

Date Name:
S Title:
Il
17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01-03-A02 Easter Seals New Hampshire

A-5-1.0 . Page 30f 3
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of (he State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that EASTER SEALS NEW
HAMPSHIRE, INC. is a New FHampshire Nonprofit Corporation rcgislc.rcd to transact business in New Hampshire on November
06, 1967. 1 further cc'rtif_‘,' that all fees and documents required by the Sccretary of State’s office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business 11D: 61290
Certificate Number: 0005334269 . .

IN TESTIMONY WHERLEOF,
I herelo set my hand and cause to be aftixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st dav of April A.ID. 2021.

Gin Lo

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

|, ___Cynthia Ross ' ' *, hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1am a duly elected ClérleecrélaryIOfficer of __ Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
' {Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on _February 10, 2021 , at which a quorum &f the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
(Date} '

VOTED: That Elin Treanor, CFQ (may list more than one person) -
: {Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the
State ) ‘ . ’

{Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote. : :

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty {30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above curently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the autharity of any listed individual to bind the corporation in corpracts with the State of New Hampshire,

all such limitations are expressly stated herein, a L
' h . ' —‘:‘1‘ :‘<'.§‘ -
Dated:_6/10/2021 va‘l b NS
Sigrfature of Elect@d Officer
Name: Cynthia Ross
Title:  Assistant Secretary -

Rev. 03/24/20



DocuSign Envelope ID: CD15674B-0DC12-43DC-8B16-0B4A20AB9655

| Client#: 497072 EASTESEA7

ACORD.  CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE R

.8/20/2020

THIS:CERTIFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND ORALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY. THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS GERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER AND; THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. -

IMPORTANT: If the cortlficato holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the’ poilcy(lee) must havo ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions.or be endorsed.
It SUBROGATION IS WAIVED; subject to'the torms’and conditions of the policy, certeln policles may roquire on ondorsement A statement on
this certificate does not- confer any righis to tho.cantificat holder In'tiew of such endorsemont(s) '

?RODUCER CRHERCT
US! insurance Services.(1.C : TN 856 874- 0123 (A
. A i , No, B A H
3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300 . ' AL - i L e
Bodford, NH 03110 [ARRaeSS; - e
. . ' . INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE (NAIC ¥

855 874- 0123 : INSURER'A : Phlladelphia Indemnlty Insurance Co.. {18058
.INSURED_ ., . . . . SURERH ;|

Easter-Seals'NH, Inc. ) ' ::sunenc-i

555 Auburn Street . msuh‘enb‘::

Manchiester, NH 03103- '  —
) , -L INBURERF
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE.NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S7TQ CERTIFY "THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED: BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED ‘I'OTr'iE INSURED NAMED ABOVE .FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED., NOTW'ITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT "TERM OR CONDITION OF JANY. CONTRACT OR QTI‘IER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY. 'BE 1ISSUED, OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED ‘BY.'THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HERElN IS SUBJECT TOQ. ALL TI-IE TERMS:
EXCLUSIONS AND- CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. ;LIMITS ‘SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEM REDUCED B‘! PA]D CLAIMS

i TYPE OF INSURANCE mﬁn. POLICY NUMBER? . . lb YY) | (M Wv'\‘:'){'?n LiMiTs’

A. | X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. X | X |PHPK2172625° oerm_zzoz_o 09/01/2021] EACH OCCURRENCE . $1,000,000
1| erisaivoe . [ %] 6ceur: ‘ PAMAREIGATED o 15100,000
_X| Professiohal Liab ' © 7| MEDEXP Ay one persory | 56,000
] ) PERSONAL & ADViNaURY | 51,000,000

| .CENLAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;. GENERAL AGGREGATE 53,000,000
] POUCY.D.JECT E] LoC : : PRODUCTS - ComproR Ae | 53,000,000
OFHER. a . ) . . 5 .

A | AUToMOBILE LispiLITY X7 x| PrPK2172623- 09/01/2020]09/071/2027] G omen SHCLE LW 5 535 500
X} ANY-AUTO, . BODILY INJURY {Péi Berson) |3
: %%Espéﬁtv ' Sﬁ"&g’”‘“ ' _ BODILY INJURY {Por:a<ciden) | §

X AR oy KSrNéos%NrEe . ’ m{#’ o Seclan AGE 5
) H
A | X| UMSRELLALIAB 1 XTloccur | X X |PHUBT735674 09/01/2020|09/01/2021) Eatu occurience | $15,000.000
EXCESS Liag . | crams mane ' 'AGOREGATE $15,000,000
oeD | XI eerennousS‘t.OK . 7 - ]
X".ﬁ?éﬁ%f&&"é‘?i‘&ﬁ?% Sfnge | [BF]
GFI'I ENFIEIE‘B%WP%IP&R@KEWWED IHA ' . ) EL EACHACCIMNT - $
{M&ndatory In'NH) " E.L: DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| &
_ﬁmggiouotropemnons batow . . o . EiL. DISEASE POUCY LT | 5.
| A |EDP PHPK2172626 09/01/202009/01/2021] $1,619,050
: 1 ' $500 Deductible
Special Form inél Thaft, ;

DESCRIPTION OF OPER.AHONS TLOCATIONS { VEHICLES {(ACORD 101, Additlonsl Remarks schcuulo, may be attached it moro space Is. requlreﬂ)
. Supplementat Names* Easter Seais ME; inc., Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitatlon Caeitor,. Inc., dba The Farhum
| Ceriter; Easter Seals VT, Inc., & The Homemakers Health Servlces The General Liabitity policy includes g
Blatiket Aufoimiatic Additlonal’ Insured Endorsement that provldee Additional Insured and a Blaiiket Waiver of
‘Subrogation gtatiis tothe Cenlﬂcate Holder, _only en there is a written ‘contract or written’ agreement

between. thé named Insured.and the certificate holder that reqilres’ euch status, and only with Fegaid to. the.
{Sge Attached. Descriptions)

CERTIFICATE HOLOER! , . . CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

Department of Heaith & Humin THE EXPIRATION -DATE: THEREOF, NOTIEE WILL '8 “DELIVERED N .

Servlces State of NH ACCORDANCE WITH™ THE POUCY PROVISIONS “““
129 Pleasant Street L : ‘
. 'Concord NH. 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

S ~ 1©1888.2015 ACORD.CORRORATION. All righta reservad,

‘ACORD26 {2016/03) A ofd The ACORD name; end Iogo arp reglstirod marks:of ACORD i e
#529621 080!M29620061 “SP1ZP-
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- DESGRIPTIONS: (Contmued fiom Page 1) ] .
above referenced on behalf of the narned insuted. ‘The General Llablllty policy 4 contalns -a speclal
endorsement with - Prlmary and Non- Contrlbutory" wording
r
i
\ . 4
SAGITTA 253 (2016103) 2 of2 '

#529621080/M28620061
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e

ACORD
v

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MMDDIYYYY)
10/29/2020

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in llou of such andorsumant(s)

‘IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must be endorsed, f SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorsement. A statemment on this certificate does not confor rights to the

PRODUCER

[

NAME: Tina Housman

Hays Companies Inc. PHONE e TAe. Nol:
133 Faderal Street, 4th Floor AL 5: thousman@hayscompanies.com
) INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Boston MA 02110 . INSURER A: The North River Insurance Company 21105
INSURED : INSURER B ;
Easter Seals New Hampshire,Inc INSURER C :
555 Auburn Street ' INSURER D :
INSURERE :
Manchester NH 03103 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:21-22 WC REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TQ CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR. CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
B ADDL [SUBR 3 Y
'En? TYPE OF INSURANCE so Lwvp POLICY NUMBER (ﬁflﬂgﬂ%ﬁ; ,,:;g,t,,,,,,‘?,:‘,'.‘,, LIMITS
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s
[CAMAGE 10 RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES {Ea gccurence) ]
MED EXP (Any ona person} ' | §
: PERSONAL & ADV INJURY H
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: " | GENERAL AGGREGATE $
POLICY JI [;'. '¢°T Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG | §
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (En ogidontt $
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per poison} | §
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED
T AToS . BODILY INJURY {Por sccidont) | §
I~ NON:OWNE| PROPERTY DAMA .
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS _mngafﬁm) e s
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED I | RETENTION $§ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION X | PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY YIN ] STATUTE I ER
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EAGH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
OFFICERMMEMBER EXCLUDED? D NIA )
A |{Mandatory In NH} .| 406-733761-0 1/1/2021 1/1/2022 | EL.DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | § 1,000,000
H yas, describs undar .
DE;CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000

DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / YEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additlons) Remarks Scheduls, may be sttached if mors spacas is required)
Insured includes Manchester Alccholism Rehabilitation Inc..

dba Farnum Centar

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Coqcord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

James Hays/GSCHIC 91/\/\
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“-easterseals

Mission:‘

Easterseals provides exceptional services to ensure that all
people with disabilities or special needs and their families
have equa] opportunities to live, learn, work and play in

their communities.
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Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Single Audit Act Reports

- Year Ended August 31, 2020

Baker Newman & Noyes LLC
MAINE | MASSACHUSETTS | NEW HAMPSHIRE
800.244.7444 | www.bnncpa.com
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SINGLE AUDIT ACT REPORTS

August 31, 2020
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ' ' 1
Independent Auditors® Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program;

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of

Expeénditures of Federal Awards Required by t